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DNAEEHR
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)
DEEH (&)
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Bank of Communications Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
China Everbright Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
Chong Hing Bank Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

SMP PARTNERS (CAYMAN) LIMITED
Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor

24 Shedden Road, P.O. Box 1586
Grand Cayman, KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F.

Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King’s Road

North Point

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2849 3399

Fax: (852) 2849 3319

STOCK CODE

290

WEBSITE

www.290.com

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020

BEERARSERTEER
b G

BB

ERAREF 1835
FIRKE

431%

E i ¢ (852) 3105 1863/(852) 3103 2007
{EE : (852) 3105 1862

FEERBRIT

RBIRTRDBR AR BEDTT
PEIERIRTT (M) RO BRAF
FEDEABITROERRAR - HEENTT
PRERERTEOHDARRR  HBEDTT
BIEIRTTER AR

RGIRTERAT]

%%ﬁ%i%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ

SMP PARTNERS (CAYMAN) LIMITED
Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor

24 Shedden Road, P.O. Box 1586
Grand Cayman, KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

BEERNBFERLTE

A EAFERERAR
BB

it A

218 338 5%
EHR 5 B 2 B

331 3301-04 =

EiE ¢ (852) 2849 3399
{8H : (852) 2849 3319

L8R A
290
#931t

www.290.com.hk



On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (each a “Director”)
of China Fortune Financial Group Limited (“China Fortune” or the
“Company’, together with its subsidiaries collectively referred to as
the “Group”), | hereby present the overall performance of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2020.

2019 proved to be a year of risks and challenges to Hong Kong
society and its market, and one that was redolent of magical realism.
While global economic growth slowed down significantly, the tit-for-tat
trade war between China and the United States of America (the “USA”)
continued. Such antagonism opened up a new window in history,
undermining and overhauling the international order we were so
familiar with, and this year was certainly a unique one in Hong Kong’s
history.

The capital market of Hong Kong suffered from both internal and
external impacts during 2019. External factors included the see-saw
developments and continual escalation of the Sino-US trade war,
as well as the twists and turns of United Kingdom’s withdrawal from
the European Union. Internally, the ongoing social events caused by
protests against the fugitive bill dealt Hong Kong, which had already
found itself in a tight spot amid the Sino-US trade war, a severe blow,
driving the city into its first recession in a decade. Since June 2019,
tourist arrivals to Hong Kong have decreased by more than 50% year-
on-year. Service sectors, such as retail, hotel, catering and tourism,
have experienced a rare “severe winter”, with annual total GDP shrank
by 1.2%, which was the first annual economic decline recorded ever
since 2009.

However, such “severe winter” among various service sectors has not
yet subsided. The sudden global outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic
in early 2020 has brought forth confusion and unpredictability to the
global economic trend. The global market was suffocated by the
trading curbs in the US stock markets, the soaring unemployment rate
worldwide and the pandemic development. The unemployment rate
in Hong Kong also rose to a nine-year record high of 4.2% in March
2020.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)
ERHBE ()

Although surrounded by both internal and external difficulties, Hong
Kong’s financial market still manifested strong resilience through more
active interconnection with the mainland, high trading volume in the
monetary and fixed income market, and Hang Seng Index closing at a
slight increase of 9% even under volatility. In a market with an overall
unstable situation and frequent-changing trend, during the year of
2019, clients from our brokerage business increased and the active
level of transactions rose, save for the scale of margin business which
contracted due to risk control considerations. In terms of own capital
investments and asset management businesses, the investment
portfolios of ours and of clients consist of high-quality Chinese-issued
US dollar-denominated bond portfolio, China and Hong Kong stock
portfolio of mainly large cap stock, and pre-initial public offering
equity investment portfolio of companies in emerging industries that
are linked to investment banking business. Despite the inevitable
fluctuations derived from the impact of COVID-19 pandemic, we still
managed to smoothly pass the “darkest moment” of the global market
in early March 2020.

Investment banking remained our most competitive business during
2019. From April 2019 to March 2020, a total of 167 companies
launched their initial public offering on the main board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Fortune
Financial Capital Limited, in its capacity as sole sponsor, helped
4 of these companies to be listed on the main board. Meanwhile,
the underwriting business of Fortune (HK) Securities Limited grew
on the basis of its success in 2018, participating in 10 main board
initial public offering projects in 2019. It not only acted as a joint
bookrunner for the blockbuster listing of Shenwan Hongyuan Group
Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 6806.hk), but also as a global coordinator and
bookrunner for other important projects such as the listings of CSSC
(Hong Kong) Shipping Company Limited (Stock Code: 3877.hk),
360 Ludashi Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3601.hk) and Newborn
Town Inc. (Stock Code: 9911.hk), raising more than HK$1.8 billion for
its clients. As at the date of this report, we have completed a large
number of premium sponsoring and underwriting projects and have
many more in the pipeline. All these have helped to shape our image
as a top-notch investment banking firm connecting mainland China
and Hong Kong.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)

As at 31 March 2020, the Group recorded a total revenue of
approximately HK$179,401,000, representing a huge increase
of 66.00% year-on-year, and a total loss of approximately
HK$71,814,000, representing a significant decrease of 31.07% year-
on-year. The loss was mainly caused by (1) an increase in corporate
expenses due to the expanse of our brokerage business; (2) fair
value losses due to the volatility of the stock and bond market in
early 2020; and (3) losses in our associates. Our total loss decreased
significantly, mostly because (1) our total revenue surged; and (2)
the Company assessed the circumstances and reduced its human
resources and administrative costs appropriately.

Amid the sudden outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, we took
care of each of our employees and their families, implementing safety
measures meticulously and providing them with necessary supplies.
In early February 2020, when the pandemic peaked in Hong Kong,
we also purchased 6,000 top-quality P2-grade medical masks from
Australia and donated them to the elderly and those in need in
different districts through the Po Leung Kuk, thereby giving back to
Hong Kong society.

After three years of baptism of fire, our team has become younger
and more professional, with a more diversified business model
and portfolio of products. Our corporate governance structure has
improved, while our funding channels remain stable and have been
expanding. Under the principles of strict compliance with relevant
laws, rules and regulations and stringent risk and cost control,
strongly supported by the board of directors and with the efforts of
the fast-maturing management, China Fortune will not disappoint
its shareholders. It will, step by step, march forward steadily and
powerfully on the road of stable growth. Here | would like to extend
my deepest respect and gratitude to investors and all sectors of
society for their support and concern, and to the shareholders,
the Board, the management and all our colleagues for their strong
support and hard work.

Mr. XIE Zhichun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020 (the “Reporting Year”), revenue
and net investment losses of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$166,017,000 representing an increase of approximately 54.54%
from approximately HK$107,426,000 for the year ended 31 March
2019. The increase was mainly attributable to increase in revenue
contributed from the Group’s securities brokerage and margin
financing business and money lending business.

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$71,814,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2020, as compared with the loss of
approximately HK$104,179,000 for the corresponding period in
2019. Net loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$71,814,000 for the Reporting Year, representing
a reduction of approximately 31.07% comparing with the loss of
approximately HK$104,179,000 for the corresponding period in
2019. Despite (1) the increase in cost of brokerage business; (2) the
increase in losses in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL; and (3)
the loss in the share of associates as compared to that for the year
ended 31 March 2019, the overall performance of net loss attributable
to owners of the Company was improved in the year ended 31 March
2020 mainly due to (1) substantial increase in revenue; and (2)
decrease in staff costs.

The basic and diluted loss per share of the Company for the
Reporting Year was approximately HK0.78 cents as compared with
the basic and diluted loss per share of approximately HK1.38 cents
for the corresponding period in 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW

The outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) since
the first quarter of 2020 has shattered every economic sector on a
global scale. COVID-19 may have certain impacts on the Group’s
corporate finance business, as some IPO projects may be affected
as some of the works to be conducted on site were affected with the
exercise of isolating measures such as quarantine after travelling from
other places and lockdown of a region or even a country. While the
COVID-19 epidemic may affect the operation of the Group’s corporate
finance business in a degree, the Group’s operation is generally
stable and there is no significant adverse impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group at present.

The business of securities brokerage and margin financing is one of
the main revenue streams of the Group. During the Reporting Year,
the business of securities brokerage and margin financing recorded a
revenue and net investment losses of approximately HK$53,679,000,
representing an increase of approximately 59.94% as compared
to the revenue and net investment losses of approximately
HK$33,563,000 for the corresponding period in 2019. The increase
in revenue was mainly contributed from the Group’s underwriting
business.

The segment profit for the year ended 31 March 2020 amounted to
approximately HK$17,108,000 (2019: approximately HK$3,772,000),
representing an increase in profit of approximately 353.55% as
compared with the corresponding period in 2019.

The Group’s strategy is to focus and strengthen existing securities
operation and work in close collaboration with our corporate finance
business as well as wealth management business, in order to provide
a one-stop integrated financial services to better serve our institutional
and high networth individual clients.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEENWEIN (&)

The corporate finance market was under a keen competition during
the Reporting Year. Segment revenue from corporate finance business
and net investment losses/gains increased by approximately 3.06%
from approximately HK$50,079,000 to approximately HK$51,612,000
while the segment profit for the year ended 31 March 2020 amounted
to approximately HK$1,128,000 (2019: approximately HK$1,744,000),
representing a decrease in profit of approximately HK$616,000, as
compared with the corresponding period in 2019.

During the Reporting Year, the money lending market was under
intensive competition locally. The Group recorded an interest
income from money lending of approximately HK$40,702,000
(2019: approximately HK$10,364,000), representing an increase
of approximately 292.72% as compared with the corresponding
period in 2019. Such growth was primarily attributable to the growth
in average loan balance which was the result of the Group’s effort in
expanding lending business.

During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded a segment revenue
from consultancy services and insurance brokerage services of
approximately HK$2,393,000 (2019: approximately HK$2,594,000),
representing a reduction of approximately 7.75% as compared with
the corresponding period in 2019.

During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded a segment revenue
and net investment losses from asset management of approximately
HK$10,964,000 (2019: segment revenue and net investment gains of
approximately HK$11,647,000), representing a slightly decrease of
approximately 5.86% as compared with the corresponding period in
2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 22 November 2016, the Company (as the issuer) entered into
each of the Cinda Subscription Agreement, the PAL Subscription
Agreement and the Riverhead Capital Subscription Agreement (each
as defined below) in relation to the issue of convertible bonds in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$570,000,000.

(i)  The Company entered into a subscription agreement (the
“Cinda Subscription Agreement”) with Mankind Investment
Limited (“Mankind”), pursuant to which, Mankind agreed to
subscribe to the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$110,754,000 (the “Convertible Bonds to Mankind”).

(i)  On 21 September 2016, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with Pacific Alliance Limited (“PAL”"),
and subsequently a supplemental agreement on 22 November
2016 (the “PAL Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to which,
PAL agreed to subscribe to the convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$153,585,000 (the “Convertible Bonds
to PAL"). On 8 January 2018, PAL sold the Convertible Bonds
to PAL to Value Convergence Holdings Limited.

(i) The Company entered into a subscription agreement (the
“Riverhead Capital Subscription Agreement”) with Riverhead
Capital (International) Management Co., Limited (“Riverhead
Capital”), pursuant to which, Riverhead Capital agreed to
subscribe to the convertible bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$305,661,000 (the “Convertible Bonds to
Riverhead Capital”) in 4 tranches.

Completion of subscriptions (i), (ii) and tranche 1 of subscription
(iii) above (altogether, the “Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds”) took
place on 30 March 2017. The convertible bonds to Mankind, PAL
and Riverhead Capital are all bear an interest rate of 2% and
mature on the third (3rd) anniversary of the date of issue of the
convertible bonds with both dates inclusive at the conversion price of
HK$0.06 per conversion share. Upon full conversion of the Tranche
1 Convertible Bonds by all subscribers at the conversion price of
HK$0.06, a total number of 6,500,000,000 conversion shares will be
issued, subject to adjustments to the conversion price of HK$0.06.

BEEEFWED T (&R
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEENWEIN (&)

The net proceeds raised through the issue of the Tranche
1 Convertible Bonds were approximately HK$385,000,000, in which
(i) approximately HK$180,000,000 had been used for the injection of
capital to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and expanding
its margin financing and underwriting business; (ii) approximately
HK$150,000,000 for expanding its money lending business; (iii)
approximately HK$12,000,000 for engaging in private equity
investments; (iv) approximately HK$9,000,000 for strengthening
the capital base of its subsidiaries and (v) the remaining balance of
approximately HK$34,000,000 for the general working capital of the
Group.

The Convertible Bonds to Mankind was exercised in approximately
51.74% of original principal amount, which was equivalent to the
amount of HK$57,300,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.06 on
27 April 2017. After completion of conversion, 955,000,000 shares
was being issued on 28 April 2017. Furthermore, tranche 1 of the
Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital was also exercised in full
in the principal amount of HK$125,661,000 at the conversion price
of HK$0.06 on 27 April 2017. After the completion of conversion,
2,094,350,000 shares was being issued on 28 April 2017.

Following the exercise of tranche 1 of the Convertible Bonds to
Riverhead Capital, completion of subscription of tranche 2 took
place on 28 June 2017. The net proceeds raised through the issue
of tranche 2 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital were
HK$60,000,000, in which approximately HK$50,000,000 will be used
for further expanding its margin financing business and approximately
HK$10,000,000 for its underwriting business.

Following the completion of tranche 2 of the Convertible Bonds to
Riverhead Capital, completion of subscription of tranche 3 took place
on 5 July 2018. The net proceeds raised through the issue of tranche
3 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital are HK$60,000,000,
in which approximately HK$36,000,000 had been used for further
strengthening the proprietary trading business, approximately
HK$12,000,000 had been used for engagement in private equity
investments such as pre-IPO investment, and approximately
HK$12,000,000 had been used for the asset management business
as seed money to the existing funds and/or new funds.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

The tranche 2 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital was due
on 28 June 2020. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 8 July 2020 (the “Amendment Deed Announcement”), the
Company and Riverhead Capital entered into an amendment deed
(the “Amendment Deed”) on 8 July 2020 (after trading hours),
pursuant to which Riverhead Capital conditionally agreed to extend
the maturity date of the tranche 2 of the Convertible Bonds to
Riverhead Capital from the date falling on the third anniversary of the
issue date of the tranche 2 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead
Capital (i.e. 28 June 2020) to the fifth anniversary of the issue date
of the tranche 2 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital
(i.e. 28 June 2022) (the “CB Extension”). Subject to fulfillment
of the conditions precedent as disclosed in Amendment Deed
Announcement, the Company shall execute a supplemental deed
poll (the “Supplemental Deed Poll”) to effect the CB Extension. The
CB Extension shall take effect from the date of the Supplemental
Deed Poll. Pursuant to Rule 28.05 of the Rules governing the Listing
of securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), any
alteration in the terms of convertible debt securities after issue must
be approved by the Stock Exchange, except where the alteration
takes effect automatically under the existing terms of such convertible
debt securities. The Company has applied to the Stock Exchange for
approval of the CB Extension contemplated under the Amendment
Deed. Such approval remains outstanding as at the date of this
report. For further details of the CB extension, please refer to the
Amendment Deed Announcement.

The tranche 3 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital was
exercised in 65% of original principal amount, which was equivalent
to the amount of HK$39,000,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.06
on 11 January 2019. After the completion of conversion, 650,000,000
shares was being issued on 14 January 2019.

The tranche 4 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital were not
issued due to the non-satisfaction of the conditions precedents set
out in the Riverhead Capital Subscription Agreement.

The Convertible Bonds to Mankind matured on 30 March 2020.
Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Convertible Bonds
to Mankind, the outstanding principal amount of HK$53,454,000
together with all accrued and unpaid interests was subsequently
repaid on 3 April 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEENWEIN (&)

The Convertible Bonds to PAL matured on 30 March 2020. Pursuant
to the terms and conditions of the Convertible Bonds to PAL, the
outstanding principal amount of HK$153,585,000 together with
all accrued and unpaid interests shall be paid by the Company
to the current bondholders of the Convertible Bonds to PAL. As at
the date of this report, the Company has fully settled all accrued
unpaid interest and repaid HK$134,000,000 of the outstanding
principal amount of HK$153,585,000. As disclosed in the voluntary
announcement of the Company dated 10 July 2020, the Company
has fully settled and repaid the balance of the outstanding principal
and interest in relation to the Convertible Bonds to PAL.

For details of the Cinda Subscription Agreement, PAL Subscription
Agreement and Riverhead Capital Subscription Agreement and the
relevant transactions, please refer to the circular dated 13 December
2016 and announcements of the Company dated 21 September
2016, 22 November 2016, 5 January 2017, 30 March 2017, 28 April
2017, 5 July 2018, 14 January 2019, 30 March 2020, 14 April 2020,
8 July 2020 and 10 July 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

With reference made to the mentioned circular and announcements,
Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds, tranche 2 of the Convertible Bonds
to Riverhead Capital and tranche 3 of the Convertible Bonds to
Riverhead Capital were issued pursuant to the resolutions passed at

the extraordinary general meeting held on 5 January 2017. The total

funds raised from and the details of the use of proceeds of the said

tranches are as follows:

Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds

Intended use

of the proceeds

as previously
disclosed

JE A PR 5B AT 1S RO AV R
E B

a. Expanding the
margin financing and
underwriting
businesses

BERITRAE MBHER

Approximate
amount to apply
on the proceeds

as previously
disclosed
FRSRIRIZ AT
RELFAEAKN
BMOEHE

HK$60,000,000
60,000,000 /& 7T

Utilized
proceeds

on the intended
use during the
year ended

31 March 2020
RBE-Z=%
#=RA=t+—H
L FEREE R
BHANME

FIH

HK$60,000,000
60,000,000 /7T

BEEEFWED T (&R

R2RRILR KR RS - B RTHRR
% FRWIRBEANAMBRESFRE=H
TRERNABRBESIRER T —HF—
AR BSRTHRRERIAEG LERBRAIRE
ETNET - BB LA ESHEEES
RS PTISSR MBI T

E—ftmRES

Unutilized
proceeds as at
31 March 2020

Expected timeline for
the use of unutilized
proceeds and reasons

R=ZBE=FHF= fordelay
B=+—HBX8 FERRBAMERENTE
AMBNRIE HRRREERER

HK$0 Not applicable

0BT MTEM

PEERERMEEERAR

-

“ECEFFER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEENWEIN (&)

Intended use
of the proceeds
as previously
disclosed

JE A iR B AT S FOR RO R

ER®

b. Establishment
of a joint venture
company to be

formed in the People’s
Republic of China

(the"PRC”)

(the “dV Company”)

under the Closer

Economic Partnership

Arrangement

R TEEREERH
BHZHE EPEAR
HANE ([HE ) sz

aERA ([EEA

al)

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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Approximate
amount to apply
on the proceeds

as previously
disclosed
FRSFRIEER AT
BEAXEAN
BOeRE

HK$120,000,000
120,000,00078 7T

Utilized
proceeds

on the intended
use during the
year ended

31 March 2020
RBE=B=%

F=A=+-H
I FEREER
BREANRE
RIE
HK$0
0BT

Unutilized
proceeds as at
31 March 2020
R-ZB-BF=
A=+—BXH

RS ®RIE

HK$120,000,000
120,000,000 78 7T

Expected timeline for
the use of unutilized
proceeds and reasons
for delay
ERARBRAERIENTE
HARFPR R EE IR TR

The proceeds is planned
to be applied in
accordance with
the intended use as
disclosed in the
circular dated
13 December 2016.
Documents to
supplement the
application made
to China Securities
Regulatory Commission
for establishment of
the JV Company was
last made on 27 July
2018 while the
timeframe is subject
to the said regulator’s
approval

FRSFIRSt B2 A HA
RZE—RETH
T=RZBHAKEZ
WMERGEER - F—X
k=D AVA= X~ VNl
BAXMHERZZT—N
FHtAZTHHRRT
THESEEEEES
g BRXBFLRE
BB HETEE



Intended use

of the proceeds

as previously
disclosed

SE A0 AT i 2B PR 1S RUE Y R
ERR

Expanding its money
lending business

BREMEXES

Engaging in private
equity investments

SHFEBRAIRE

Proprietary trading

BEEER

Strengthening the
capital base of
wealth management
business

HRTEERER
BARERE

Strengthening the
capital base of
corporate financing
business

HERPEREERB
BREE

General working capital
—REEER

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BEENWED T ()

Approximate
amount to apply
on the proceeds

as previously
disclosed
FRSFRIEE AT
HEAXEAN
BOeRE

HK$150,000,000
150,000,000 % 7T

HK$12,000,000
12,000,000/& 7T

HK$5,000,000

5,000,000/ 7T

HK$2,000,000
2,000,000787T

HK$2,000,000
2,000,000 & 7T

HK$34,000,000
34,000,00078 7T

Utilized
proceeds

on the intended
use during the
year ended

31 March 2020
RBE=Z=%
F=RA=+—8
L EEREER
RE)AENFRE

I

HK$150,000,000
150,000,000 47T

HK$12,000,000
12,000,000/& 7T

HK$5,000,000

5,000,000 7T

HK$2,000,000
2,000,000787T

HK$2,000,000
2,000,000 & 7T

HK$34,000,000
34,000,000 /7T

Unutilized
proceeds as at
31 March 2020
R-ZB-BF=
A=+—BX

RS RIE

HK$0
087

HK$0
0787

HK$0

0%

HK$0
0T

HK$0
0BT

HK$0
047

Expected timeline for
the use of unutilized
proceeds and reasons
for delay
ERARBRAERIENTE
HARFPR R IR T

Not applicable
NE

Not applicable
TNER

Not applicable
TNER

Not applicable
TNER

Not applicable
NER

Not applicable
TEH

PSR BERERAT
—EoTEER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BEENWRESN (H)

FRTRERTRRES

Tranche 2 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital

Utilized
proceeds

on the intended
use during the

Approximate year ended
amount to apply 31 March 2020
Intended use on the proceeds REZE Unutilized
of the proceeds as previously —EB-EHE proceeds as at Expected timeline
as previously disclosed =A=+—H 31 March 2020 for the use of
disclosed FrieFig IFEEREBEA R=ZZTZ=ZH unutilized proceeds
FRFRBASRENRE  EEARESR BREVARE ZHA=+—H &RAKRBAMERIEN
ERE ERNBAEHE MIE REARERIE FAHKR
Further expanding HK$50,000,000 HK$50,000,000 HK$0 Not applicable
the margin financing 50,000,000/87C 50,000,000 7T 08T TEMA
business
E—FPBERAFERREED
Further strengthening HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000 HK$0 Not applicable
the underwriting 10,000,000/8 7T 10,000,000 75 7T 0%t MTEA

business

E— TR BIHER

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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Intended use

of the proceeds

as previously
disclosed

SE R PR BB RS RUR I B
E R

Further strengthening
the proprietary
trading business

HE—FRERBEEERD

Further engagement
in private equity
investments
E—S2ENERANIRE

For the asset
management
business to be used
as seed money to the
existing funds
and/or new funds

HEEEREBMS -
AERAES R 3
MESHETES

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BEENWED T ()

Approximate
amount to apply
on the proceeds

as previously
disclosed
FrigFE
REMKER N
ERANBYERE

HK$36,000,000
36,000,000787T

HK$12,000,000
12,000,000 % 7T

HK$12,000,000
12,000,000/& 7T

Tranche 3 of the Convertible Bonds to Riverhead Capital

Utilized
proceeds

on the intended
use during the
year ended

31 March 2020
REBZE

.
=R=t—H
L FEREE A
BRE)ANRE

FIE

HK$36,000,000
36,000,000 7T

HK$12,000,000
12,000,000 7T

HK$12,000,000
12,000,000/8 7T

Unutilized
proceeds as at
31 March 2020

R=ZB=FF
=A=+—H
REVAFIBRIE

HK$0
0BT

HK$0
0%87T

HK$0
0&TT

FoRTRERTRRES

Expected timeline
for the use of
unutilized proceeds
ERAREAME
FRIE A H R PR

Not applicable

NE

Not applicable
NEm

Not applicable
TNER

PSR BERERAT
—EoTEER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEENWEIN (&)

OUTLOOK

The beginning of the year 2020 can be aptly summarised by the
quote “the only certainty in life is uncertainty”. But opportunities often
hide behind volatility, and they certainly favour daring and astute
players. In the foreseeable future, the global economy will inevitably
be under the influence of the development of the pandemic.
Meanwhile, with the unfolding of important events such as the US
presidential election, the global market will also be affected by the
strategic moves of two superpowers, namely China and the US,
as well as by new international relationships in a post-COVID-19
world. However, we firmly believe that the pandemic will pass, we
human beings will overcome the virus, and the long-term growth of
China’s overall economy will continue. We have strong confidence
in the Chinese market and invest a lot in it. Based in Hong Kong
and possessing a global vision, we provide services to Chinese
enterprises. This is how China Fortune is to position itself in the future
and this is its duty. China Fortune will adhere to its philosophy of “be
steady, accurate, quick and decisive”, keeping our existing business
going steadily, assessing market trends accurately, making decisions
quickly and executing them decisively. Under the principles of
stringent risk and cost control, we will achieve further breakthroughs
in our business and bring better rewards to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2020, the nominal value of the total issued share
capital of the Company was approximately HK$91,531,000
comprising 9,153,078,859 shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each
(the “Shares”).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions. For the licensed subsidiaries of the
Group, the Group ensures each of them maintains a liquid capital
level that is adequate to support the level of activities with a sufficient
buffer to accommodate increases in liquidity requirements arising
from potential increases in the level of business activities. During the
year the licensed subsidiaries of the Group complied with the liquid
capital requirements under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to Shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balances.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
lease liabilities, convertible bonds, corporate bonds, loan, cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
which comprises issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure regularly. As part of the
review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital, and take appropriate actions to
adjust the Group’s capital structure. The overall strategy of the Group
remains unchanged during the years ended 31 March 2020 and
2019.

For certain subsidiaries of the Group, they are regulated by the
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) of Hong Kong and
are required to comply with certain minimum capital requirements
according to the rules of SFC. Our management monitors, on a daily
basis, the subsidiaries’ liquid capital level to ensure they meet with
the minimum liquid capital requirement in accordance with the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules. The range
of liquid capital is from HK$100,000 to HK$3,000,000 or 5% of their
total adjusted liabilities, whichever is higher.

One of the subsidiaries of the Group is a member of the Professional
Insurance Brokers Association Limited and is required to maintain a
minimum net asset value of HK$100,000 at all times.

There is no non-compliance of the capital requirements of the Group
members imposed by the respective regulators during the years
ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

BEEENWmED N (&)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEENWEIN (&)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
AND GEARING RATIO

During the Reporting Year, the Group mainly financed its operations
by cash generated from operating activities and loans.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s current assets and current liabilities
were approximately HK$1,033,779,000 (2019: approximately
HK$1,349,194,000) and approximately HK$714,325,000 (2019:
approximately HK$857,039,000) respectively, while the current ratio
was about 1.45 times (2019: 1.57 times).

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s aggregate cash and cash
equivalents amounted to approximately HK$315,132,000 (2019:
approximately HK$243,755,000), of which approximately 35.38% was
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") (2019: approximately
68.98%), approximately 38.45% was denominated in United States
dollars (“USD”) (2019: approximately 25.37%), and approximately
26.17% was denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) (2019: approximately
5.65%), representing approximately 30.48% (2019: approximately
18.07%) of total current assets. As at 31 March 2020, the Group had
bank loans with accrued interest in approximately HK$252,600,000
(2019: approximately HK$100,259,000).

During the Reporting Year, no financial instruments were used for
hedging purposes. As at 31 March 2020, the gearing ratio, measured
on the basis of total borrowings as a percentage of equity attributable
to owners of the Company, was approximately 154.71% (2019:
approximately 129.15%). The increase in ratio was mainly due to the
increase in bank loan payables during the Reporting Year. The debt
ratio, defined as total debts over total assets, was approximately
72.27% (2019: approximately 72.55%).

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, no additional
corporate bond was issued.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

As at 31 March 2020, the Group held financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$222,173,000
(2019: approximately HK$121,288,000), with unrealised loss at
approximately HK$4,858,000 (2019: approximately HK$187,000).
The financial assets were traded by the Group and realised a net loss
of approximately HK$8,526,000 (2019: approximately HK$459,000)
during the year ended 31 March 2020.

INVESTMENT PRODUCTS

The Company had and would continue to seek opportunities to make
proper use of idle funds within the Group and, where appropriate,
facilities from bank(s) or other financial institution, to invest on medium
or low risk investment products, including but not limited to stocks,
bonds, derivatives and structural products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEENWEIN (&)

Reference is made to the announcement dated 29 August 2018
with regards to entering into a fund investment agreement. On
29 August 2018, Galaxy Way Development Limited (“GWDL"), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as the subscriber and,
amongst others, CEL Fortune Convertible Opportunities Feeder
Fund (the “CEL Fund”), a feeder fund, entered into an agreement
pursuant to which, among other things, GWDL committed to invest up
to, and had subscribed in four series at a total cost of, US$10 million
(approximately HK$77,240,000, representing approximately 6.62% of
the Company’s total assets as at 31 March 2020) interest in Everbright
Convertible Opportunities Fund, the master fund of the CEL Fund.
The interest mentioned above was completely disposed during the
Reporting Year and the investment performance is summarised as

below:
Investment Sales
costs proceeds
RERA BERBFE
US§000 US§000
TEL TEL
Series 1 Z311 4700 4914
Series 2 #5112 1,200 1,255
Series 3 #5113 1,800 1,952
Series 4 #5114 2,300 2,495
Total @i 10,000 10616

The master fund adopted broadly two investment strategies, namely,
the convertible bond strategy and the credit strategy. The convertible
bond strategy includes making investments in long dated equity
options through convertible bonds and convertible arbitrage.
The credit strategy includes making investments in fixed income
securities, including, without limitation, investment grade bonds,
below investment grade bonds, structured notes and mortgage-
backed securities. The master fund may also invest, to a lesser
extent, in deposits, money market instruments, equities, preference
shares and other types of securities. As all interest had already
been disposed during the Reporting Year, the Company makes no
comment to the future prospect of such investment.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020

ZIRMBBAA-ZT-—NFENAZ+NAAE
BRI VESREBEANLRT - R_F—N
FNAZTNA KRRV EZENE R T
MEEREBR QAR ([GWDL] - {EARE
A) £ (Ef8H#E) CEL Fortune Convertible
Opportunities Feeder Fund([ CEL Fund ] -
REEES) ST HE - Bl (AH8E)
GWDL 7[R CEL Fund®I & & % Everbright
Convertible Opportunities Fund#% & & %
10,000,000 3% 7t (4777,240,000 % 7T * #HE
RARBR_ZEEF=A=+—"HEE#LE
BEr46.62%) » W E1RZ & LK ARR
BHERS#ER - FIERERAREFE
REHE - RERBEHMWT -

Dividend

Realised Unrealised income for
gain loss the year
BERNE FEBFR KEERSMA
US§000 US§000 US§000
FEL TEL TEL
214 (176) -

55 (46) -

152 (169) 54

195 (285) 70

616 (676) 124

BEEREZRAMBRERE - A RRE
FRIEREERE - (JRRESFREERE
BAR R ES K RE ER B KRR
# - FERBERREBRTEWRERS B
BARREERMNES  BERKRELRE
7 BERMERBENMEMERES - #EET
WAL EREFR EFMEITA K
A BERNEMBENES - AR H0E
BERARBEHREL - WARATHZIR
BRRKAISERER -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

On 9 January 2019, GWDL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, subscribed with consideration of approximately
US$3,185,000 a bond-linked notes issued by BOCOM International
Balance Investment Limited (which principally engaged in securities
dealing and advising, and provision of asset management services)
and linked to the underlying bonds issued by Coastal Emerald
Limited (which has undertaken no business activities since the date of
its incorporation), a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Shandong Hi-
Speed Financial Group Limited (stock code: 412.HK, an investment
holding company with subsidiaries principally engaged in (i)
investment in securities; (ii) money lending; (iii) financial leasing; and
(iv) financial technology). The interest amount is calculated based
on a fixed rate of 4.4% per annum, multiplied by an amount of fixed
rate calculation amount (US$6,415,000) and a day count fraction. On
13 January 2020, the bond-linked notes matured and total amount of
US$568,000 (approximately HK$4,430,000) had been recognised as
interest income from the investment.

References are made to the announcement and further announcement
dated 11 April 2019 and 12 April 2019 respectively with regards
to a subscription of bonds. On 11 April 2019, Marvel Champion
Investment Limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
has placed an order, through a broker, to subscribe bonds issued by
Lv’an Chuangxing Limited, an offshore financing vehicle and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Greenland Holdings Corporation Limited (stock
code: 600606.SH, a state-controlled enterprise group headquartered
in Shanghai, with its main business in real estate, energy and
finance), at the investment costs of approximately HK$86,477,600
in total (including transaction cost). The principal amount of such
subscription was US$11,000,000 (approximately HK$86,477,600) in
compare with the aggregate principal amount of US$200,000,000 of
the same bonds. The fair value of the investment as at 31 March 2020
was US$10,937,000 (approximately HK$84,477,000, representing
about 7.24% of the Company’s total assets as at 31 March 2020).
The interest rate of the bonds was 6.38% per annum and as a future
prospect, it is expected that the bonds will continue to generate
a stable income to the Company based on this interest rate until
maturity on 15 April 2020. During the year an amount of US$670,000
(approximately HK$5,230,000) had been recognised as interest from
the investment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEENWEIN (&)

References are made to the announcement and further
announcement dated 9 May 2019 and 10 May 2019 respectively with
regards to a subscription of new senior notes. On 9 May 2019, Marvel
Champion Investment Limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, subscribed senior notes issued by E-house (China)
Enterprise Holdings Limited (stock code: 2048.HK) which offers, with
its subsidiaries, a wide range of services to the real estate industry,
including real estate agency services in the primary market, real
estate data and consulting services, and real estate brokerage
network services in the PRC, at the investment costs of approximately
HK$65,891,000 in total (including transaction cost). The principal
amount of such subscription was initially US$8,447,000 (approximately
HK$65,891,000) in compare with the aggregate principal amount of
US$300,000,000 of the same senior notes. Interest in the investment
worth approximately US$5,063,000 (approximately HK$39,488,000)
was disposed in during the Reporting Year with a realised gain
of US$130,000 (approximately HK$1,018,000), and the fair value
of the remaining interest as at 31 March 2020 was US$3,236,000
(approximately HK$24,996,000, representing 2.14% of the Company’s
total assets as at 31 March 2020). The coupon rate of the senior
notes was 7.75% per annum and as a future prospect, it is expected
that the senior notes will continue to generate a stable income to the
Company based on this interest rate and the remaining interest until
maturity on 28 February 2021. During the Reporting Year, an amount
of US$288,600 (approximately HK$2,251,000) had been recognised
as interest income from the investment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Reference is made to the announcement dated 20 May 2019 with
regards to an acquisition of notes. On 20 May 2019, Marvel Champion
Investment Limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
acquired notes issued by New Metro Global Limited. New Metro
Global Limited was a company with no material activities other than
issuance of senior notes and out-lending to Seazen Holdings Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 601155.SH, guarantor of the notes and a company which
indirectly wholly owns New Metro Global Limited, and which is mainly
engaged in development of residential properties and mixed-use
complexes for sale and investment). The total consideration and the
costs of such acquisition were about US$11,923,000 (approximately
HK$93,002,000) out of the notes’ aggregate principal amount of
US$300,000,000 at the purchase price of 99.36% of the principal
amount. The notes acquired were completely disposed at the
price of US$10,806,000 (approximately HK$84,287,000) during the
Reporting Year, with a realised loss of US$1,117,000 (approximately
HK$8,715,000). An interest income of US$150,000 (approximately
HK$1,166,000) was recognised from the investment during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEENWEIN (&)

Reference is made to the announcement dated 18 March 2020
with regards to an acquisition of notes. On 18 March 2020, Marvel
Champion Investment Limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, acquired notes issued by Ease Trade Global Limited in
the principal amount of US$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$78,000,000) at a total consideration of approximately
US$9,820,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$76,596,000). Ease
Trade Global Limited has carried on no business other than entering
into arrangements for the issue of the notes and lending of the net
proceeds thereof. Ease Trade Global Limited was a direct, wholly-
owned subsidiary of Poly Property Group Co., Limited (stock code:
0119.HK, guarantor of the notes), which in turn is a subsidiary of
China Poly Group Corporation Limited (Keepwell Provider of the
notes, a central state-owned enterprise under the supervision of
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of the State Council) . The fair value of the investment as at 31
March 2020 was US$9,824,400 (approximately HK$75,884,000,
representing about 6.50% of the Company’s total assets as at
31 March 2020). The interest rate of the bonds was 5.20% per annum
and as a future prospect, it is expected that the bonds will continue
to generate a stable income to the Company based on this interest
rate until maturity on 10 April 2021. During the year, an amount of
US$8,700 (approximately HK$68,000) had been recognised as
interest income from the investment.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has no material contingent liabilities
(2019: nil).

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

Except for the debt securities of approximately HK$185,357,000 and
the entire share of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Marvel
Champion Investment Limited, which have been charged as the
secured assets for the banking facilities, no asset of the Group was
subjected to any charge as at 31 March 2020 (2019: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has properly put in place credit management policies
which cover the examination of the approval of client’s trading and
credit limits, regular review of facilities granted, monitoring of credit
exposures and the follow up of credit risks associated with overdue
debts. The policies are reviewed and updated regularly.

FOREIGN CURRENCY FLUCTUATION

During the Reporting Year, the Group mainly used Hong Kong dollars
in its business transactions. The Board considers that the Group’s
foreign currency exposure is insignificant.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had 86 employees in total (2019:
101 employees). The related employees’ costs for the Reporting Year
(excluding Directors’ remunerations) amounted to approximately
HK$78,998,000 (2019: approximately HK$92,985,000). The Group
remunerated employees based on the industry practice and
individual’'s performance. Staff benefits include contributions to
retirement benefit scheme, medical allowance and other fringe
benefits. In addition, the Group maintains the share option scheme
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants based on their contributions. For details of the share
option scheme, please refer to the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME” in the Directors’ Report of this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EEZHAERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. XIE Zhichun, aged 62, was appointed as an executive Director,
the Chairman of the Board and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company (“Remuneration Committee”) in January
2017. He was further appointed as the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company (“Nomination Committee”) in March
2017. Mr. Xie is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Xie graduated from Heilongjiang University in 1982 with a
bachelor’'s degree in philosophy. He then further studied and obtained
a master’s degree in economics from Harbin Institute of Technology in
1993 and a doctorate in economics from Nankai University in 2004.

Mr. Xie has extensive experience in banking, securities and
investment fields. He is currently the vice chairman of the consultation
committee of Shenzhen Qianhai Shekou Free Trade Zone and
Qianhai Shenzhen Hong Kong Cooperation Zone. He is also a
professor of China Center for Special Economic Zone Research of
Shenzhen University and a postgraduate supervisor of PBC School
of Finance of Tsinghua University. Mr. Xie is currently an independent
non-executive director of China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company
Limited (listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) and China
Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd. (listed on both the main board of the
Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange).

Mr. Xie has held various key positions in certain banks, securities
firms and insurance companies in the PRC and listed companies in
Singapore, and has extensive experience in management of financial
institutions. Mr. Xie was an independent non-executive director of
SuperRobotics Limited (listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange)
from August 2018 to May 2019, a non-executive director of China
Smartpay Group Holdings Limited (listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange) from April 2017 to October 2018 and Elife Holdings
Limited (listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) from
November 2016 to July 2017. He was a deputy general manager of
China Investment Corporation (“CIC”) (F Bl & AR & T2 7)) and an
executive director and general manager of Central Huijin Investment
Ltd. (FRESHREBR ST R]), a subsidiary of CIC which makes
equity investment in key state-owned financial institutions in the PRC,
from 2014 to 2015. From 2008 to 2014, Mr. Xie was an executive
director and deputy general manager of China Everbright Group
Limited (7F Byt K& B 4272 7)) and the chairman of Sun Life Everbright
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (Jt AXBBASZREERRAF]) and Sun Life
Everbright Asset Management Co., Ltd. (X AKAEEEERMDER
‘A |]). From 2006 to 2008, he was the vice president and director of
reorganisation and listing office of China Everbright Bank Company
Limited. From 2001 to 2006, Mr. Xie was a director and chief executive
officer of Everbright Securities Company Limited, an executive
director of China Everbright Group and China Everbright Limited
(listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange), a vice chairman
(unattending) of China Enterprises Association (Singapore), a director
of Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co., Ltd. and Everbright Pramerica
Fund Management Co., Ltd. and a vice chairman (unattending) of
Securities Association of China.

From 1997 to 2001, he acted as an executive director and president
of China Everbright Asia-Pacific Company Limited (delisted from
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“Singapore
Exchange”) in May 2016), a director of Shenyin & Wanguo Securities
Co., Ltd., the chairman of China Everbright Asia-Pacific (New
Zealand) Company and China Everbright (South Africa) Company, a
director of China Everbright Asia-Pacific Industrial Investment Fund
Management Company (FEIE AT AT ERERSERAR]) and
Thailand Sunflower Company (Z=E[A H 22 F]). From 1992 to 1999,
Mr. Xie was a director and vice president of Everbright Securities
Company Limited, a director of China Everbright Financial Holding
Company (Hong Kong) (B} K& BIER A F(EH)), a general
manager of northern head office of Everbright Securities Company
Limited, a deputy director of preparation team and deputy president
of China Everbright Bank, Dalian Branch and the general manager
of the international business department of China Everbright Bank,
Heilongjiang Branch.
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Mr. ZHU Yi, aged 33, was appointed as an executive Director in
September 2018. He was further appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company and a member of each of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee in April 2020. He joined the
Group in May 2017 and is the department head of the Compliance
and Risk Management Department of the Group, responsible for
overseeing the legal and compliance, risk management and internal
control of the Group. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Zhu graduated from Peking University in 2008
with bachelor’s degrees in Laws and Economics respectively. He
then further obtained a master’s degree in Laws from Southern
Methodist University in the USA in 2010 and a master’'s degree in
Laws from Peking University in 2011. Mr. Zhu is a Chartered Financial
Analyst (CFA) charterholder, and possesses of a non-practicing
lawyer qualification in the PRC and the New York State of the USA
respectively.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhu worked with a leading global
information and communication infrastructure and smart terminal
provider in the PRC for several years, mainly responsible for the
legal and compliance, financial analysis and project management of
its cross-border capital investment projects. He has extensive and
hands-on experience in project evaluation, deal structure design, due
diligence, legal instruments drafting and negotiation, etc. in dealing
with the merger and acquisition, joint ventures, private equity and
venture capital projects of this group.

Ms. SUN Qing, aged 59, was appointed as an executive Director
in April 2020. She joined the Group in August 2019 and is the
department head of the Executive Directors Office of the Group,
responsible for human resources and administrative management of
the Group. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
Ms. Sun graduated from Beijing Correspondence College of Finance
and Commerce in 1988 majoring in industrial accounting. Ms. Sun
also obtained the accountant qualification awarded by the Ministry of
Finance of the People’s Republic of China in 1994.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Sun worked in Everbright Securities
Company Limited (listed on both the main board of the Stock
Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange) for nearly 20 years,
mainly responsible for the company’s finance, human resources and
comprehensive back office management. She has over 20 years
of working experience in the financial industry and has extensive
experience in various management tasks such as finance, auditing
and human resources.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. HAN Hanting, aged 35, was appointed as an executive Director
and a member of the Nomination Committee in October 2017. He
was re-designated as a non-executive Director and ceased to be a
member of the Nomination Committee in September 2018. Mr. Han
joined the Company in 2015 and was the Chief Operating Officer of
the Company from November 2016 to September 2018. Mr. Han was
an investment manager of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
during the period from 2009 to 2013. Mr. Han obtained a bachelor’s
degree from University of Warwick majoring in Mathematics,
Operational Research, Statistics and Economics in 2006.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Han had worked as a researcher in
CCB International Securities Limited. During the period from May
2013 to May 2016, he was an executive director of Momentum
Financial Holdings Limited (formerly known as Infinity Financial Group
(Holdings) Limited, listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange).
Mr. Han has more than 10 years of experience in investment banking
industry and had successfully led merger and acquisition projects for
a number of Hong Kong listed companies.

ESECHABEE (F)

EMAREE 2R FRLEERHEAREFK
MAERAE (RERXAERE LBEFRS
FrEm) EREO — T4 TEAEZAF
M ANEREGEREFEEIIF &
RemERGE - +FIELR  RU% -
B RANERERBERTIE T EHERE
= o

[EShpusl

FHITES

BRELE 3B RZTE—tFTHAES
ERPTEERIERZEEKE - BR=F
—N\FNAEFAETRIFNTES R TIBHER
REEZEGKE - BEARZT—AFNA
RRF WRZFE—RF+—AZEZZE—N
FRAMBEAARAREFEER - BiLE
YR _TTNFE T FHMETAE
E—H2EWBAR 2 IRELKIE - BEAR
—EERFNEREEFAZBERARIE
(FBE) B2 -

EMAREE 2/ - BEEBNZRERE
HFARARERMER - R_F—=F0A
E-TRFRAHRE - BRLERERER
BR2R (AIRFRMTEE (ER) ERA
Al REERPTER L) MITES - BBEL
RIRERITRABEEEBTFLR  LEAK
B&E B LM ABKNTREESHEE -

FEERSREEERAR
S

33



34

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

EECHHERE (&)

Mr. CHEN Zhiwei, aged 36, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in April 2018. Mr. Chen graduated from Tsinghua University
with a bachelor’'s degree in Economics in 2004. He then further
studied at the National University of Singapore and obtained a
master’s degree in Science (Estate Management) in 2009.

Mr. Chen has over 10 years of investment and research experience in
the finance industry. He joined China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company
Limited (“Cinda (HK)”) in 2010 and is currently the deputy general
manager of Cinda (HK), responsible for managing the investment
and financing businesses of Cinda (HK). Mr. Chen is currently an
executive director of Zhongchang International Holdings Group
Limited (listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange). He is also
a non-executive director of Modern Land (China) Co., Limited (listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange), Silver Grant International
Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as Silver Grant International
Industries Limited, listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange)
and SouthGobi Resources Ltd. (listed on both the main board of the
Stock Exchange and the Toronto Stock Exchange).

Mr. Chen was the executive assistant to the chairman of TIG Group
in Singapore between 2007 and 2010, responsible for TIG Group’s
private equity investment business in the Greater China region. He
was a research scholar at the National University of Singapore during
2005 and 2007.

Mr. WU Ling, aged 66, was appointed as a non-executive Director
in December 2011. Mr. Wu holds a bachelor’'s degree in Economics
from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law. He is a senior
economist and has over 20 years of experience in the area of banking
and financial services related business in the PRC. Mr. Wu was an
executive director and vice chairman of Cinda (HK).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Mr. CHAN Kin Sang, aged 68, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in July 2014. He is also a member of the
audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”). Mr. Chan is
currently a senior partner of Messrs. Peter K.S. Chan & Co., Solicitors
and Notaries (a law firm which provides various services including
corporate matters and litigations). Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Laws from the University of Hong Kong in 1979 and a
postgraduate certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong
in 1980. He has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong since
April 1982 and has been admitted as a Notary Public since April
1997 and a China-appointed Attesting Officer since January 2000.
Mr. Chan has also been a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors since August 2004 and a chairman of the Appeal Tribunal
(Buildings Ordinance Cap.123) since February 2007.

Mr. Chan is currently a non-executive director of Sino Harbour
Holdings Group Limited (listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange), an independent non-executive director of Huakang
Biomedical Holdings Company Limited (listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange) and Pak Tak International Limited (listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange) and a director of Guanghe Landscape
Culture Communication Co., Ltd., Shanxi (listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange).

Over the past three years, Mr. Chan was a non-executive director of
Pan Hong Holdings Group Limited from August 2006 to March 2020
(listed on the Singapore Exchange) and Link-Asia International Co.
Ltd. (formerly known as China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited,
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) from October 2016
to July 2017. He was also an independent non-executive director of
Luxking Group Holdings Limited from June 2005 to October 2019
(listed on the Singapore Exchange), Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited
from May 2014 to September 2019 (listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange) and China Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited from
November 2009 to September 2017 (delisted from the main board of
the Stock Exchange since February 2019).
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Mr. CHIU Kung Chik, aged 35, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in March 2017. He was re-designated
from a member of the Audit Committee to the chairman of the
Audit Committee in March 2020. He is also the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Chiu graduated from the University of Chicago with
a bachelor’s degree in Economics. He has extensive experience
and knowledge in investment banking, capital financing, corporate
restructuring, merger and acquisition, complex transaction
structuring, etc. Mr. Chiu currently serves as an independent non-
executive director of Beijing Enterprises Clean Energy Group Limited
(listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange).

From 2008 to 2015, Mr. Chiu worked with UBS AG in the investment
banking department in its Hong Kong office, primarily focusing
on advising large scale corporate clients on their capital market
activities. During the aforesaid period, he had completed a number
of high-profile capital market transactions, merger and acquisition
transactions as well as debt financing transactions.

Mr. LI Gaofeng, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee in
October 2017. Mr. Li graduated from Henan Institute of Finance
and Economics with a bachelor's degree in Economics majoring in
Investment Management in 1995. He further obtained a master’s
degree in Economics majoring in International Finance from Tianjin
University of Finance and Economics in 1998. Mr. Li is a non-
practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. Li has worked in the insurance and securities sectors for many
years and has rich experience in finance, investment and investor
relations. He worked for Sun Life Everbright Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
for several years and served as the deputy general manager, chief
financial officer and chief investment officer. He also held senior
management positions with the financial institutes such as securities
companies and mutual funds in the PRC.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. LIU Xin, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in March 2020. He is also a member of each of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Liu graduated from Hubei University in 1982 with a
bachelor’s degree in Arts. He then further obtained a master’s degree
in Economics from Wuhan University in 1989 and a doctor’'s degree
majoring in Economics from The University of Leeds in 2007. Mr. Liu
was honoured as a Senior Economist by the People’s Bank of China in
1996. He also published extensively in world class journals and books
as a co-author with well-known British scholars. Mr. Liu is currently a
senior advisor of Deloitte China.

Mr. Liu has extensive experience and knowledge in finance and
investment banking. From 2007 to 2018, Mr. Liu worked in BNP
Paribas Hong Kong Branch and was appointed as the managing
director as well as the head of Global Risk Solutions (China) in
Global Markets department and Fixed Income department. Mr. Liu
also worked with China’s State Administration of Foreign Exchange
(SAFE) as the director of the Investment Division from 1989 to 2001,
and accumulated rich knowledge in interpreting Chinese policy and
regulations for the Chinese financial system.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEgWRES

The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 117 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: nil).

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND CONVERTIBLE
BONDS

Details of movements in the share capital and convertible bonds of
the Company during the Reporting Year are set out in notes 28 and
30 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Reporting Year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 120 of this annual report.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company’s distributable reserve
is approximately of HK$127,526,000 and HK$189,348,000 as at 31
March 2020 and 2019 respectively.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements and
reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 252 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020
is set out in the section headed "MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS” on pages 8 to 29 of this annual report. These discussions
form part of this Directors’ Report.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, as far as the Board and the
management are aware, there was no breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees and customers to meet its short-term
and long-term business goals. During the year ended 31 March 2020,
there was no material and significant dispute between the Group and
its employees and customers.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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The Group is committed to operate in compliance with the applicable
environmental laws as well as to protect the environment by
minimizing the negative impact of the Group’s existing business
activities on the environment.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s original share option scheme was adopted on 12
February 2003 (the “2003 Scheme”), which was early terminated
and replaced by a new share option scheme approved by the
Shareholders on 19 August 2011 (the “2012 Scheme”). A summary of
the 2012 Scheme is set out below:

1. Purpose . To provide incentives and rewards to the
eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations.

2. Participants . Eligible participants include any employee
(including Directors), any business associate,
any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support
to the Group or any invested entity, and any
shareholder of any member of the Group
or any invested entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the
Group or an invested entity.

3. Total number of :As approved by the Shareholders at the
shares available annual general meeting of the Company held
for issue under on 30 August 2018 (the “2018 AGM”), the
the 2012 Scheme scheme limit of the 2012 Scheme has been
and the percentage refreshed to issue share options to subscribe
of the issued shares for up to 708,607,885 Shares, representing
that it represents 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
as at the date of as at the date of the 2018 AGM.

this annual report

The total number of Shares available for
issue under the 2012 Scheme as at the
date of this annual report was 708,607,885
Shares, representing approximately 7.74%
of the Shares in issue as at the date of this
annual report.
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4. Maximum entitlement
of each participant

5. Period within which
the shares must be
taken up under
an option

6. Minimum period for
which an option
must be held
before it can be
exercised

7. Amount payable on
acceptance of the
option and the
period within which
payments shall be
made

Unless approved by the Shareholders, the
total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options
granted to any grantee (including both
exercised and outstanding share options) in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the Shares then in
issue.

For any grant of share options to a substantial
Shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director or any of their respective associates
would result in the Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all share options
already granted or to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
to such person in any 12-month period exceed
0.1% of the Shares then in issue and with an
aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million, the
proposed grant is also subject to the approval
by the Shareholders.

The period during which the share option
may be exercised is determined by the
Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
share option may be exercised more than 10
years after it has been granted.

As determined by the Board.

HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the Company
upon acceptance of the share option which
must be accepted within 28 days from the
date of offer.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)

ESEHES (

8. Basis of determining
the exercise price

9. Remaining life of
the 2012 Scheme

")

The subscription price shall be determined
solely by the Directors, which shall not be
less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
of the share option; (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the share option; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share on the date of
grant of the share option.

One year and two months. The 2012 Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years from its adoption date until 18
August 2021, subject to the early termination
provisions contained therein.

No share option was granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled during
the year ended 31 March 2020 under the 2012 Scheme.

As at 31 March 2020, the Company did not have any outstanding

share options granted but yet to be exercised under the 2012

Scheme.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the

date of this Directors’ Report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. XIE Zhichun (Chairman)
Mr. ZHU Yi (Chief Executive Officer?)

Ms. SUN Qing

(appointed on 24 April 2020)

Mr. HUA Yang

(resigned on 24 April 2020)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. HAN Hanting
Mr. CHEN Zhiwei
Mr. WU Ling

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. CHAN Kin Sang
Mr. CHIU Kung Chik
Mr. LI Gaofeng
Mr. LIU Xin
(appointed on 10 March 2020)
Mr. NG Kay Kwok
(resigned on 13 December 2019)

# Mr. ZHU Yi was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with effect from 24 April 2020.

Pursuant to Article 99 of the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”), any Director appointed by the Board to fill
a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only
until the next following general meeting of the Company (in the case
of filling a casual vacancy) or until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company (in the case of an addition to the Board) and
shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

Accordingly, Mr. LIU Xin and Ms. SUN Qing will hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”)
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Pursuant to Article 116 of the Articles of Association, at each AGM
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Accordingly, Mr. HAN Hanting, Mr. WU Ling, Mr. CHAN Kin Sang and
Mr. LI Gaofeng shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 30 to 37 of
this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEEHRESE (H)

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company has entered into employment contracts or letters of
appointment with each of the Directors for a specific term, subject to
the renewal provisions contained therein and retirement by rotation
and re-election at the AGMs. None of the Directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM has employment contract or letter
of appointment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director in defending
any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given
in his favor, or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has maintained Directors’ liability insurance during the
year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this annual report
which provides appropriate cover for the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of each of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company and their associates in
the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register maintained by the
Company referred to therein, or which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Interest in

Name of Director Capacity Shares
B 51 R G 2w
Mr. XIE Zhichun Interest of controlled 2,744,350,000

(“Mr. Xie”) (hete) corporation
FREETAE Xt ERR

(Mg 54 )t
Note:

Mr. Xie was deemed to be interested in 2,744,350,000 Shares held by
Riverhead Capital (a company which was owned as to 80% by Mr. Xie) and
1,350,000,000 underlying shares of the Company which may be issued upon
the exercise of the conversion rights attaching to the convertible bonds (at
the conversion price of HK$0.06 per conversion share) in an aggregate
outstanding principal balance amount of HK$81,000,000 issued by the
Company to Riverhead Capital on 28 June 2017 and 5 July 2018 respectively
pursuant to the subscription agreement entered into between the Company
and Riverhead Capital on 22 November 2016 subject to the fulfillment of the
conditions as contained therein.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the Directors
nor the chief executive of the Company, had or was deemed to have
any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO) or were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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Approximate
percentage

Total interest of the

Interest in in Shares/ issued share
underlying underlying capital of the
shares shares Company
R, EEDT

REERH HERH 2 BERITRA
2R R BAEIH
1,350,000,000 4,094,350,000 44.73%
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY”,
at no time during the Reporting Year was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company, their respective spouse or minor
children (natural or adopted) to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Mr. Xie is the controlling shareholder of Riverhead Capital, who holds
80% of the shareholding interests in this company. Save as disclosed
in the section headed “ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS” under
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual
report, no contract of significance to which the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the Reporting Year.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the interests of the Directors in
the business which compete or are likely to compete either directly or
indirectly, with businesses of the Group (“Competing Businesses”)
as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules were as

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEERESE (H)

EERNGERB2ER

REE-_T_TF-_A=1t—HUIFE &
ENERSERENEEEBRF NS
F2EL ([BEREK]) PHERARE TR
QB TRE st T

follows:

Name of Director

EEns

Mr. Xie
(Executive Director)

Rkt
(BITEE)

Mr. HAN Hanting
(Non-executive Director)
BRHELE
(FEHTTEE)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors was interested in
any business apart from the Group’s businesses which compete or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with businesses of the

Group.

Name of company
NSRS

China Taiping Insurance
Holdings Co. Ltd.
(“Taiping Insurance”)

HEIR TIRBRIZERR B PR A 7]
([ AFARRR])

China Minsheng Banking
Corp. Ltd.
(“Minsheng Banking”)

FRRERITRNARAF
([RE®RT])

CVP Securities Ltd.
(“CVP")

ENBHFBERAR
(TEX])

Description of
Competing
Businesses

BEERFE

Fund and asset
management

EENEEEE

Fund and asset
management, securities
dealing and broking,
investment banking

HehEEER
BHFEE R
RERITER

Securities broking and

margin financing

B RIFRRE

A o

B Lt PR E SN
BN B R HF R A BB F 2 (IR X BT

Nature of interest

BHEtE

As an independent

non-executive director of
Taiping Insurance

AFERB BUIMITES

As an independent
non-executive director of
Minsheng Banking

RAERITZEUIFNTES

As a non-executive director
of CVP
ENZIEHTES

BEEENEEREE

FEERSREEERAR
S
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2020, as far as is known to the Directors and as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO, the substantial Shareholders (other than
a Director or a chief executive of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company

TERRER

R-Z-TF=—A=+—B BEZEMAK
RIBAR D AR E 7 M E (D) % 336 167ATF
EZERMARE  ETBERR (ARAES
SEATHARE RSN MR R SARREA D
R R BORR T

were as follows:

Interest in

Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares

RRE®, %2 5 R 2 ER

Riverhead Capital (International) Beneficial owner 2,744,350,000
Management Co., Ltd.
(“Riverhead Capital”) (!

THRER (BR) ERERAF ERBEBA 2,744,350,000
([TTEEXR])H=D

Ms. SUN Zhuyin Interest of Spouse 2,744,350,000
(“Ms. Sun’”) (Noe?)

Rzt flEER 2,744,350,000
(Bt |)me=n

Jadehero Limited Beneficial owner 800,000,000
(“Jadehero”) Mote?)

BERERAA ERBEBA 800,000,000
([BE|)me2)

Southlead Limited Interest of controlled 800,000,000
(“Southlead”) MNoe2 corporation

FEERAA REHEEER 800,000,000
(T4ER )2

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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Total interest

Approximate
percentage
of the

Interest in in Shares and issued share
underlying underlying capital of the
shares shares Company
RRB R (R

REBERS BEkez BRTRA
ZREH R BOEAL
1,350,000,000 4,094,350,000 44.73%
1,350,000,000 4,094,350,000 44.73%
1,350,000,000 4,094,350,000 44.73%
1,350,000,000 4,094,350,000 44.73%
— 800,000,000 8.74%

— 800,000,000 8.74%

— 800,000,000 8.74%

— 800,000,000 8.74%



Interest in
Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares
BRRER/ BE L) RIRG 2 #

Santo Limited (“Santo”) (2

Beneficial owner

1,416,430,000

Santo Limited ([ Santo )2 EREEA 1,416,430,000

WHOLE ADVANCE LIMITED Interest of controlled 2,216,430,000
(“Whole Advance ) (Note2) corporation

ABERA REtEEER 2,216,430,000
Uégwﬁﬂ

iberal Expansion Limite nterest of controlle 216,430,

Liberal E ion Limited | f lled 2,216,430,000
(“Liberal Expansion”) o2 icorporation

B BRAE] REtEEER 2,216,430,000
([ &8k ]) =2

I u Guang nterest of controlle 216,430,

Mr. ZHAO Xu G | f lled 2,216,430,000
(“Mr. Zhao”) (Noe2) corporation

BN LE REtEEER 2,216,430,000
([R5 )2

Notes:

1. As at 31 March 2020, Riverhead Capital beneficially held 2,744,350,000

Shares and 1,350,000,000 underlying shares of the Company which may
be issued upon the exercise of the conversion rights attaching to the
convertible bonds (at the conversion price of HK$0.06 per conversion
share) in an aggregate outstanding principal balance amount of
HK$81,000,000 issued by the Company to Riverhead Capital on 28
June 2017 and 5 July 2018 respectively pursuant to the subscription
agreement entered into between the Company and Riverhead Capital
on 22 November 2016 subject to the fulfillment of the conditions as
contained therein. Riverhead Capital is owned as to 80% by Mr. Xie (the
executive Director and Chairman of the Company) who is also the sole
director of Riverhead Capital. For the purpose of the SFO, Mr. Xie was
deemed to be interested in the Shares and underlying shares held by
Riverhead Capital.

Ms. Sun is the spouse of Mr. Xie, therefore, Ms. Sun was deemed to
be interested in 2,744,350,000 Shares and 1,350,000,000 underlying
shares of the Company which Mr. Xie has a deemed interest therein
under the SFO.
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Total interest of the

Interest in in Shares and issued share
underlying underlying capital of the
shares shares Company
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— 1,416,430,000 15.47%
— 1,416,430,000 15.47%
— 2,216,430,000 24.22%
— 2,216,430,000 24.22%
— 2,216,430,000 24.22%
— 2,216,430,000 24.22%
— 2,216,430,000 24.22%
— 2,216,430,000 24.22%
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2. As at 31 March 2020, Jadehero beneficially held 800,000,000 Shares
and Santo beneficially held 1,416,430,000 Shares. Jadehero is owned
as to 80% by Southlead. Southlead was deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Jadehero. Southlead and Santo are wholly-owned by
Whole Advance. Whole Advance is wholly-owned by Liberal Expansion
which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr. Zhao. For the purpose of the SFO,
Mr. Zhao, Liberal Expansion and Whole Advance were deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Jadehero and Santo.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the Directors were
not aware of any substantial Shareholder (who was not the Director or
chief executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position
in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which was
required to be entered in the aforesaid register pursuant to section
336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements. These related party transactions
are either connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions fully exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and/or administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the Reporting Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share was held by the public as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, revenue attributable to the 5
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 35.79%
of the Group'’s total revenue. The Group’s largest customer accounted
for approximately 10.81% of the Group’s total revenue.

The Group is a provider of financial services. In the opinion of the
Directors, it is therefore of no value to disclose details of the Group’s
suppliers.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers during the year ended 31 March 2020.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group and the
employer’s retirement benefit costs charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Reporting Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company’s compliance with the corporate governance codes are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 55 to 78 of this
annual report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING YEAR

Details of the events after the Reporting Year are set out in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements.

TAXATION OF HOLDERS OF SHARES

The purchase, sale and transfer of Shares registered in the
Company’s Hong Kong branch register of members will be subject
to Hong Kong stamp duty. The current rate charged on each of the
purchaser and seller (or transferee and transferor) is 0.1% of the
consideration or, if greater, the fair value of the Shares being bought/
sold or transferred (rounded up to the nearest HK$'000). In addition, a
fixed duty of HK$5.00 is currently payable on an instrument of transfer
of Shares.

Profits from dealings in the Share arising in or derived from Hong
Kong may also be subject to Hong Kong profits tax.

Under the present Cayman Islands laws, transfers and other
dispositions of Shares are exempt from Cayman Islands stamp duty.

Intending holders and investors of the Shares are recommended
to consult their professional advisers if they are in any doubt as
to the taxation implications (including tax relief) of subscribing
for, purchasing, holding, disposing of or dealing in Shares. It is
emphasized that none of the Company or its Directors or officers will
accept any responsibility for any tax effect on, or liabilities of, holders
of Shares resulting from their subscription for, purchase, holding,
disposal of or dealing in such Shares.
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CHANGE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
gﬂEIEEg RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change in
Directors’ information of the Company since 29 November 2019
(i.e. the date of the Board’s approval of the interim results for the six
months ended 30 September 2019) to 29 June 2020 (i.e. the date
of the Board’s approval of the annual results for the year ended
31 March 2020) were as follows:

° The basic salary of Mr. XIE Zhichun was decreased to
HK$4,800,000 per annum with effect from 1 April 2020.

° Mr. CHAN Kin Sang was appointed as a non-executive director
of Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited with effect from 1 April
2020 and ceased to be a non-executive director of Pan Hong
Holdings Group Limited with effect from 31 March 2020.

° Mr. CHEN Zhiwei was appointed as an executive director of
Zhongchang International Holdings Group Limited with effect
from 13 May 2020.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in the Directors’
information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules since the date of the interim report of the Company
for the period ended 30 September 2019 and up to the date of this
report.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Audit Committee currently comprises four independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. CHIU Kung Chik (chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. CHAN Kin Sang, Mr. LI Gaofeng and Mr. LIU
Xin.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed the internal controls and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited consolidated financial statements
and annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEEHRESE (H)

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2020 were audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong
Limited (“Grant Thornton”) which will retire at the conclusion of
the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed to the Shareholders to
re-appoint Grant Thornton as auditor of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no change in auditor of the

Company in any of the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

ZHUYi
Director

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company’s commitment to the highest standards of corporate
governance is driven by the Board which, led by the Chairman of the
Company, assumes overall responsibility for the governance of the
Company, taking into account of the interests of the Shareholders,
the development of its businesses and the changing external
environment.

The Company believes that good corporate governance is
fundamental in ensuring that the Company is well managed in the
interests of all of its Shareholders.

The Company has adopted the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has
complied with all code provisions and, where appropriate, met the
recommended best practices of the CG Code, save as disclosed
below:

Following the resignation of Mr. NG Kay Kwok on 13 December 2019,
the Board no longer has an independent non-executive director with
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2)
and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. In addition, there is a vacancy
for chairman of the Audit Committee under Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules. The Company also fails to meet the requirement of establishing
a Remuneration Committee comprising a majority of independent
non-executive directors under Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules, the
requirement of establishing a Nomination Committee comprising a
majority of independent non-executive directors under code provision
A.5.1 of the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules and the terms of reference of the relevant
committees of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EREARE (FH)

On 10 March 2020, the Board appointed Mr. LIU Xin as an
independent non-executive Director, and a member of each of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee; and re-designated Mr. CHIU Kung Chik, being an
existing independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee, as the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

Following the aforesaid appointments, the Company has complied
with Rules 3.10(2), 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules as well as code
provision A.5.1 of the CG Code under Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules and the terms of reference of the relevant committees of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transaction. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the Reporting Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is collectively responsible for formulating of the Group’s
overall strategy, reviewing and monitoring the Group’s business
operations and performance, preparing and approving financial
statements, considering and approving material contracts and
transactions as well as other significant policies and financial matters.
The Board takes the responsibility to oversee internal controls and
risk management systems and to review of the effectiveness of such
systems, monitoring the performance of the senior management
and determining the policy for corporate governance. The Board
also gives clear directions as to the powers delegated to the senior
management for the day-to-day operation, business strategies and
administrative functions of the Group.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

TRERHE (F)

As at 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this annual report, the RIZE-TF=A=+—HAKEEARFHA
composition of the Board was as follows: H - EFg2EKET

Executive Directors Non-executive Directors
HITES FHITES

Mr. XIE Zhichun (Chairman) Mr. HAN Hanting
fRfaESRE (F/E) ERMESLE

Mr. ZHU Yi Mr. CHEN Zhiwei
KRTAE PRAESE

Ms. SUN Qing (appointed on 24 April 2020) Mr. WU Ling
BRELt (RZFE-_FFMA-—+WHEST) REXE
Mr. HUA Yang (resigned on 24 April 2020)

EiGkt (ROFE_FFMNA_+HHET)

Independent non-executive
Directors
BYFHITES

Mr. CHAN Kin Sang

BRIE A 54

Mr. CHIU Kung Chik

[i:WNICP e

Mr. LI Gaofeng

FRlEEE

Mr. LIU Xin
(appointed on 10 March 2020)

ZIREE
(RZFE=ZFF=[H+HEZ(F)

The Chairman and the independent non-executive Directors have met  ERRBEVIFRITEETHEHMES L EEE
at least once every year without the presence of other Directors and ~ TESWERLT - BFEKFIRIT—RE
the management and such meeting was held on 29 November 2019. & MARgHRCRZE—NF+—HA=TAh

AT o
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EREARE (FH)

Number of Board meetings, committees meetings and general REZE-_ZT-_FTF=A=+—HIEFERNE
meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2020 and the {IZXEEEE% ZEEZRMRERE

attendance rate of the individual Directors are set out below: HFEURERNES 2 HFEREHNNT
Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Directors (“BM") (“ACM”) (“RCM”) (“NCM”) (“AGM”)
B F0) R’ =R
Ezged ZEBER ZEBEE ZEEEE BERE
(Tgxg (BxZeg (FHzEEE (REZE8 (TREBF
=g =) =g ) g%l g% X&)
Executive Directors BiIES
XIE Zhichun (Chairman) BEE (2F) 5/5 N/ATEA 2/2 2/2 11
ZHU Yi (Note ) K= 5/5 N/ATEA N/ATEA N/ATEA 11
SUN Qing (Nete2) - AL N/ATEA N/ATEA N/ATEA N/ATEA N/ATEA
HUA Yang (Nee3) R 5/5 N/ATEA 2/2 2/2 11
Non-executive Directors FHTES
HAN Hanting BEYE 5/5 N/AT N/AT A N/AT R 11
CHEN Zhiwei BRE(E 5/5 N/ATiEA N/ATEA N/ATEA 11
WU Ling R % 5/5 N/ATEA N/ATEA N/ATEA 0N
Independent non-executive ~ BYEHITES
Directors
CHAN Kin Sang BRiEE 5/5 3/3 N/ATiEA N/ATEA 11
CHIU Kung Chik (Nete4) HAg M=) 5/5 3/3 2/2 2/2 11
LI Gaofeng Fri 5/5 3/3 2/2 2/2 0/1
LIU Xin (Note5) g fr s 1/ 11 N/ATEA N/ATEA N/ATEA
NG Kay Kwok (Nte®) RAELE (o) 313 2/2 1/1 /1 A

China Fortune Financial Group Limited

o8 Annual Report 2020



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. ZHU Yi was appointed as a member of each of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee on 24 April 2020.

2. Ms. SUN Qing was appointed as a Director on 24 April 2020.

3. Mr. HUA Yang resigned as a Director and a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee on 24 April
2020.

4. Mr. CHIU Kung Chik was re-designated from a member of the Audit
Committee to the Chairman of the Audit Committee on 10 March 2020.

5. Mr. LIU Xin was appointed as a Director and a member of each of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee on 10 March 2020. One BM and one ACM were held but no
RCM, NCM and AGM were held since his appointment.

6. Mr. NG Kay Kwok resigned as a Director on 13 December 2019. Three
BMs, two ACMs, one RCM, one NCM and one AGM were held prior to
his resignation.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence as
required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

The biographical details of all existing Directors are set out in the
section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS” of this
annual report. None of the Directors has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s))
with other Board members.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EREARE (FH)

The Board is provided with relevant information concerning matters
to be brought for its decision. Regular Board meetings are held at
approximately quarterly intervals and at least 14 days notice will
be given to the Directors before each Board meeting is held. Board
papers are dispatched to the Directors at least 3 days prior to the
meetings.

Directors have to declare their interests before the meetings in
accordance with the Articles of Association. Directors who are
considered to have a conflict of interest or material interests in the
proposed transactions or issues to be discussed will not be counted
as the quorum of the meeting and are required to abstain from voting
on the relevant resolutions.

The Company maintains the minutes of the Board meetings for
inspection by Directors.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and the
Executive Committee of the Company (the “Executive Committee”).
Decisions on important matters are reserved to the Board while
decisions on the Group’s general operations are delegated to the
Executive Committee. Important matters including but not limited to
major acquisitions and disposals, annual budgets, approval of annual
and interim results, other significant operational and financial matters
and those affecting the Group’s strategic policies.

Newly appointed Directors are provided with briefings and orientation
on their legal and other responsibilities as a Director and the role of
the Board.

Information package comprising the latest development in laws,
rules and regulations relating to the duties and responsibilities of
Directors will be forwarded to each Director from time to time for their
information and reference. “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” published
by the Companies Registry of Hong Kong, and “Guidelines for
Directors” and “Guide for Independent Non-Executive Directors”
published by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors have also been
forwarded to each newly appointed Director for their information and
reference.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

In addition, the Company has also from time to time provided
information and briefings to Directors on the latest development
of the laws, rules and regulations relating to Directors’ duties and
responsibilities. The Company has, on an individual basis, advised
Directors on queries or issues arising from the performance of their
duties.

During the year under review, one in-house seminar on “Breaches
of directors’ duties under the listing rules” was provided by the
Company to its Directors. Besides, individual Director who had
participated in other continuous professional training organized by
professional bodies and/or government authorities also provided the
Company with his records of continuous professional development.
Such training records were kept by the Company.

The Directors’ knowledge and skills are continuously developed and
refreshed by the following means:

(1) Participation in in-house seminars and/or briefings provided by
the Company relating to the updates on legal and regulatory,
corporate governance requirements and industry-related issues;

(2) Participation in the continuous professional training seminars/
conferences/courses/workshops organized by other professional
bodies and/or government authorities on topics relating to
directors’ duties and/or their respective professionalism; and

(8) Reading materials relating to the latest development in laws,
rules and regulations in relation to the directors’ duties and
responsibilities, corporate governance and finance industry,
as well as watching videos prepared by the Stock Exchange in
relation to the aforesaid topics.
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TRERRE (H)

During the Reporting Year, all the Directors participated in continuous
professional development and the relevant details are set out below:

Members of the Board
EEERE

Executive Directors
XIE Zhichun (Chairman)

ZHUYi

SUN Qing (appointed on 24 April 2020)

HUA Yang (resigned on 24 April 2020)

Non-executive Directors

HAN Hanting

CHEN Zhiwei

WU Ling

Independent non-executive Directors

CHAN Kin Sang

CHIU Kung Chik (Netei)

LI Gaofeng

LIU Xin (appointed on 10 March 2020) N
NG Kay Kwok (resigned on 13 December 2019) Nl

Notes:

BTES
REE (/F)

R

BE (R-FE_FTF0H—1HHEZE)
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g (R-FE_FFMAH -1 HHEHE)

+

FHTES
EHE

PR

ol

R%&

BYFHITES
PRf2AE

ﬁ@g (BH&ED)

DD}-

Folg

B\ (R FE=FFE= f+ HES(F) WD

QB (R E— S FEA = G = [ EHE) D

fax

RAREFE  MEESC2HEBEZREDR
& A EEINT

Training(s)
received

Xz

A
(1)&(3)
(1) 5(3)

()  Mr. CHIU Kung Chik and Mr. NG Kay Kwok were absent from the () HEAEAERRHBEAETELEARQR

in-house seminar provided by the Company on 29 November 2019.

g -

RZBE-AF+—AZTHLBERNAH

(i) No in-house seminar was provided by the Company on or after (i) RZZTZEF=A+HIZERAT L E

10 March 2020.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR THE
DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover in
respect of possible legal actions against its Directors and officers.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code states that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are currently performed by Mr. XIE
Zhichun and Mr. ZHU Yi respectively.

The Chairman is responsible for taking the lead in formulating the
overall strategies and policies of the Group. He ensures that the
Board functions effectively and all material issues of the Company are
discussed in a timely manner. The Chairman also leads the Board to
establish good corporate governance policies and procedures for the
Group as a whole.

The Chief Executive Officer, supported by the other executive
Directors and the senior management of the Company, is responsible
for the daily business operations and management of the Group. He
monitors the implementation of the Group’s strategy with respect to
the achievement of its business objectives.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into letters of appointment with the Company
for a term of one year and all of them are subject to retirement by
rotation pursuant to the Articles of Association.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee are disclosed on
both the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EREARE (FH)

The Remuneration Committee was established in October 2005.
It currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. CHIU Kung Chik (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. LI Gaofeng and Mr. LIU Xin, and two executive
Directors, namely Mr. XIE Zhichun and Mr. ZHU Yi. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee was revised on 29 February
2012 and are aligned with the provisions set out in the CG Code. The
main duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(a) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

(c) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

(e) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

(f)  to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive for the
Company;
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(h)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held two

meetings to discuss and deal with the following major matters:

to review the remuneration package of all Directors and senior
management; and

to recommend the remuneration package of the newly
appointed Director, namely Mr. LIU Xin, to the Board for
approval.

The Nomination Committee was established in December 2007. It
currently comprises two executive Directors, namely Mr. XIE Zhichun

(chairman of the Nomination Committee) and Mr. ZHU Yi; and

three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. CHIU Kung
Chik, Mr. LI Gaofeng and Mr. LIU Xin. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee was revised on 29 February 2012 and are
aligned with the provisions set out in the CG Code.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(a)

to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and may select individuals nominated for directorship;

to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.
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The Nomination Committee identifies and nominates qualified
individual to the Board for consideration. All newly appointed
Directors are subject to re-election by the Shareholders at the AGM
or at the next following general meeting of the Company immediately
following their appointment pursuant to the Articles of Association. In
considering the new appointment or re-nomination of Directors, the
Nomination Committee will focus their decisions based on attributes
such as integrity, industry experience and professional and technical
skills together with the ability to contribute time and afford to carry out
their duties effectively and responsibly.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held two
meetings to discuss and deal with the following major matters:

—  toreview the composition of the Board;

— to review and assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; and

— to recommend the appointment of Mr. LIU Xin as independent
non-executive Director for the Board’s approval.

A nomination policy was adopted by the Company in November 2018
(the “Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and
nomination procedures in identifying and recommending candidates
as Directors for the Board’s consideration. In assessing the suitability
of a proposed candidate for directorship, the Nomination Committee
will take into account (i) the Company’s actual needs, (ii) the
candidate’s skills and professional experience that are complementary
to the other members of the Board and (iii) the diversity of the Board,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, etc.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy from
time to time and discuss any revisions required, and will recommend
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity of its
Board members. It had adopted a Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”)
in August 2013. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy
and competence. The ultimate decision will be based on merits and
contributions that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives amongst the structure,
size and composition of the Board, when making the recommendation
to the Board for appointment or re-appointment of Directors, the
Nomination Committee will take into account certain objective criteria
such as gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills and knowledge, and length of service,
etc. Besides, it will also take into account factors based on the
Company’s business model and specific needs from time to time.

In addition, the Nomination Committee will from time to time review
the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness. It
will discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

The Audit Committee was established in April 2001 and currently
comprises four independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
CHIU Kung Chik (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. CHAN Kin
Sang, Mr. LI Gaofeng and Mr. LIU Xin. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee was revised on 30 December 2015 and are aligned
with the provisions set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the
Audit Committee are as follows:

(a) to be primarily responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;
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(b) to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

(c) to develop and implement policy on engaging of an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose, “external
auditor” includes any entity that is under common control,
ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity that
a reasonable and informed third party knowing all relevant
information would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally. The Audit Committee should
report to the Board, identifying and making recommendations
on any matters where action or improvement is needed;

(d) to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them. In
reviewing these reports before submission to the Board, the
Audit Committee should focus particularly on:

(i)  any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;

(iii)  significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements
in relation to financial reporting;

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020

(b)

2B AR ER T K BRI R D
RBEZBREPZEIN  FHEUERK
Ko BRREBESRNZEITERBA
SR R EE REBENE
FAER¥RE T -

BEONIE % BRI 1R FE A% BUAR 7% 1) 5T B
o WTUABIT - Rt s - [FNERX
ECINRDERY ER= g 7 - CoPNGI )0 ik
THIME - AR EEEZ TREMA
et - i*fl/—\ﬁﬂ*ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬁﬂ
mE CEAIRIBR T 2 T iR
%J%EA;%%,\V%{E’JQTE’J$iYI
BREBH — DTS - BE
BEgRMEMERRITHARENE
HREEFEHRE - BRI RIELEE

ERARNANTBHRERARFERS
NMERE - ¥FEWMER (B8TIE) =
EHRENTEMN  WEMBRREBRS
FISEREMEHRBHNERER - B
ZESERNEFSRIBBHRE LK
HAT - ERRISTE TS IENAER -

(i) EFFBEREEBOEMENR
(iy HhEBEHEIEHRE
(i) FEZEmEIRNEAFE

(v) RERENRILEMFREE

o 3

(vi) REETHABMBBEHRN EHR
AIBOERIRTE



(e)

(i)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

regarding (d) above:

(i)  members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
Board and senior management and the Audit Committee
must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company’s
auditor; and

(i) the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in the
reports and accounts, it should give due consideration
to any matters that have been raised by the Company’s
staff responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or auditor;

to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless expressly
addressed by a separate Board’s risk committee, or by the
Board itself, to review the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed its
duty to have effective systems. This discussion should include
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(h)

TRERHE (F)

Bt (d)EmE -

() EXRZEBekBEREESZEELS
MERABHLE  MBEXEZES
BZ D EFEEARD R R EET R

TRREZ &

ASSY

Y

(i) BZZEGREENZFTRER
FRB AT RBRET RR A I E
ARETSEEH VREEEZE
EREBARRZ 5t K FE R
BE - ARTEIZEERLN
=S

WA AR RN EE - A K (BRIEEA
HEHEFTEETARZAREZES
FHESEAFEE) B AR EHE
BB TR MR BP BT AT

HEIEE S Ak I R AR R &
B MREEEEETREELAN
MERS - SN REBEARARES
AAMMBERBE T ENER BT
BERER  ERINEIRERE
HREER TN

THREEETSNZIK - AARERER
ERNABEREENEEHELH
MERBHASERNORETES

MRAEERENEBELBRE - Al
RA BRSNS A2 BB TS 2 #5358
HAERAFEZBEERNRANA
MEEMERENR  LRABEENM
7+ AR dmad M ERERE AL

BRI ASEOM GRS BRRIES

FEERSREEERAR
S

69



70

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

TEERA

(p)

amE ()

to review the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;

to review arrangements employees of the Company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The Audit
Committee should ensure that proper arrangements are in place
for fair and independent investigation of these matters and for
appropriate follow-up action;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

to report to the Board on the matters set out above; and

to consider other matters, as defined or assigned by the Board
from time to time.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held three

meetings to consider and approve, inter alia, the following matters:

(@)

to review the half-year and annual financial statements before
submission to the Board, with a focus on compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and other requirements
in relation to financial reporting of the Audit Committee;

to review and discuss the effectiveness of the internal controls
system throughout the Group, including financial, operational
and compliance controls, and risk management;

to review the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and other financial reporting matters;

to discuss with the auditor on the annual audit scope; and

to recommend to the Board for re-appointment of Grant
Thornton as auditor of the Group for the ensuing year and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of Grant
Thornton.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

The Executive Committee was established in April 2017 with written
terms of reference that specifies its authorities and duties. It currently
comprises all executive Directors (except for the Chairman of the
Board) and the relevant department heads of the Company and is
chaired by the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Executive
Committee is primarily responsible for supervising the day-to-day
operation of the Group, implementing business strategies made by
the Board and making investment decisions within its authorities, etc.
The Executive Committee meets as and when necessary.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance duties:

(iy  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(iii)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board has duly discharged
the above-mentioned duties.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the auditor’s remuneration paid
or payable by the Group to Grant Thornton in respect of the audit and
other non-audit services were as follows:

Audit services ZH R
Non-audit services IERZH RS
— other professional services — BB RS

The reporting responsibilities of Grant Thornton to the Shareholders
are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 108 to 116
of this annual report.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of
the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2020
and ensuring that such financial statements give a true and fair view
of the affairs of the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flow
and in compliance with the relevant laws and disclosure provisions of
the Listing Rules. In preparing the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020, the Directors have selected
appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently;
made prudent and reasonable judgments and estimates; and have
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has appointed
Ms. MOK Ming Wai (“Ms. Mok”), a director and head of listing
corporate services department of Trident Corporate Services (Asia)
Limited, as a joint company secretary of the Company on 29 August
2019. Ms. WONG Miu Ying Vivian (“Ms. Wong”) resigned as a joint
company secretary of the Company with effect from 29 November
2019. Following the resignation of Ms. Wong, Ms. Mok became
the sole company secretary of the Company. Ms. Mok worked and
communicated closely with Mr. ZHU Yi, an executive Director of the
Company. Ms. Mok has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board gives high priority to balanced, clear and transparent
communications which allow Shareholders and investors to
understand the Group’s prospects and the market environment in
which it operates. The Company communicates with Shareholders
and investors in different ways to ensure that their views and concerns
are understood and addressed in a constructive way.

In March 2012, the Board has established a Shareholders
communication policy and a Shareholders’ guide is in place to ensure
that Shareholders are provided with ready, equal and timely access
to balanced and understandable information about the Group.
The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness and is
uploaded on the Company’s website.

The Company’s website has become the primary platform of
communication between the Company and the Shareholders. The
investor relations section of the website is kept under regular review
by the Company to ensure that information related to Shareholders is
disseminated in an accurate and timely manner.

The particulars of Shareholders’ rights relating to, inter alia, putting
forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings, convening of
extraordinary general meetings and making enquiries to the Group
are as follows:
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Pursuant to Article 120 of the Articles of Association, no person, other
than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board for
election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director, signed by a Shareholder (other than
the person to be proposed for election as a Director) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given, and a
notice in writing signed by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the registration office. The minimum length
of the period during which such notices are given shall be at least
seven days, commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

To include a resolution relating to other matters in a general
meeting, Shareholders are requested to follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in section 615 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong). The relevant Shareholders’
Guide has also been published on the Company’s website.

Pursuant to Article 72 of the Articles of Association, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting.
General meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition of
any two or more members of the Company deposited at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company
ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office specifying
the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists,
provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. General meetings may also be convened on the written
requisition of any one member of the Company which is a recognised
clearing house (or its nominee) deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that such
requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
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If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting, the requisitionist(s)
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may
be convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the date
of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

The Board is grateful to Shareholders and other stakeholders for their
views, and welcomes their questions and concerns raised in relation
to the management and governance of the Group.

Shareholders and other stakeholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board by post to the Company at 43rd
Floor, COSCO Tower, 183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong or by
email to info@290.com.hk for the attention of the Company Secretary.

A dividend policy was adopted by the Company in November 2018
(the “Dividend Policy”) which sets out the guideline for distribution
of dividends to the Shareholders. The Dividend Policy aims to strike
a balance between the Shareholders’ interests and the Company’s
capital requirement for business operation and development needs.
The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend
will be subject to the approval by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board will take into account,
inter alia, the Group’s financial results and liquidity, its business
strategies and development plans, as well as other factors that the
Board may consider appropriate.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and may
exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.

TRERHE (F)

MEFERXEERZAEF —+—HRL
BRRTEREFARAAT  ABKABSHNK
RIRE TR 2 BB IR AE 50% A £V IR
A RBRERIEESAMAGNER R
ARKRRAE R bl X BRNEMK
ETENRERRER 2 B =@ A &M
®AER MARRARBLABNEERES
EREARAGMBERERAARKENE
BEANMARX °

EFEERBRLEMNEERERRZER
RNREH > WBDRERARE 2 EENE
YA R B KRBT o

FSCER R EL At ) 5 AR B 2 R BE RS i A P B0
AR RAAWERNESTTHHAESAR
)X ARwE 2 BEF A R E IS B
BEBERANEFISHRPREANEIER
info@290.com.hk °

ARBRNR B N\F+— ARBBREER
(TREBE]) - EhEBRKE YIRS
15l BB BUR B EEBRR B EANR] X
BEERBERABNESFREFFE - £
ARESHIRNEBEEA AL EETS2RIIB
R ERREIRE M RBEBR N IIR
BERE LHEE

REFZTAREXNE  EF@EEE (H
FER) ARENMBEERRDES - &
EBRENERRE UANEZERREE
ME A -

EXgR TREBERERE  AIRERRE
B MR - BERTEE SRS EER
BRI R/ G R BIK -

PSR BERERAT
—EoTEER

75



76

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EREARE (FH)

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association (in both
English and Chinese) is available on both the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. During the year under review,
there is no change to the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for establishing and
maintaining sound and effective risk management and internal control
systems, and for determining the nature and extent of risk it is willing
to take in pursuing business objectives of the Group. Yet, such risk
management and internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Company has a risk management policy in place to formalize
the procedures in identifying, evaluating and monitoring the risks
which may be encountered by the Group in the course of business.
By tackling the risks in a systematic way, the Board believes that the
same can be minimized or under control at a reasonable level.

The process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks
are as follows:

1.  each business unit/department identifies the risks that
encountered or may be encountered by them in the course of
business/operation;

2. business units/departments compile a list of risks which
contains the following information for every single risk identified
by them: (a) risk classification; (b) contents of risk; (c) measures
taken; (d) risk ranking; and (e) recommendations to deal with
such risk, and email this list to the Executive Committee and
the Compliance and Risk Management Department (the “CRM
Department”) for review and assessment;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

3. the Executive Committee and the CRM Department discuss,
assess and determine whether further action is required to be
taken against the identified risks or whether such risks should
be reported to the Board;

4.  if reporting to the Board is required, the Company Secretary will
send the materials to the Board for discussion and revert the
Board’s decision to the relevant business unit/department for
action/follow up.

Besides, internal control measures and/or procedures have also
been designed and implemented for safeguarding the Group’s assets
against unauthorized use or disposal, maintaining proper accounting
records, and monitoring the compliance with the applicable laws,
rules and regulations.

Although the Company does not have an internal audit function,
it has established a CRM Department to monitor the overall risk
management and compliance issues of the Group on an on-going
basis. Quarterly reports on compliance, risk management and internal
control issues of the Group will be prepared by the CRM Department
and tabled before the regular Audit Committee and Board meetings
for review and discussion. Modifications and improvements on the
existing risk management and internal control policies will be carried
out from time to time as required.

Apart from the internal review of the risk management and internal
control systems on a quarterly basis, the Company also engages
independent internal control advisors to conduct an overall review of
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group at regular intervals. Such a comprehensive review has
been conducted in 2017. The scope of review included trading
of listed securities cycle, human resource and payroll cycle, cash
management and treasury cycle and financial reporting cycle for
the Company, etc. The internal control advisor performed interviews,
reviewed the relevant documents and reported major findings and
areas for improvement to the Audit Committee. No material issue on
the Group’s internal control system was identified after the review. All
recommendations from internal control advisor have been followed
up closely to ensure that they were implemented within a reasonable
period of time. Hence, the Board considers that the existing risk
management and internal control systems of the Group are effective
and adequate to meet its needs in its current business environment.
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To ensure timely, fair, accurate and complete disclosure of inside
information and for compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations, an updated policy on handling the inside information
has been approved by the Board in August 2017, pursuant to which
a series of procedures has been taken to identify and preserve the
confidentiality of the price sensitive information and to disclose the
same to the public in a timely manner, if required. All staff are also
required to observe the code of ethical standards stated in Staff
Handbook to keep non-public information confidential.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy of promoting
investor relations and communication by maintaining regular
meetings with institutional Shareholders, fund managers and
analysts through different means including meetings, presentations
and correspondence. In an effort to enhance communications with
the Shareholders and investors, the Company maintains a website
(www.290.com.hk) to disseminate information relating to the latest
business developments and all corporate announcements.

The AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate directly
with the Shareholders. An AGM circular was distributed to all
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days prior to the AGM
held on 29 August 2019 (the “2019 AGM”), setting out the details of
each proposed resolution and other relevant information. Separate
resolutions are proposed at the general meetings of the Company on
each substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors. Shareholders have the opportunity to participate and
vote in general meetings and are informed of the rules and voting
procedures that govern the general meeting.

The 2019 AGM of the Company was held at 43rd Floor, COSCO
Tower, 183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The Chairman of the
Board and the chairmen of Board Committees, accompanied by
other Directors, attended the 2019 AGM. Please refer to the table
set out on page 58 of this annual report for details of attendance of
the individual Directors at the 2019 AGM. The external auditor of the
Company, Grant Thornton, also attended at the 2019 AGM to answer
questions raised by the Shareholders.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

OVERVIEW

China Fortune Financial Group Limited (“China Fortune” or the
“Company”,
to present the Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the

together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased

“ESG Report”), which summarised the environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) initiatives and accomplishments for the year
ended 31 March 2020 (the “Reporting Year”).

China Fortune’s primary business include securities and insurance
brokerage, margin financing, proprietary trading, asset management,
provision of corporate finance services and money lending services,
where its operations are located mainly in Hong Kong and partly in
mainland China.

The board of directors (the “Board”) has the overall responsibility for
the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting in achieving green operations
for sustainable development. The management is responsible for
monitoring and managing ESG related risks and the effectiveness
of the ESG management systems. In order to identify and assess
relevant the ESG issues, the Group has engaged a professional
consultant company and discussed with various management
personnel and other key stakeholders. The summary of the material
ESG issues, which are covered in the ESG Report, are listed in the
section headed “Materiality Assessment”.

REPORTING SCOPE AND FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report serves to provide details of the Group’s ESG policies
and initiatives of its business in Hong Kong, which has been prepared
and complied under the “comply or explain” provisions set out in
the Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”). The content including data in preparing the ESG
Report is primarily based on the internal policies and documents as
well as information provided by various key stakeholders.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
R dgRERHRE (A)

BN B

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT EhEsHE

Understanding and taking actions towards stakeholders’ concerns T fE# )& 8V EE)T EH N B 2 I FREUE 11T
and expectations is essential towards sustainable development. The ¥ ' HAREZREZHEE - ASEBRRED
Group ensures various communication channels are set up so that R SiE/EMERE - FEIL AN E R EE
comments and feedbacks from major stakeholders are effectively and ~ EERFHERE R REILE o

timely addressed.

The following table shows the main expectations and concerns of the ~ FNRBRAEEM#INEZHHENEE
major stakeholders identified by the Group, with the corresponding ~ HAZEEARTEE - LARIEENEIREEIFE
management responses:

Stakeholders Communication Channels Expectations Management Responses
A BBRE i) EIE fE [ fE
Customers e Customer service hotline e Integrity e Ensuring contractual
®F and email e High quality services obligations are in place for
e Company website e Complaint handling protection of customers’
o BPRBEFRE mechanism benefits and rights
o NEABUL o HME e Collecting customers’ opinion
o BERMS from various channels in
o WEFEEIEILSI order to improve customer

satisfaction

s BREEENEME  NRER
Az R R

s RERERBWEEFER M
RAZPREE
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Stakeholders
B E

Employees

(=2

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Communication Channels

BERE

¢ Trainings and workshops

e Performance evaluation or
appraisal

® [nternal announcement

o HIIRIIEY

o BUEMHEER

AEIYN=

Fiﬁ * ?ig}i%/é

Expectations
HE

e Humanity and labour rights

e QOccupational health and
safety

e Career development

e Equal opportunity

o ANBNMETHEZ

o BiXREENLRE

o EXHER

s TEHE

HE (F)

Management Responses

EEEEE

e Paying attention to
occupational health and safety,
creating a comfortable working
environment

e Encouraging employees to
participate in continuous
education and professional
trainings to enhance
competency

e Holding team building
function to increase workplace
collaboration

e Setting up contractual
obligations to protect labour
rights

s ITEBXERELLE  EEF
WH) TIERER

s FEEEZHEFBEEERER
AR T8

o REFEBGERBELARETIE
EENE

o HETERNBEERES TR

Shareholders

PR

¢ Annual general meeting
and other shareholder
meetings

e Financial reports

e Announcements and

e Financial performance

e [nformation transparency

e QOperating risks
management

e Corporate sustainability

o BISRIA

e Ensuring efficient
communications and
information disclosure through
shareholder’s meetings,
annual reports and regular

circulars announcements published
e MEBFARERAMBZE o FEERAE o FRRIEAE FERELE
N o HERMBERE HEMONE  MREEE
o MESERE o EFFEER NMIEBHEE
o RERBH
FEERCHMEEERA

—?—?iiiﬁ

81



82
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Stakeholders
B E

Communication Channels

Expectations

HE

Management Responses
EEEDE

Government e Routine reports e Compliance with laws and | e Upholding integrity and
and Regulatory e Written or electronic regulations operating business in
Authorities correspondences e Fulfil tax obligations compliance with law and
BRI REERE o flITHRE e Cooperation for mutual regulations
o EHENEFBERE benefits e Paying tax on time in return
o BFEREKIER contributing to the society
s BITHBEME o REFMENMEBTERERLE
o AYEEREELR 7%
o RIFEBIADIET
Suppliers e Business cooperation e Fair and open selection e Ensuring contractual
g e FEAE e Supply chain management | obligations are in place to
o NENFRERE protect mutual benefit
o {HEESRER e Performing supplier selection
with due care to ensure fair
and open procurement
o MRHBIESLNEME  RERE
Mz
o FREEDEMER  BERREBEA
Community e ESG reports e |nvolvement in communities | ¢ Encouraging employees to
1T o RIE B REAWME e Environmental protection participate in volunteer and
awareness charitable activities
e Compliant operations s HENEELEET NEZEDY
o ttImH
e RREH
o AR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group assesses and analyses the importance of ESG
reporting issues. Factors such as business strategy objectives and
policies, industrial standards, legal and regulatory responsibilities,
environmental protection, use of resources, service quality control,
employee protection have been taken into consideration for identifying
the important issues. There are 13 important issues identified through
materiality assessment and are prioritised as below in the materiality
matrix:
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RE #HERERHE (H)

The Group is committed to building an environmentally friendly
corporation image. It pursues to minimise resource consumption and
adopts environmentally friendly practices across the business. As
a financial institution which operates in an office setting, the major
environmental impact is the greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions
attributable to electricity and business travels. The Group strives to
reduce our environmental impacts including the emission of carbon
dioxide and disposal of waste by integrating various green practices
into daily operation.

During the Reporting Year, the Group has not identified any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong
relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste that would
have a significant impact on the Group. The relevant laws and
regulations include, but are not limited to the Air Pollution Control
Ordinance and the Waste Disposal Ordinance.

GHG Emissions and Air Emissions

The major sources of the Group’s GHG emissions are petrol
consumption of company vehicles (Scope 1), electricity consumption
in office (Scope 2), and employees’ business travels (Scope 3). To
mitigate the biggest attributor of the GHG emissions, employees
are highly encouraged to hold video conference call, if feasible, to
avoid carbon footprints and air pollutant emissions contributed by
transportation in the future. Besides, the Group has active adopted
energy conservation measures which are described in the section
headed “Energy Consumption” under aspect A2.

During the Reporting Year, the Group produced a total of
approximately 184.56 tonnes carbon dioxide equivalent (“tCO,e”") of
GHG emissions. Throughout the above-mentioned measures, GHG
emissions has been reduced by 2% when compared to 2019.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RE  #gRERHE (KA)

The Group’s GHG emissions performance was as follows: REEREERBENERBENT

GHG emissions'’ Unit 2019
RERBEBEN B —E-NEF
Scope 1 — Direct GHG emissions (Petrol) tCO.e 21.71 19.58
#HE1— BERAEREHN CTUh) WE_SUbIRE S

Scope 2 — Energy indirect GHG emissions tCO.e 73.70 65.99

(Purchased electricity)
#HE2 — gERMEERERBBYEN (JNBE ) —akiRERE
Scope 3 — Other indirect GHG emissions tCOe 89.15 102.77

(Business travels)
#HE 3 — R ERBHEN (MBEIR) WS LikE =

Total GHG emissions tCOe 184.56 188.34
BERBAHRE SR E &

Total GHG emissions intensity? tCO ,& per employee 2.15 2.00
BERBAHHREE? —SeHmEEEE

Notes: Mz -

1. GHG emissions data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent 1. AERBHEMEBA-SLLREENHER

and are based on, including but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas 25 iR (BREESRR) tERER
Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued AR ARGEKBERZESEMHN OB
by the World Resources Institute and the World Business Council for EREFATE  CEEHEWMERE) A
Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix BRGFTEMR) O EERE - e kE
Il: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by HKEX, “Global RS —MER = IRIFARANIEIRER
Warming Potential Values” from the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report #351) - BFBRIEE(LEFIE B &M
(AR5), and the 2019 Sustainability Report published by the HK Electric (BRRFHERE) (ARS) B [ 2RI R
Investments. BB | BB E IR E T3 K (2019 F AT

BRRE®RE) -

2. As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, the Group had a total of 86 2. RIZEZZEF=A=+—RHBERZZT—N#F
employees and 94 employees in the Hong Kong office respectively. ZA=+—HB AEEEENRLENEES
These data are also used for calculating other intensity data. ﬁ@%l’\ﬂﬂ?% 86 AR 94 A - BRAEUIRINAIE

STHEMEEEIE

PEEREREBARA
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RE #HERERHE (H)

Although air emissions are not significant due to the Group’s business
nature, following measures have been taken to minimise the pollutants
emitted during our business operation:

o Choose the shortest route when vehicles are travelling between
the Group’s operating locations and destinations to reduce
consumption of fuel;

o Turn off engines for idling vehicles; and

° Conduct regular vehicle maintenance to ensure efficient use of
fuel.

The Group’s air emissions performance was as follows:

Air Emissions Unit
BERBER By
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) g
AAEYI (NOX) I
Particulate matter (PM) g
FFHLTF (PM) 7
Sulphur oxides (SOx) g
b (SOx) I

Sewage Discharge

As the Group does not consume a significant volume of water during
our daily operation, our business activities did not generate material
discharges into water during the Reporting Year. Moreover, both the
water supply and discharge are solely controlled by the building’s
management office, and so the provision of water withdrawal and
discharge data or sub-meter for individual occupant are not feasible.
More water conservation measures will be described in the section
headed “Water Consumption” under aspect A2.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Waste Management

In view of its business nature, the Group did not generate hazardous
waste as defined in the “1989 The Basel Convention on the Control of
Transboundary Movements of Hazardous Wastes and their Disposal”
during the Reporting Year.

The solid wastes generated by the Group are non-hazardous wastes,
including domestic garbage and recyclable wastes, for which the
Group has taken various measures to minimise the impact and
promote “green office” concept. In particular, the Group promotes
“think before you print” attitude in order to encourage paperless office
by facilitating the use of electronic means for communication such as
intranet, email, internal workflow system. Relevant waste reduction
measures include:

° Digitalise the business operation to reduce printing and paper
copies;

o Encourage duplex printing and reusing any single-side printed
papers;

° Set up recycling bins to collect recyclable products, such as
papers and toner cartridges; and

° Encourage employees to reduce the use of one-off products.
During the Reporting Year, the Group’s total non-hazardous wastes

disposal was approximately 1.40 tonnes. The Group’s waste disposal
performance was as follows:

Types of non-hazardous wastes Unit

BERVESR B

Office paper® tonnes

Vi NEEE TR

Intensity tonnes per employee
mE Ly

Note:

3. Actual paper consumption was approximately 280,180 sheets and

705,946 sheets in 2020 and 2019 respectively.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RE #HERERHE (H)

The Group’s vision focuses on eliminating excessive usage
of resources. In response to this vision, the Group proactively
implements energy conservation measures to achieve efficient use of
resources. Various initiatives have been implemented throughout our
operations such as deploying energy-efficient devices with energy
efficiency label, minimising the use of paper and reducing water
consumption. Through active monitoring and managing the use of
resources, the Group aims to reduce our carbon footprints as well as
our operating cost.

Energy Consumption

The major sources of the Group’s energy consumption were petrol
consumed by company vehicles and electricity used in the office. The
Group encourages employees to establish energy-saving habits at
office, such as switching off lights and electronic appliances before
leaving the office, as well as maintaining indoor temperature at 25.5°C
during working hours. To further conserve electricity, the Group has
implemented effective energy control policy and adopted various
energy saving measures including:

o Replace intelligent lighting control system with LED bulbs;

° Use energy-saving equipment and computers;

° Conduct regular maintenance to avoid possible unnecessary
use of energy;

. Set all printers, copiers and computers to energy-saving mode
where possible; and

o Post energy-saving reminders in office area to infiltrate the
awareness of energy conservation and environmental protection
to every employee.

During the Reporting Year, the Group’s total energy consumption
was approximately 171,237.13 kWh, which was increased by
approximately 11.49% from 2019 mainly due to the increase in
business activities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

The Group’s energy consumption performance was as follows:

Types of energy Unit
BERESE B

Petrol* kWh

T Fre
Electricity kWh

B TR
Total energy consumption kWh
BELIRERES FEE

Total energy consumption intensity kWh per employee
HBEERERRE TRE EE
Note:

4. Actual petrol consumption was approximately 8,163.27 litres and
7,229.00 litres in 2020 and 2019 respectively.

Water Consumption

The Group’s water consumption is minimal as it operates in office
premises of which both the water supply and discharge are solely
controlled by the building’s management office, and therefore the
provision of water withdrawal and discharge data or sub-meter for
individual occupant are not feasible. Yet, the Group promotes water
saving practices in the workplace by encouraging its employees
to reduce water use in order to raise the awareness on water
conservation, including:

o Conduct regular maintenance and repair of toilet flushing
system;

° Remind employees to turn off taps tightly after using to avoid
dripping of water;

o Use water-saving appliances in water facilities where possible;

° Notify relevant department if problems are found to avoid
wasting water resources; and

° Post water-saving reminders in pantry and toilets to remind
employees on water conservation.

Due to geographical location, the Group does not encounter any
significant issues in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RE #HERERHE (H)

Use of Packaging Materials

Since the Group is principally engaged in the provision of financial
services, packaging is not involved in the usual course of the Group’s
business, and therefore the use of packaging materials during the
Reporting Year is not applicable.

The Group pursues best practice with the environment and focuses
on its business impact on the environment and natural resources. The
Group considers the protection of the environment being important
for the well-being of society and the next generation.

Improve Working Environment

To enhance working efficiency, the Group is committed to providing
employees a comfortable and green workplace. Office area is
inspected regularly to ensure that a good working environment is
maintained. Once the Group has identified problems within the
workplace, precautionary measures will be taken immediately to
minimise the potential harm to employees. In addition, the Group
monitors the indoor air quality of the workplace regularly, and cleans
air-conditioning systems regularly to maintain good indoor air quality.

To maintain the competitiveness in the industry for the long-term
success, it is essential for the Group to build a loyal and competent
work environment and commit a giving-back concept to support the
employees, and to show compassion to the society.

The Group believes that employees are valuable assets for building
a sustainable business model for future development. It plays an
important role to drive business growth and success. Therefore, the
Group has adopted a “people-oriented” principle. In this regard,
the Group communicates with all employees and provides various
benefits and career development opportunities, strives to create
a harmony, inclusive, energetic working atmosphere so as to
continuously achieve mutual development of employees and the
Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

During the Reporting Year, the Group has not identified any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong
relating to employment that would have a significant impact on
the Group. The relevant laws and regulations include, but are not
limited to the Employment Ordinance, Minimum Wage Ordinance,
Hong Kong Bill of Rights Ordinance, Sex Discrimination Ordinance,
Disability Discrimination Ordinance, Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance and Race Discrimination Ordinance.

Staff Overview

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had a total of 86 employees in our
Hong Kong office. Out of the total workforce, 47% of them were
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RE #HERERHE (H)

Recruitment and Promotion

The Group endeavours to promote a fair, open and non-discriminatory
employment practices to ensure equal opportunities for all individuals.
The Group does not tolerate any forms of discrimination in regard
to religion, race, gender, age and disability, or any other aspect of
personal difference that is unrelated to job requirements or roles. In
all recruitment and promotion procedures, the Group adheres to the
principles of openness and fairness. The recruitment assessment and
appraisal and conducted in an objective and impartial manner. Thus,
the Group has complied with all related laws and regulations in the
corresponding operation regions.

The Group recognises its employees’ qualifications, experiences and
work performances by offering attractive remuneration packages. In
order to retain talents, remuneration packages are reviewed annually
and bonuses are paid each year to recognise employees’ hard work
throughout the year.

Working Hours, Compensation, Benefits and Welfares

The Group ensures employment contracts are signed with employees
based on the principles of legality, fairness and free will with mutual
agreement and in good faith, in which matters of employment
including working hours, rest time and holidays, remuneration and
benefits are clearly defined.

The Group adopts a five-day work week. In addition to the statutory
benefits provided for employees, such as paid annual leave, maternity
leave, paid sick leave and marriage leave, the Group also offers
our employees with causal Fridays, festival gifts, training subsidy,
qualification allowance, travelling allowance and overtime allowance,
etc. The Group believes that enhancing employees’ well-being can
help them to deliver their best performance. The Group regularly
organises various social activities for employees, including lunch
gatherings and sport activities to create a harmonious atmosphere
and team spirit.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Termination

The Group values the relationship with employees. For every
departing employee, it would conduct an exit interview to
communicate their reasons for leaving. The Group welcomes
suggestions on improvement from them. All the salaries and
payments related to employment, such as severance payment
and long service payment would be made in accordance with the
Employment Ordinance. In particular, the Group closely monitors
employee turnover and listens to the departing employees’ comments
through exit interview so that it can address employee concerns as
well as implement the right retention measures. During the Reporting
Year, the distribution of turnover was as follow:
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RE #HERERHE (H)

Employees’ Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a safe and comfortable work
environment for the employees. Safety procedures have been
included in the staff handbook to provide guidance to employees’
responsiveness on emergencies, such as work arrangements for
typhoons and rainstorm warnings. The Group has also placed first-aid
kits in workplace in order to protect the health and safety of workers in
the event that they are injured at work in offices. Every case of injury
or accident and potential danger must be reported to the supervisors.
The administration department shall assess every injury and accident
and take remediation action to improve the safety of workplaces.

In order to provide employees with health coverage, eligible
employees are entitled to benefits including medical and life
insurance. The Group also provides the staff with protective
equipment, such as ergonomic chairs and the appropriate lighting
installed in workplace to relieve eye strain. The Group encourages
employees to take breaks after working for a long period of time
and stretch hands, shoulders, neck and waist to relax muscles
during breaks. The Group regularly cooperates with the building’s
management office for cleaning the air filters of air-conditioners to
improve the air circulation.

During the Reporting Year, the Group has not identified any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong
relating to health and safety that would have a significant impact on
the Group. The relevant laws and regulations include, but are not
limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and the
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance. Also, there were no work-
related injury, lost days due to work injury and work-related fatalities
during the Reporting Year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Employees’ Development and Training

The Group commits to ensure that the talents, skills and abilities of
the employees are recognised and are utilised to their full capacity.
As such, the Group emphasises the importance of sufficient
and adequate trainings to staff for their career development and
fulfilment of their job duties. It encourages employees to continuously
participate external seminars, lectures and industrial events to
keep abreast of the changes in areas of legal, compliance and
market industrial practices. To promote and cultivate the ongoing
professional development of all employees, the Group offers trainings
and professional license fee subsidies. The Group also regularly
conducts internal trainings relating to the anti-money laundering
(*AML”) procedure and counter-terrorist financing (“CTF”) recent
updates on relevant regulation and other topics related to licensed
regulated activities.

During the Reporting Year, 55% of the employees of the Group
participated in the training. Categorised by gender, 52% of male
employees out of all male employees were trained, while 58%
of female employees out of all female employees were trained.
Categorised by employee category, 26% of management out of
all management were trained, while 63% of general staff out of all
general staff were trained. Average training hours of male employees
were 38 hours, and that of female employees were 61 hours. The
average training hours of the management were 48 hours, while that
of the general staff were 49 hours.

In strict compliance with relevant local labour laws and regulations,
the Group prohibits to hire child labour and requires age verification
of applicants during the recruitment process. All staffs are required
to sign employment contract before employment to safeguard legal
rights of both parties. Furthermore, employees of the Group work
overtime on a voluntary basis to prevent any breaches of labour
standards. Any punishments, management methods and behaviours
involving verbal abuse, physical punishment, physical abuse,
oppression, sexual harassment against its employees are prohibited
for any reasons.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RE #HERERHE (H)

During the Reporting Year, the Group has not identified any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong
relating to child and forced labour that would have a significant
impact on the Group. The relevant laws and regulations include,
but are not limited to the Employment of Children Regulations and
Employment Ordinance.

The Group acknowledges its responsibility to monitor ESG
performance of suppliers along its supply chain. All suppliers
are evaluated carefully and are subject to regular monitoring
and assessment. The Group strives to maintain good business
relationships with its suppliers through standardised procedures.

As a financial services provider, the Group’s suppliers are mainly
general office supplies providers. The Group manages its supply
chain with an aim to prevent any environmental and social risks. In
order to provide a fair assessment of suppliers’ selection, the Group
considers the suppliers’ attitude and practice towards environment
and labour before entering into the contractual agreements. The
Group evaluates the quality as well as the moral standards of the
contractors. If any inconsistency is found between the Group’s
requirements and their act, the Group will terminate the cooperation
until improvement is made.

As a financial service provider, the Group places strong emphasis
on customer-orientated services in building long-term relationships.
It strives to provide the best customer experience and pay high
attention to the quality of services. On-going communication with
customers is maintained in order to ensure their demands and
expectations are understood and fulfiled.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

During the Reporting Year, the Group has not identified any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress
that would have a significant impact on the Group. The relevant laws
and regulations include, but are not limited to the Trade Descriptions
Ordinance and Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance.

Customer Services

The key elements for maximising customers’ satisfaction and earning
long-term customer’s loyalty are transparency and high-quality
advice. As a comprehensive financial services provider, the Group
has dedicated teams of professionals with diverse and in-depth
knowledge and experience, offering valuable advices and insights
to customers and providing a wide range of services including
brokerage, asset management, wealth management, corporate
finance advisory services and money lending.

In order to provide quality services, experienced responsible
officers are assigned to oversee and supervise the daily operation
to ensure compliance with the Group’s internal policies, risk
control management and rules and regulations. In addition, the
quality assurance measure is undertaken and a quality reviewer is
designated to oversee the implementation, such as listening the
telephone tapes on a sample check basis to ascertain the quality of
customer services.

Handling of Customer Feedback and Complaints

The Group believes that customers’ complaints is valuable to its
growth and development. Therefore, the Group has stated the
complaints handling procedures in its policy and requires employees
to strictly follow the procedures when dealing with customers’
complaints. Various channels have been set up, such as hotline and
email for receiving customer comments, suggestions and complaints.
The hotline numbers and email address are shown on the client
statements to ensure customers are aware of the communication
channels for providing their opinions and lodging complaints.
The Group reviews the customer’s comments and considers their
suggestions to improve customer service and encourage best
practices. During the Reporting Year, there were no complaints
received from customers.
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RE #HERERHE (H)

Confidentiality of Customer Privacy

The Group values the importance on protecting the privacy of its
customers in the collection, processing and use of their personal
data. The Group strictly follows the applicable data protection
regulations and ensures that appropriate technical measures are
put in place to protect the personal data against any unauthorised
use or access. Users can only access to personal data on a need-
to-know basis when opening and maintaining client’s account. Also,
each employee is required to sign a confidentiality agreement to
prohibit employee from disclosing company confidential information.
The Group did not receive any complaints in relation to the breaches
of customer privacy and losses of client’'s data during the Reporting
Year.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group respects the intellectual property rights and strives to
protect intellectual property rights of its own and third parties. All
software installed by the Group are purchased through legitimate
sources. During the Reporting period, the Group did not aware of any
infringement of intellectual property case.

Advertising and Labelling

As a company providing financial services, the Group has limited
issue on advertising and labelling. In the Group’s dealings with its
clients, information provided should be complete, true, accurate,
clear, and complied with all relevant laws and regulations regarding
the proper advertising, including but not limited to the Trade
Descriptions Ordinance.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

The Group advocates an operating environment of fairness and a
corporate culture of integrity and honesty. Thus, the Group takes
a zero-tolerance approach towards all kinds of corruption, bribery,
forgery, extortion, conspiracy, and embezzlement and collusion case.
Employees, senior management and directors shall comply with
principles of business ethics and integrity. The Group’s operation
policy requires that no confidential commercial information of the
Group shall be disclosed, discussed and shared with third parties
for personal interest. Also, all employees are prohibited to give and
accept personal, commercial, regulatory or contractual advantage,
by using the excuse of work or the authority granted from the Group.
If any misconducts are found and proven, the Group will adopt the
disciplinary actions in a fair manner.

During the Reporting Year, the Group has not identified any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering that would
have a significant impact on the Group. The relevant laws and
regulations include, but are not limited to the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance.

Anti-money Laundering and Counter-terrorist Financing

The Group places great emphasis on AML and CTF as one of the
most imperative compliance requirements. The Group has formulated
an AML and CTF policy to ensure that all business operations comply
with relevant laws and regulations, including customer acceptance
policies, customer due diligence process, ongoing monitoring, and
customers and transactions record keeping.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RE #HERERHE (H)

Whistleblowing Mechanism

The Group has also formulated a whistleblowing policy to provide
employees with reporting channels and guidance on whistleblowing.
When employees are aware of or genuinely suspect any malpractice
and impropriety, they can report to the Audit Committee chairman
by post or email. The investigation shall be conducted in a fair and
impartial way for every reporting. If there is any evidence of illegal
conduct or breach of laws and regulations, it shall be referred to
the relevant public or regulatory bodies such as the Hong Kong
Police Force, the Independent Commission Against Corruption, the
Securities and Futures Commission, or relevant regulatory body.
Disciplinary actions would be adopted once the guilty or misconduct
is proven.

During the Reporting Year, there were no concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices was brought against the Group or its
employees.

The Group believes that community involvement could bring a
positive return to both the society and the business. As part of
strategic development, the Group aims to promote the stability of
society and inspire its employees towards social welfare awareness.
Under the recent coronavirus disease 2019 pandemic outbreak, the
Group spent HK$105,000 on medical masks and donated them to the
Po Leung Kuk in order to help the needy.

The Group continuously encourages the employees to actively
participate in charitable activities and voluntary services coordinated
by non-profit organisations. Besides, the Group actively seeks for
chances to sponsor or partner with other organisations to hold charity
events, arrange voluntary work for minorities, disabilities, kids and
adults who are in special needs. The Group believes that promoting
the awareness of corporate social responsibilities among staffs would
not just help the development of the society and business in general,
but more about their personal growth.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
R #HgRERERE (H)

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT ERABERIMAR

INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF (RE -8k 15
HONG KONG LIMITED 51> RB&S|*&
Subject Areas, Description Section/Declaration
Aspects, General i ait =628
Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE - EFH -
—REEREREA
WiEE
Aspect A1: Emissions
EBEA1: By
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
— = (a) the policies; and 23787
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
Exhaust Gas and GHG emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
BRABERLOREREBYN - FKETHOEES BER
BEBRREYNELSH
(@) B &
(b) BTFHBETAGEAZENHBEEZELBRAID
EH o
KPI A1.1 (comply or The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions — GHG Emissions
explain) BEpUniE E M AR BE R EUE - and Air Emissions, Waste
RARETUEIRE A1 (T Management
B TRLARIE) P — RE RN ER
HERL - EEYEE
KPI A1.2 (comply or GHG emissions in total (in tonnes) and intensity. Emissions — GHG Emissions and
explain) RERBAEKENE (AEAE) REE - Air Emissions
BREMEREA12(D P — RERBEHRNER
BTRLERRE) HERL
KPI' A1.3 (comply or Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and intensity. | Emissions — Waste Management
explain) FESXEEREEDHESE UEAE) RBE - B — BEmE R
BARERUEIRA1.3 (1
BTRLERRE)
KPI A1.4 (comply or Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and  Emissions — Waste Management
explain) intensity. P — EEmE R
BRERIERA A (T MELEEEREDEE UEAE) RBE -
BTRLEREE)

TRIEREREBARAR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE - EH -
—REEKRERE
MiEE

KPI A1.5 (comply or
explain)
BIRERHEIRA1.5 (D
BT RLERRE)

BE e RERES (H)

Description
g

Description of reduction initiatives and results achieved.

UK PR B B i AT SRR -

Section/Declaration

2E B

Emissions — GHG Emissions
and Air Emissions, Waste
Management

P — RAERBHBREESR
HER - EEME IR

KPI A1.6 (comply or
explain)

R AEDEIRA1.6 (T
BT )

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
MR R EREEREEYN L  RIEELENEH
KFFISACR o

Emissions — Waste Management

e — EEME R

EEA2 : EREH
General Disclosure

— IR E

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

BRERER (IR - KEEMEME) BB

Use of Resources

BIREMA

KPI A2.1 (comply or

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total

Use of Resources — Energy

BN FTISARCR ©

explain) and intensity. Consumption

BREBIEIZA21 (T RERESNEER SHEEEREFEERTE - BREA — el
BT )

KPI A2.2 (comply or Water consumption in total and intensity. Use of Resources — Water
explain) BIFKERRE - Consumption

ARG RURIRA2.2 (1 BRER — KRERE
BT

KPI A2.3 (comply or Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results Use of Resources — Energy
explain) achieved. Consumption

BBEE IR A2.3 (1 | fl gE IR AR e T & PR IS AR - BIREA — eRERE
BT )

KPI A2.4 (comply or Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing Use of Resources — Water
explain) water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and | Consumption

FASRAERIEIE A2.4 (T results achieved. BIREA — KRB

BT ) el U SREGE A KOR Al B E R RE - A KRBT K

KPI A2.5 (comply or
explain)

BB BURIR A2.5 (1
BFRLEREE)

Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and with reference to per unit produced.
SN mATABEMHNRE (UBETE) REBEESEE

=
= °

Use of Resources — Use of
Packaging Materials

BRER — BEMEHER
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE - EH -
—REERERE
MiEE

Aspect A3: The Enviro

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RE

Description
g

nment and Natural Resources

BEA3 : BERRARER

General Disclosure

—RRIEE

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on
the environment and natural resources.

RIEBEITABRIERAREREREATEOBR °

CHERERES (F)

Section/Declaration

2H B

The Environment and Natural

Resources
RIBERARNER

KPI A3.1 (comply or
explain)

BAIRAERHEIR A3 (T
BT RLERRE)

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.

R ESHRBERARAERNEALE N EKNE
BEBTENTTE -

The Environment and Natural
Resources — Improve Working
Environment

RERRKABR — HELE
B

Aspect B1: Employment

EBmEB1: EE
General Disclosure

— IR E

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, antidiscrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

BRI REE  BELREA  TERE - REA - 5

#e - ol - RIBRAREMARS REF

(a) BX: &
(b) BFHBTABEAZEMNEBEIZLENNE
w} o

Employment

(G

KPI B1.1
(recommended
disclosure)
RARAERIEEB1.1 (B
EEE)

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group
and geographical region.

RIER - BIREE - FRARN KRB HEEEE -

Employment — Staff Overview

BiR —BEIME

KPI B1.2
S ERIRIZB1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.

IR FiRARI KRB DHEBRAE -

Employment — Termination

&R — fRE

HEE% S M EEARAR
—F-TEER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE - EH -
—REEKRERE
MiEE

EmB2: @EHEZE

General Disclosure

—ARIREE

BE e RERES (H)

Description
g

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

Information on:
(a)
()

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

BHAREZ TERELMREREREBEBFELEEN
(a) BUEE: &

(b) BFHBTABEAZENHBER LRI
B e

Section/Declaration

2E B

Health and Safety
[y

EmEBS3 : #RERIEI
General Disclosure

— IR E

Aspect B3: Development and Training

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.

R EE BT TIERE M MB R REERBUR - faitt
HIES -

Development and Training

R S g5

KPI B3.1
(recommended
disclosure)

RIS RUEIR B3.1 (32
EIKER)

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).
RUERINEERR (MeHREEE PREEES) 80
IXIIEEB DL

Development and Training

R S a5

KPI B3.2
(recommended
disclosure)
RABAEBURIR B3.2 (32
HRER)

The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.

RIR R EERE D - BREE TR TR -

Development and Training

sl
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
R #HgRERERE (H)

Subject Areas, Description Section/Declaration
Aspects, General #t =89

Disclosures and KPIs

TEHE - EH -

—REERERE

MiEE

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[EME B4 : & T#A|

General Disclosure Information on: Labour Standards

—RHE (a) the policies; and 25 T A=

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.

BN EE Tkt Ta -

(a) B=E: &
(b) BTHBTAEEAZENHEBEIERLBRIDN

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

fEmBs5 : HEEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the  Supply Chain Management

—MRH R supply chain. HEEER
ERHEENRTE ML S RRBUR o

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EmB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure Information on: Product Responsibility

— R E (a) the policies; and EmET

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.

BRMREHREMMRBOHRRERZS  BE  RERL

=R A RMEROTER -

(@) B &

(b) BTFHBETAGEAZENHBEEZRBRID

BHt o

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints Product Responsibility —
(recommended received and how they are dealt with. Handling of Customer Feedback
disclosure) RN E M MRS RIS FE B A R EH A - and Complaints
BB E M E1E B6.2 (2 EmBEE — BEZTFPRER
ERER) ®F

HEE% S M EEARAR
—F-TEER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RE - -#HERER

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE - EH -
—REEKRERE
MiEE

KPI B6.3
(recommended
disclosure)

RABAE MUIEIR B6.3 (32
EIKER)

HE ()

Description

i

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

B SRR AR E AR A RV IE R -

Section/Declaration

2E B

Product Responsibility —
Intellectual Property Rights

EmBEE — AMBERE

KPI B6.5
(recommended
disclosure)

RSB BUIEIR B6.5 (32
HRER)

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.

WiUHEEERRERALBERE - ARAEERTRES
JIE o

Product Responsibility —
Confidentiality of Personal Data

EmAT — EABERHRE

BEB7 : RES
General Disclosure

—RIEE

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BN IEAREE - B3R - HGEF AR ER

(a) B &

(b) BEFHETARBEAZENHBEEZLBRID

Anti-corruption
&S

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Anti-corruption — Whistleblowing
(recommended practices brought against the issuer or its employees Mechanism
disclosure) during the reporting period and the outcomes of the RE)5 — 2l
RASRAEIBIZB7.1 (3  cases.
BIKER) RERPAAHETAIAEERD Y EEENEITHA
RFHEE MFDER -
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing | Anti-corruption — Whistleblowing
(recommended procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. Mechanism
disclosure) P e fE e MR WZ T - URBBERITRER L  RES — BWmiEs
BB RURIR B7.2 (32
HIRE)
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE - EH -
—REERERE
MiEE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
R #HgRERERE (H)

Description
Rat

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEBS : #EXRE
General Disclosure

—RRIEE

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

BN E2ERBEREEMELETEMRREER
EEEE B RN EOBR

Section/Declaration

2H B

Community Investment

HEERE

KPI B8.1
(recommended
disclosure)

BB RUEIR B8.1 (32
EIKER)

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
HIEREE (0¥ E  RREFE - HIER BE X
f - mg) -

Community Investment

HEIRE

KPI B8.2
(recommended
disclosure)

R A NIE1EB8.2 (38
BWER)

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus
area.

EFIgnEMPMER (NEENXER) -

Community Investment

HEEKE

HEE% S M EEARAR
—F-TEER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBERES

o Grant Thornton
2 [=]

To the members of China Fortune Financial Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Fortune Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 117 to 251, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (*“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BURBEKEE (F)

FARETSH

AREST FEERERMNERAE - AR
HBAHRSRE W RENBARABEENS
H o R EERERMBAERGEPMBRE
FMERBMEENERRRE - MEMTE
HZEERERERNER

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RAPWETNAEEZEE

The Key Audit Matters
HRETEE

Expected credit losses on loan and trade receivables

BUERKEZBUERRAHEERFE

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the key sources of estimation uncertainty in note 4
BRI A B TEIRAMT AL 21 KT 41851 TR E 2 + Z R

At reporting date, the Group has loan and trade  Our audit procedures were designed to ensure sufficiency
receivables of approximately HK$357,066,000 which  and appropriateness of expected credit loss allowances
and include below:

BN EAIETFEERRERCEEBERENT D EME
B2 BEREENATRERF

represents management’s best estimate of the ultimate
collectible amount of loan and trade receivables net of
expected credit losses of approximately HK$9,595,000

on aggregate.

RBEBRHE - BESERBEKERKEZSEWERR
#7357,066,000 87T * ZeRBAKREEEEBEHEKER
N8 5 NIRRT BE BB E £ 58499,595,000 %
TLE AR AT IS S B R AE G ET o

Assessing the expected credit losses of loan and trade
receivables requires the management’'s judgement
and uses of estimates in determining the probability
of default occurring by considering the aging of
receivables, historical payment record and loss
experience, fair value of collaterals and forward-looking
information.

RN ERRE SRR EREEEETEERE
JEH A MEREE - BBERREFERR - BE
X ATECEk M EIRA R - IR R R FEAKRBIREE
FHEF RN R -

inquired management regarding credit policies,
and evaluated the controls that management has
established to oversee and keep track of loan and
trade receivables.

AREEEAREERR  YarhTERERZLMN
HRWE TN E 5 FEWBRFRE 1T B B A0 5R HE &) 22
e

tested on a sample basis, the values of collaterals
including pledged securities and properties of margin
financing accounts and mortgage loans respectively;

MHEREEARFREERE RZBEERONERR
BEE @ BFEEREFNYE

reviewed and questioned on a sample basis, credit
profiles and reports of selected customers;

NS EEHEIER PN ERABEMREETE
B K HRfE

PEESRSREEERAR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

BYZBEBRES (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The Key Audit Matters (Continued)
BRENSE ()

FEAREEITEIE @

How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

EMWEFTMAEEZER (8)

Expected credit losses on loan and trade receivables (Continued)

BHERKREZBUER 2 AMEEEHE (&)

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the key sources of estimation uncertainty in note 4 (Continued)

BRFFEFREN T 21 RITiE 41551 TR EZ F ZHR (&)

We identified expected credit losses of loan and trade
receivables as a key matter due to significant balances
and the extent of estimation involved.
ZRINEREHRMAERTF MWEKRMEE - HFIH
EWERRE ZRERKERNTEHREEEIRHETE R ER
EitEHE e
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reviewed individual expected credit losses for the
rationale and indicators, and questioned the basis
leading to the loss; and
EEEMNBEREEEENTEERLIER  LHE
EERAEAELRR &

assessed the estimated future cash flows by
examining the historical repayment records, historical
loss rate of trade and loan receivables, information
regarding the current creditworthiness and any
significant changes in credit quality of the debtors,
and other information.

FRREREEERS BURERKESRBUFD
FEEEEX EBEABNEERGEEEREMERKN
SEEERAREMER GG ARRRSRE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The Key Audit Matters (Continued)
BRENSE ()

BYZBABRES (K)

BRETEE @

How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

EMWEFTMAEEZER (8)

Revenue recognition of sponsor services income and recognition of contract assets and contract liabilities

in relation to sponsor services income arising from corporate finance services
REARBBRA ZKRBERAZURECXRMERBEEE ZRBABRBBAMBHNEHNEERSHEERR
Refer to notes 2.6 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements and the critical accounting judgement in note 4

BRI B TFIRE N E 2.6 R 22 LA Rt 4 EA 251 A/l

As set out in note 2.6 and 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, sponsor services income was recognised
over time during the course of the work performed by
the Group based on the input method with reference
to time incurred compared with the budgeted time
(“percentage of completion”).

WANERE TS mMARMTE2.6 R4FTE - REARBLKA
BEREBEAZTHREEERHEREERRE ([EXE
o) BE BEEBEETIERER -

During the year ended 31 March 2020, included
in the income from corporate finance services of
approximately HK$51,957,000 is sponsor services
income of approximately HK$44,372,000.
REBEE_Z_TF=A=1+—RHILFE  RBEAR®
WA (Bt ARERE R ALI51,957,00087T) &
#]44,372,000 77T °

As set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 March 2020, the Group’s contract
assets and contract liabilities in relation to the sponsor
services income arising from corporate finance
services amounted to approximately HK$1,132,000 and
approximately HK$110,000 respectively.

BAER A M BRERWF22FH - RZTE_ZFF= A
=t+—H B SEBECEMERBELZREAR
BRARRZEHNEERAEKNAGED B4 1,132,000
7870 K& #1110,00078 7T °

Our procedures in connection with recognition of revenue

of sponsor services income, and the recognition of contract

assets and contract liabilities in relation to sponsor service

incomes arising from the corporate finance services

included the following:

B BAREBARBUWAZ W R A K B R E RIS E &
ZREBARBUABBZANEERANEE - HMAH
TREFBRE TIIRE

obtained an understanding of the Group’s
methodology for revenue recognition, including
evaluated management’s judgements on the
determination of the amount and timing of revenue
recognition from sponsor services income;

TR SEEBEZWSBRTE BREFNEEEER
R B R A BRI WA B U 25 & 58 K By T P4 &Y
11

obtained the project reports, on a sample basis, and
assessed their reasonableness of the percentage of
completion by comparing the actual time incurred
to the budgeted time, enquired to the management
for reasonableness of the total budgeted time and
checked to relevant supporting evidences;
MEREEE RS WEBANRES 2 FRKLES
REFGTIAENENEABEEYREREESHRTE
ERAERGEUARERHBX R BERAEES
b R

FEESSHERERAT
—E-TEER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BYBRBMKRESE (FH)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continved) FEREETEIE o

The Key Audit Matters (Continued) How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

HMRETEE (K EMWEFTMAEEZER (8)

Revenue recognition of sponsor services income and recognition of contract assets and contract liabilities
in relation to sponsor services income arising from corporate finance services (Continued)
REABRBBRAZBREZURECEBERBEE ZRBARBBRAMBHENEERGVAERR (&)
Refer to notes 2.6 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements and the critical accounting judgement in note 4 (Continued)

BRLIFETERAZN T 2.6 R 22 U RHfit 4 BEX @71 Ak ()

We identified the recognition of sponsor services —  recomputed all sponsor services income based on the
income, contract assets and contract liabilities in percentage of completion and checked the contract
relation to sponsor services income arising from sum to the respective sponsor mandates; and
corporate finance services as a key audit matter due to BIBEZTKBDLEHTEMERBARBKEKA @ I
its significance to the consolidated financial statements. EHFATERERFEANEGHNEE &k

BB ECERERBEEZRBARBBATA L

REBARBKA - GHNEEREHBERRHEF A — — checked to the supporting evidences for work
HARETEE REDAHGEUBREAMEBE performed, the milestone billings and settlement of
N billings during the year and subsequent to the year

end, on a sample basis to determine whether contract
assets and contract liabilities are properly recognised.
RERNRFRERD TR IHE BRNERREE
REMEREXHBBAEETANEERGHNEBE

ELIRE R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the 2020 annual report
of the Company, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

BYZBABRES (K)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BYBRBMKRESE (FH)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea)

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BYBRBMKRESE (FH)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

29 June 2020

Lam Yau Hing
Practising Certificate No.: P06622
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEBEBEREMEZERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

Revenue

Net investment losses

Cost of brokerage and other services

Other income

Expected credit losses (‘ECL”) on
trade receivables, net

Staff costs

Other operating expenses

Finance costs

Share of (losses)/profits of associates
Share of losses of joint ventures

Loss before tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive expense

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences arising
on translation of foreign operations

Share of other comprehensive expense
of associates

Share of other comprehensive expense
of joint ventures

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

Loss per share for loss attributable
to equity holders of the Company
Basic
Diluted

Notes
B 5
A 5,6
BB FR 10
a0 B H A fR 7% 2 A AN
Halg A 7
H 25 IR
ZTEHEEEER
([fEffEErE]) F58 8
BT 10
HEEems 10
BE AR 9
FEIREEE AT (EBR) &
EheE R AEE
BRBi AT BT 18 10
R 11
REEFEE
Hibh2mBAX

PER AT EFT 7 E R e
HE :
BEBINRBEEZEREZR

AEEZHEBAXHAE

AR BEREFE AEL
BECESRER

EK 14
By 14

179,401
(13,384)

(21,057)
8,317

(5,409)
(89,742)
(59,583)
(58,326)

(2,363)

(30)

(62,176)
(9,638)

(71,814)

(%,430)

(4,903)

(65)

(12,398)

(84,212)

HK cents &1l

(0.78)
(0.78)

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FETT

108,072

(646)
(12,139)
6,101

(3,952
(100,103
(55,950
(54,591
10,465

)
)
)
)

(102,743)
(1,436)

(104,179)

(966)
(7,947)
(106)

(9,019)

(113,198)

HK cents 71l

PEERERMEEERAR

—E-TEER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

As at 31 March 2020 R=ZE-_TF=A=+—H

Non-current assets
Property and equipment
Goodwill
Loan receivables
Other non-current assets
Interests in associates
Interests in joint ventures

Current assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Loan and trade receivables
Contract assets
Other receivables, deposits

and prepayments
Tax recoverable
Bank balances and cash — trust
Bank balances and cash — general

Current liabilities
Trade payables, other payables
and accruals
Contract liabilities
Lease liabilities
Loan payables
Convertible bonds
Corporate bonds
Tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020

FERBEE
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HiIERBEE
NN
INER NG PR £

REBEE

BAFEIARRE
(MRAFEFIA
Bk cSREE

e E 5k K B 5 e AR R

BREE
HAb IR - BE Kk
FBNRIEA
QL ETETEN
RITHEBRERE — 1578
RITHEBRERE — — R

RBAE

B HRNRR - EfE
RE R ERT &
BHEE

HERE

R ER

AR ES

NR)ES

FESITIA

REBEEFE

EERERRBAE

Notes

F=E

15
16
21
17
18
19

20

22

23

24(a)
24(b)

25
22
26
27
28
29

22,373
3,994
3,448
6,978

95,166

992

132,951

222,173
353,618
1,132

27,159
114,565
315,132

1,033,779

333,679
110
14,006
252,600
61,937
43,064
8,929

714,325

319,454

452,405

2019

—E-NF

HK$'000
TET

17,898
3,994
3,791
7,104

102,432
1,087

136,306

121,288
356,146

91,547
4,890
531,568
243,755

1,349,194

550,469

100,259
195,244
10,340
727
857,039

492,155

628,461



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
meEMBERRET (&)

As at 31 March 2020 R=ZE-_TF=A=+—H

B B———
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5T TET BT
Non-current liabilities FERBARL
Lease liabilities HEaRE 26 1,269 —
Convertible bonds Al AR ESH 28 19,300 72,823
Corporate bonds NEESF 29 108,322 147,912
128,891 220,735
Net assets EERE 323,514 407,726
Capital and reserves EXRf#EE
Share capital N 30 91,531 91,531
Reserves b 231,983 316,195
Total equity EREE 323,514 407,726
XIE Zhichun ZHUYi
REE KB
Chairman Director
= EE

TEEREREBARAR

S
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEmEER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & EZ —Z—FF = A =+—HILFE

At 1 April 2018

Loss for the year

QOther comprehensive expense
for the year:

Exchange differences arising
on translation of
foreign operations

Share of other comprehensive
expense of associates

Share of other comprehensive
expense of joint ventures

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

Issue of convertible bonds (note 28)

Issue of shares upon subscription

Issue of shares for convertible
bonds exercised (note 28)

At 31 March 2019

At 1 April 2019

Loss for the year

QOther comprehensive expense
for the year:

Exchange differences arising
on franslation
of foreign operations

Share of other comprehensive
expense of associates

Share of other comprehensive
expense of joint ventures

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

Lapse of conversion option
at maturity (note 28)

At 31 March 2020

Share
capital

kA
HK$000
T

- )\§0A-A 70,861
KEEER =
AEEEMEERR -

HEENEHEL
LEHER

FEEBENT]
Et2ERY =

EEAEAT

At 2ERY =
AEERARYEE
BriakEs (i) -
REEEIRG 14,170
SRR

ki3 (Mik28) 6,500
R-F-NE=A=1-8 91531
R=F-hEmA-A 91531
KEEER =
REEAHRER -

BEIEBEEL
EXZE

EiBERTEMEARR

EEAENTAMRARY

AEERERSAE

SR ARER (i 2e)

RZE-EF=A=1-H 91,531
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Share
premium

ki
HK$ 000
T

569,676

85,020
34307
689,003

689,003

669,003

Translation
reserve

EiEf

HK$000
Thn

3598

(9%6)
(7947)

(106)

(9019)

(5421)

(5421)

(74%0)
(4909)

(65)

(12,308)

(17819)

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARTHEAEL
Convertible
bond Special Capital
reserves reserve reserve
TaR
E5RE KhEE BARE
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
TEn Thn Thn
(note 28)  (note 31(a)  (note 31(b))
(Mos)  (Mst(@)  (WEE31(0)
66,821 13,524 1863
14,745 - -
(9,584) - —
71982 13,524 1,863
71982 13,524 1863
(52,823) - —
19,159 13,524 1,863

Other  Accumulated

reserve losses

At 2iER

HK$'000 HK$ 000

Thr T
(note 31(c))
(HizE31(c))

(3,440) (347,137)

— (104,179)

— (104,179)

(3440) (451,316)

(3,440) (451,316)

— (71814)

- (71.814)

— 52,823

(3,440) (470,307)

Total
equity

REAE

HK$ 000
ThEn

375,766
(104,179)

14745
99,190

31223
407726

407726
(71.814)

(7430)
(4909)

(65)

(84,212)

323,514



OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Bad debt written off on
trade receivables
Depreciation of property
and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Dividend income
Finance costs
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property
and equipment
Gain on disposal of
a joint venture
Interest income
ECL on trade receivables, net

Net investment losses
Share of losses/(profits)
of associates
Share of losses of joint ventures

Operating cash flow before
movements in working capital
Decrease in other non-current assets
Increase in financial assets at FVTPL

Increase in loan receivables
Decrease in trade receivables
Increase in contract assets
Decrease/(Increase) in

other receivables,

deposits and prepayments
Decrease/(Increase) in bank balances

and cash — trust

(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables,

other payables and accruals
Increase in contract liabilities

Cash used in operation

Income tax refunded
Income tax paid

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

Notes

B EE

REEK

BRI RIES 1R
LA SIE
B ZREWERK
2 sE R AR 10
Y R E
15
FREEENE 15
%= U A
BB R 9
HEMERBE L
B8 ()
HE—MEERFZ
Wz
F 2N
B SRR 2
TERMEEEEFE 8
REEEFE 10
il /NG
&8 Carl)
L& E N EEE

LEESEIHAZ
RERERE
HibIERBEERD
BAHEFARRR
Z & REER I
FE W EFRIE N
B 5 MR R
BRBEERMN
HAib MR - e R
FERRERD, (5H0)

RITEBRASE —
SR,/ ()
BHBAEH A H
RIS () /48
AR EHN

REXBHAAS

EREMFH
EfFEH

REXBTAR S FH

2019
—E-NF

HK$'000

FET
(62,176) (102,743)
600 —
10,406 3,325
18,904 -
(1,151) (3,733)
58,326 54,591
2 (335)
— (35)
(4,143) (4,887)
5,409 3,952
13,384 646
2,363 (10,465)
30 —
41,954 (59,684)
126 1,246
(114,269) (9,077)
(47,187) (83,133)
44,049 64,124
(1,132) —
64,388 (74,137)
417,003 (321,215)
(423,829) 322,574
110 —
(18,787) (159,302)
4,890 —
(1,436) (8,532)
(15,333) (167,834)

PEESRSREEERAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
GnERERER (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &2 —ZE —_FF=H=1T—HIEFE

Notes
BisE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Dividend income received BHAR B HA 1,151
Interests received BB 4,143
Purchases of property and equipment B A Y3 K 5% & 15 (25)
Proceeds from redemption FE[O 2| HAR B 18 2 TS 5RIE
of investment upon maturity —
Proceeds on disposal of property S W2 KRR A 2 FTS RIE
and equipment —
NET CASH GENERATED FROM REFEE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFRAE 5,269
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
Proceeds from issue BATAMAIRE S 2 FT1S 5/IE
of convertible bonds —
Redemption of convertible bonds BB TR E 28 (12,422)
Repayment of loans BEER (778,545)
Repayment of corporate bonds EEBARES (10,000)
Repayment of lease liabilities @iﬁ‘ﬁfﬁﬁ (18,487)
Proceeds from loans BERZ TS RE 930,180
Proceeds from issue of new shares %ﬁ%ﬁﬂxh ZFW%?X —
Interests paid BIHE (21,855)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ MEEBHRE (FA)
(USED IN) b2k 9=
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 88,871
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) ReRREEEYZ
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #4107 (B4) F48 78,807
Effect of foreign currency translation GBI o SR (7,430)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHNZRERAEEEY
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 243,755
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZAESRBSEEY,
AT THE END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances FEIRITAEER R
and cash — general BEe — M 24(b) 315,132

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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2019

— N
HK$'000
TET

3,733
5,087
(7,557)

60,102

559

61,924

60,000

(1,180,000)
(9,900)

920,000
99,190
(19,482)

(130,192)

(236,102)
(966)

480,823

243,755



1.

2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section of this annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in securities and insurance
brokerage and provision of asset management, corporate
finance, margin financing and money lending services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company. Figures are rounded up to the nearest thousand
unless otherwise specified.

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2020 were approved by the board of directors on
29 June 2020.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These annual consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and the accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong.

1.

—REH
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The adoption of new and amended
HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s financial
statements, if any, are disclosed in note 3.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
financial instruments classified as at fair value through
profit or loss and fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”"), which are stated at fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the accounting
policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge and judgment of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 March each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power over the entity, only substantive rights
relating to the entity (held by the Group and others) are
considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements from
the date it gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
and losses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Where unrealised losses on sales of intra-
group asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment from the
Group’s perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where
necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Where certain assets of the subsidiary
are measured at revalued amounts or fair values and
the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity, the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed
of the related assets (i.e., reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred directly to accumulated losses). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS
9 “Financial Instruments” or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a
joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included in
a disposal group. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes
in consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs
of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable at the reporting date. All dividends whether
received out of the investee’s pre or post-acquisition
profits are recognised in the Company'’s profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence, which is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control of those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions relating
about relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

In consolidated financial statements, an investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at cost
and subsequently accounted for using the equity method.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate or joint
venture recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment
as part of the investment. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of
exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed
and equity instruments issued by the Group, plus any
costs directly attributable to the investment. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the determination of the Group’s share of
the associate or joint venture’s profit or loss in the period in
which the investment is acquired.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in the
associate or joint venture is carried at cost and adjusted
for the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share
of the associate or joint venture’s net assets less any
identified impairment loss, unless it is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale). The profit or loss for the year includes
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the associate or joint venture for the year, including
any impairment loss on the investment in associate or
joint venture recognised for the year. The Group’s other
comprehensive income for the year includes its share
of the associate or joint venture’s other comprehensive
income for the year.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associate and joint venture are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the associates or joint venture.
Where unrealised losses on assets sales between the
Group and its associate or joint venture are reversed on
equity accounting, the underlying asset is also tested
for impairment from the Group’s perspective. Where the
associate or joint venture uses accounting policies other
than those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances, adjustments are made, where
necessary, to conform the associate or joint venture’s
accounting policies to those of the Group when the
associate or joint venture’s financial statements are used
by the Group in applying the equity method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate or a joint
venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or
joint venture, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest in the associate
or joint venture is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or joint venture.

After the application of equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
additional impairment loss on the Group’s investment in
its associates or joint venture. At each reporting date, the
Group determines whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment in associate or joint venture is impaired.
If such indications are identified, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as being the difference between the
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) of the associate or joint venture and
its carrying amount. In determining the value in use of the
investment, the Group estimates its share of the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the associate or joint venture, including
cash flows arising from the operations of the associate or
joint venture and the proceeds on ultimate disposal of the
investment.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of equity method from
the date when it ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture.
The difference between (i) the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest
in the associate or joint venture; and (ii) the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the equity method
was discontinued, is recognised in the profit or loss. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as
would have been required if the associate or joint venture
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by the investee would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the entity reclassifies the gain or
loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are stated at
cost less impairment losses, unless classified as held for
sale or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale.

Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill
arising on acquisition of a subsidiary. Accounting for
goodwill arising on acquisition of investment in an
associate or a joint venture is set out in note 2.3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised
as an asset at the date that control is acquired (the
acquisition date). Goodwill is measured as the excess
of the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
("CGUs”) and is tested annually for impairment (note 2.19).

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is determined using the nominal value of shares that
have been issued, after deducting any transaction costs
associated with the issuing of shares (net of any related
income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental cost
directly attributable to the equity transaction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue arises mainly from the commission income for
securities and insurance brokerage, advisory services for
asset management and corporate finance and interest
income for money lending, factoring services, margin
financing and asset management.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group
follows a 5-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer

2. ldentifying the performance obligations

3.  Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance
obligations

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance
obligation(s) are satisfied.

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is
allocated amongst the various performance obligations
based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. The
transaction price for a contract excludes any amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over
time, when (or as) the Group satisfies performance
obligations by transferring the promised goods or services
to its customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

The Group provides securities dealing and brokerage,
placing and underwriting services. Commission income
from securities dealing and brokerage, placing and
underwriting services are recognised at a point in time on
the execution date of the trades at a certain percentage
of the transaction value of the trades executed and the
relevant placing and underwriting are completed.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

The Group provides advisory services for asset
management and corporate finance services which
included advisory services and sponsor services. The
customers simultaneously receive and consume the
benefit provided by the Group, hence the revenue for
advisory services is recognised over time based on the
services transferred to customers up to date.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The Group treats all sponsor services promised in
the contract as a single performance obligation. In
determining the timing of satisfaction of the performance
obligation, the Group examines its services on contract
basis and considers that it has a right to payment at an
amount that reasonably compensates it for its performance
completed to date at all times throughout the contract.

Sponsor services are recognised over time during the
course of the work performed by the Group. The input
method, i.e. the time incurred compared with the time
budget, which depict the Group’s performance towards
satisfying the performance obligation.

The Group provides money lending, factoring services,
margin financing and asset management. Interest income
is recognised on a time proportion basis by using the
effective interest method.

The Group provided consultancy services to customers.
The customers simultaneously receive and consume
the benefit provided by the Group, hence the revenue is
recognised over time based on the services transferred to
customers up to date.

The Group also provided insurance brokerage.
Commission income for insurance brokerage is recognised
at a point in time on execution date of the insurance
contracts executed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

For any new contracts entered into on or after 1 April 2019,
the Company considers whether a contract is, or contains
a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a
contract, that conveys the right to use an identified asset
(the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for
consideration’. To apply this definition, the Group assesses
whether the contract meets three key evaluations which
are whether:

— the contract contains an identified asset, which is
either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly
specified by being identified at the time the asset is
made available to the Group;

— the Group has the right to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use, considering its
rights within the defined scope of the contract; and

— the Group has the right to direct the use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use.

The Group assess whether it has the right to direct ‘how
and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the
period of use.

For contracts that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease and non-lease component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MBHRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the consolidated
statement of financial position. The right-of-use asset
is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial
measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs
incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset at the end of
the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of
the lease commencement date (net of any lease incentives
received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a
straight-line basis from the lease commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-
use asset or the end of the lease term unless the Group
is reasonably certain to obtain ownership at the end of
the lease term. The Group also assesses the right-of-use
asset for impairment when such indicator exists.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee
(Continued)

Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable payments based on an index or rate,
and amounts expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to
be exercised by the Group and payment of penalties for
terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be
reduced for lease payments made and increased for
interest cost on the lease liability. It is remeasured to
reflect any reassessment or lease modification, or if there
are changes in in-substance fixed payments.

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit or
loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases
using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising
a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in
relation to these leases are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of
12 months or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee
(Continued)

On the consolidated statement of financial position,
right-of-use assets have been included in property and
equipment.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to the profit or loss on a straight line basis over
the lease terms except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in the profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At the reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date retranslation
of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MBHRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated (i.e. only translated using the exchange rates
at the transaction date).

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into Hong
Kong dollars. Assets and liabilities have been translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates at the reporting
date. Income and expenses have been converted into
the Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates, or at the average rates over the
reporting period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from this
procedure have been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the translation
reserve in equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation have been treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e., a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or loss
of significant influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the accumulated exchange
differences in respect of that operation attributable to the
Group are reclassified to profit or loss. Any exchange
differences that have previously been attributed to non-
controlling interests are derecognised, but they are not
reclassified to profit or loss.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit plans under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are required
to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. This subsidiary is required to
contribute certain percentages of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as employees render services during the year. The
Group’s obligations under these plans are limited to the
fixed percentage contributions payable.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave, maternity leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBHRERME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESFHBE »

(Continued)
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. FriS i #5 BN HATH 18 MR ER 18 ©
Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those BB HEER, SHABERIE
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to HIRITHBA RS EHFEBAEMR
the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the B IS R R S R I TS IR 1
reporting date. They are calculated according to the tax MR HRE BB AR 2 B Ek
rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which AR - ZESHENBRBRFAER
they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All Tt v A 2 AR R B A ERREE A 2
changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised ERBUERTE o BNAATIE & E 3k
as a component of tax expense in profit or loss. BEZFAEZHNEZTRERE
MRS —3D -

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on EERIB TR E B B4R & Bt
temporary differences at the reporting date between BHRERANEENBEREBEREE
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the EENMER  ENEREAAE
consolidated financial statements and their respective tax EEE o BEMBEAEBE—RERN
bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised FrERERRERFERMER - BT
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets MIBEEAB MR ERZE
are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, B AIAETIEE R R EH AR
tax losses available to be carried forward as well as BERAVHE AR ARG
other unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable BRERM RN (BEREERT
that taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary Ty 2% AJEE MY R E
differences, will be available against which the deductible B RERANEBREIRERN
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax BEEZIBERBR o

credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if ME R EHEERETTERER
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from HABAEENRS (XBE6H
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) BRON) P2 BRI LR ZE
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither ENXBE  ATSBRAELERE
taxable nor accounting profit or loss. BEEREBE-

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable RHTEAR  BERRTREER
temporary differences arising on investments in A IEMEENERHERE
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except where RARRELEHIERE - WA
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary SEA AT TR ERAORKE -
differences and it is probable that the temporary B fE 0] 18 B AR 2R K 0] ge Bl 7%
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. EREFRAIBRAD ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MBHRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &2 — T —TF = A=1+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability is
settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity if they relate to items that are charged
or credited to other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.

When different tax rates apply to different levels of taxable
income, deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using the average tax rates that are expected to apply to
the taxable income of the periods in which the temporary
differences are expected to reverse.

The determination of the average tax rates requires an
estimation of (1) when the existing temporary differences
will reverse and (2) the amount of future taxable profit in
those years. The estimate of future taxable profit includes:

— income or loss excluding reversals of temporary
differences; and

— reversals of existing temporary differences.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented
in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ll‘li\

MR ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property and equipment (other than cost of right of use
assets as described in note 2.7) are initially recognised at
acquisition cost. They are subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation on property and equipment is provided
to write off the cost less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at
the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements Shorter of remaining
lease term or expected

useful life of 3-6 years

Furniture and fixtures 25% per annum

Office equipment 25% per annum

Motor vehicles 25% per annum

Right-of-use assets Remaining lease term

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other costs, such
as repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The club membership are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets, with indefinite useful lives, are tested for
impairment as described below in note 2.19.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank —
general and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
short term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of bank balances and cash as defined
in note 24.

Deposits with banks or other financial institutions with a
maturity of more than three months and within one year at
acquisition are classified as short-term deposits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or when the financial asset and substantially all of its
risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability
is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Classification and initial measurement of financial
assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component and are measured
at the transaction price in accordance with HKFRS 15,
the Group’s all financial assets are initially measured
at fair value, in case of a financial asset not at FVTPL,
plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The Group’s financial assets are classified into amortised
cost or FVTPL or FVOCI. The classification is determined
by both, the entity’s business model for managing
the financial asset and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Classification and initial measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

All income and expenses relating to financial assets those
are recognised in profit or loss are presented within other
income and finance costs, except for expected credit
losses of loan and trade receivables and other financial
assets measured at amortised cost which are presented
as separate line item in the profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Debt investments
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if
the assets meet the following conditions (and are not
designated as FVTPL):

— they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and collect
its contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest
income from these financial assets are included in
profit or loss. Discounting is omitted where the effect of
discounting is immaterial. The Group’s bank balances and
cash — trust and general, loan and trade receivables and
other receivables and deposits and regulatory deposits
fall into this category of financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MBHRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets those are held within a different business
model other than “hold to collect” or “hold to collect and
sell” are categorised at FVTPL. Further, irrespective of
business model, financial assets whose contractual cash
flows are not solely payments of principal and interest are
accounted for at FVTPL.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment, the
Group elects to designate the investment at FVOCI (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in “Fair value reserve — non-recycling” in
equity. Such elections are made on an instrument-by-
instrument basis, but only be made if the investment meets
the definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective.

The equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
in “Fair value reserve — non-recycling” will not be
reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to accumulated
losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established. Dividends are
included in revenue line item in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables and accruals, loan payables, lease
liabilities, corporate bonds and convertible bonds.

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are initially
measured at fair value, and where applicable, adjusted for
transaction costs unless the Group designated a financial
liability at FVTPL.

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease
liabilities) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

All interest-related charges reported in profit or loss are
included in finance costs.

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in Note
2.7.

Borrowings (including loan payables and corporate bonds)

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
(Continued)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds those can be converted to share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received at the time
do not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability component and
an equity component.

Convertible bonds issued by the Group those contain both
financial liability and equity components are classified
separately into respective liability and equity components
on initial recognition. On initial recognition, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using the prevailing
market interest rate for similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible bond and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the call option for conversion of
the bond into equity, is included in equity as convertible
bond reserves.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The equity component will remain in equity until conversion
or redemption of the bond.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
(Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

When the bond is converted, the equity component of
convertible bond and the carrying value of the liability
component at the time of conversion are transferred to
share capital as consideration for the shares issued. If
the bond is redeemed, the convertible bond reserves are
released directly to accumulated losses.

Trade payables and other payables and accruals

They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities of the Group are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when, there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MBHRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

HKFRS 9’s impairment requirements use more forward-
looking information to recognise ECL — the “ECL model”.
Instruments within the scope included loans and other
debt-type financial assets measured at amortised cost,
trade receivables and contract assets recognised and
measured under HKFRS 15.

The Group considers a broader range of information when
assessing credit risk and measuring ECL, including past
events, current conditions, reasonable and supportable
forecasts that affect the expected collectability of the
future cash flows of the instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is
made between:

— financial instruments that have not deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial recognition
or that have low credit risk (“Stage 1”) and

— financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial recognition
and whose credit risk is not low (“Stage 2”).

“Stage 3” would cover financial assets that have objective
evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

“12-month ECL” are recognised for the Stage 1 category
while “lifetime ECL” are recognised for the Stage 2
category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-
weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life
of the financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

For trade receivables (excluded margin financing), the
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL
and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL
at each reporting date. These are the expected shortfalls
in contractual cash flows, considering the potential
for default at any point during the life of the financial
assets. In calculating the ECL, the Group established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience and external indicators, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables (excluded margin
financing) and contract assets have been grouped based
on the days past due. The contract assets relate to
unbilled work in progress and have substantially the same
risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same
types of contracts. The Group has therefore concluded
that the ECL rates for trade receivables (excluded margin
financing) are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates
for the contract assets.

The Group measures the loss allowance for other
receivables and margin financing receivables equal to
12-month ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of default occurring since
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MBHRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial assets at the
reporting date with the risk of default occurring on the
financial assets at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

— an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the end of each reporting period.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if it
has a low risk of default, the borrower has strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term and adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfill its contractual
cash flow obligations.

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collateral
held by the Group).

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade
receivables, contract assets and other financial assets
measured at amortised cost are set out in note 34(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount of the obligation can be made. Where the
time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain events not
wholly within the control of the Group, are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020

2. FESTTEE @

EAREANBERMHARERSE
ERBIETESE - A A EEH
AAEEN@mINRBEITEE - X
BLUL P R SEfA AT A - REE

R - HWEB 2 KEEBES
K- AREAETREEMRSB
ZIEZ2 IR

B B R R B I
3 #E 352 A R Bk 35 B B £ A
T

i 47 A 25 SN 2 RI BEMEEUE
HEEH AR REIEL A EML
i e EERTERERRR
BfE - EREMEINRZ AT REE
TRAKRUBRID o fidf AN 52 B A] BE 7R
ReEEBARTRKEEHELEX
FRRERIEAKET G2
THEESMMETE - AN SRE
RBARBE - ELERRINR A
BEMEARIEE RIBRSD o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The following assets are subject to impairment testing:

o Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary;

° Property and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) ;

° Other intangible assets;

o Club membership; and

° The Company’s interests in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite
useful life or those not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, irrespective of whether there
is any indication that they are impaired. All other assets
are tested for impairment whenever there are indications
that the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs of disposal, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessment of time value
of money and the risk specific to the asset.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e., a CGU). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment and some
are tested at CGU level. Corporate assets are allocated
to individual CGUs, when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified. Goodwill in particular is allocated to those
CGUs that are expected to benefit from synergies of the
related business combination and represent the lowest
level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purpose and not be larger than
an operating segment.

Impairment losses recognised for CGUs, to which goodwill
has been allocated, are credited initially to the carrying
amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is
charged pro rata to the other assets in the CGU, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less cost of disposal, or
value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see note 2.6) before being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration under the payment terms
set out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed for
ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note 2.17
and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional (see note 2.16).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 2.6). A contract liability would also
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see note 2.16).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z - —F

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the board that makes strategic decisions.

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a party is considered to be related to the

Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and if that person:

(iy  has control or joint control of the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the

same group.

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #{Z - —F

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b)

the party is an entity and if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(i

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED

HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new and amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
which are relevant to the Group’s operations and effective for
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual

period beginning from 1 April 2019.

o HKFRS 16 — Leases

° Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features with

Negative Compensation

° Amendments to HKAS 19 — Plan Amendment, Curtailment

or Settlement

° Amendments to HKAS 28 — Long-term Interests in

Associates and Joint Ventures

o Amendments to HKFRS — Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

° HK (IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments

Other than as noted below, the adoption of these new and
amended HKFRSs had no material impact on how the results
and financial position for the current and prior periods have

been prepared and presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” replaced HKAS 17 “Leases” along
with three Interpretations (HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”, HK(SIC)-Int 15
“Operating Leases-Incentives” and HK(SIC)-Int 27 “Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of
a Lease”). HKFRS 16 has been applied using the modified
retrospective approach, with the cumulative effect of adopting
HKFRS 16 being recognised in equity as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings for the current period.
Prior periods have not been restated.

For contracts in place at the date of initial application, the Group
has elected to apply the definition of a lease from HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 and has not applied HKFRS 16 to arrangements
that were previously not identified as lease under HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4.

The Group has elected not to include initial direct costs in the
measurement of the right-of-use assets for operating leases in
existence at the date of initial application of HKFRS 16, being 1
April 2019. At this date, the Group has also elected to measure
the right-of-use assets at an amount equal to the lease liability
adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease payments that
existed at the date of transition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MBHRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3.

HKFRSs (Continued)

Instead of performing an impairment review on the right-of-use
assets at the date of initial application, the Group has relied on
its historical assessment as to whether leases were onerous
immediately before the date of initial application of HKFRS 16.

On transition, for leases previously accounted for as operating
leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months, the
Group has applied the optional exemptions to not recognise
right-of-use assets but to account for the lease expense on a
straight-line basis over the remaining lease term.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to
lease liabilities recognised under HKFRS 16 was 2.38%.

AEEDKEERBERERTEWE

SEAFE16RE AR FAEAAEE
=EBREBRZBERNG  MAER
BRER B EREEELETRE
S0

RBERE - sLERRKEHEEAR
EATHBAR12EANEE - K&
BEEEMEZFER R REGEREHE
BE  MERFGHEBANAERER
MERS A -

FERMIRIEE BRI 75 S 2RI S 1657

The following is a reconciliation of total operating lease
commitments at 31 March 2019 to the lease liabilities

recognised at 1 April 2019:

Total operating lease commitments
disclosed at 31 March 2019
before discounting

Less: Lease with remaining lease term
of less than 12 months

Less: Others

Discounting using incremental
borrowing rate as at 1 April 2019

Total lease liabilities recognised
under HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019

Classified as:
Current lease liabilities
Non-current lease liabilities
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

The following table summarises the impacts of the adoption of
HKFRS 16 on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 April 2019:

Increase in right-of-use assets A& A N
Increase in current lease liabilities MENFRE B &g

Increase in non-current lease liabilities BN & & EIG N
The adoption of HKFRS 16 also results in changes in accounting
policy of leases, details of which are as set out in Note 2.7.

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs have been
published but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted
early by the Group.

o HKFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts ?

° Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or

Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture ®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

° Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a Business *

° Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 —
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform '

° Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Covid-19 — Related Rent
Concessions ®

° Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 — Definition of
Material '

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
g Effective date not yet determined
- Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period
beginning on or after the effective date of the pronouncement.
The directors expected that the adoption of these new and
amended HKFRSs will not have a material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 2, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses
reported and disclosures made in the consolidated financial
statements. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

There are no significant areas of critical judgement in applying
accounting policies that have any significant effect on the
amount recognised in the consolidated financial statements
other that the following:

Revenue from sponsor services is recognised over time
by reference to the progress of satisfying the performance
obligation at the reporting date. This is measured based on
the time incurred compared with the budget time, which depict
the Group’s performance towards satisfying the performance
obligation. Significant estimates and judgements are required
in determining the accuracy of the time incurred and the extent
of the time budget. In making the above estimation, the Group
conducts periodic review on the time incurred and make
reference to past experience.

4,

B AEH U RIEHT
AHEET TR

REMAEBEN SR (FNHE
2) B ARBIERANZAMBHRR
EREE  BfF WARMAXZ
RR T B A B BT 1 2 35 B 1 1 VB
CRHPEGCE SRR CE IS
ERRERASBERNEBEARAE
#t - BREARA R BINZEME -

et RAEARRSHESEN - WES
HAEFHERT RAF E%HIRE - AIARE
IR EERH At HIMER - HE AR
(TR S &Sl - IR 2k SR HARY
AIERERT @R HIR AR R M

RERSFBRFAENEATHE
KAV Ef I 8 SR & W IS 3R R PR RE AR Y
BEEREMERTE - HETIIER
N

BREBARBERNEELERRE
B HA B 4 & 1E 10 22 A 2 BB S [ A
R It DENE E AR R E EEE R
AL BRAKETKEBEORED
BR - EXEELNRERAEERRHE
EEUEFBRELEANGES RAEH - X
fEH Bl b5t - AR EE SR
ELARRY2EBELR -

PEESRSREEERAR
S

169



170

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting year, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the CGUs to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at
31 March 2020, the carrying amount of goodwill is approximately
HK$3,994,000 (2019: HK$3,994,000). No impairment loss has
been recognised as at 31 March 2020 and 2019. Details of the
impairment testing on goodwill are set out in note 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Under HKFRS 9, the Group makes allowances on items subjects
to ECL (including loan and trade receivables, other receivables
and deposits and contract assets) based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period as set
out in note 2.17. As at 31 March 2020, the aggregate carrying
amounts of loan and trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits and contract assets amounted to approximately
HK$357,066,000 (net of ECL allowance and bad debt
written off of approximately HK$9,595,000 and HK$600,000
respectively) (2019: approximately HK$359,937,000 (net of ECL
allowance of approximately HK$4,186,000)), approximately
HK$26,758,000 (net of ECL allowance of nil) (2019:
approximately HK$91,261,000 (net of ECL allowance of nil)),
and approximately HK$1,132,000 (net of ECL allowance of nil)
(2019: nil (net of ECL allowance of nil)), respectively.

When the actual future cash flows are different from expected,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of trade
receivables and other items within the scope of ECL under
HKFRS 9 and credit losses in the periods in which such estimate
has been changed.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The Group determines whether the interests in associates
are impaired required an estimation of the future cash flows
expected to arise and the expected dividend yield from the
associates in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount
of interests in associates is approximately HK$95,166,000
(2019:HK$102,432,000) and no impairment loss has been
recognised (2019: nil).

The Group determines whether the interests in joint ventures
are impaired required an estimation of the future cash flows
expected to arise and the expected dividend yield from the
joint ventures in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of
interests in joint ventures is approximately HK$992,000 (2019:
HK$1,087,000). No impairment was recognised during the year
ended 31 March 2020 (2019: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z —ZE —FF - A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The fair value of the liability components of convertible bonds
issued during the year ended 31 March 2019 of HK$45,255,000
that are not traded in an active market are estimated by the
Group based on the valuation performed by an independent
valuer. The fair values of the liability components of convertible
bonds are valued using Binomial option pricing model and
the contractual cash flows over the remaining contractual
terms based on assumptions supported, where possible, by
observable market prices or rates. The liability components
of convertible bonds are initial recognised at fair value and
measured at amortised cost subsequently. The carrying amount
of the liability components of convertible bonds as at 31 March
2020 is approximately HK$81,237,000 (2019: HK$268,067,000).
Further details are set out in note 28.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

5. REVENUE

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable
for services provided in the normal course of business. An
analysis of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 March
2020 and 2019 is as follows:

Dividend income & B A

Income from securities BALILEB 2 BA
brokerage business

Interest income from money WEEB A BWA
lending business

Income from insurance RIS AR EETS 2 WA

brokerage business
Income from asset management ~ AEEREK WA

business

Margin interest income from BARICETS 2 FFREF B
securities brokerage business

Service income from ERE 2 RFWA

corporate finance
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A

M A B0 IE 6 335 B2 P 7 4R AR TS
MR R 2 RS - A
HE-FE-FFR-F-NF=S
=+ ALEFRRAZ AT ¢

1,151

57,056

40,702

2,260

18,570

7,705

51,957

179,401

2019

—E-NF

HK$'000
TAET

3,733

21,569

10,364

2,594

2,578

17,200

50,034

108,072



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. REVENUE (continuea)

The Group derives revenue from the services over time and at a
point in time in the following table.

Revenue from contracts with
customers by timing
of recognition

Overtime:

Service income from
corporate finance

Income from asset
management business

At a point in time:

Income from securities
brokerage business

Income from insurance
brokerage business

Revenue from contracts with
customers within the scope
of HKFRS 15

Other information:

Dividend income

Interest income from
asset management business

Interest income from money
lending business

Margin interest income from
securities brokerage business

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

RERSENREETFE

BERFET -
ERBEPTSIREEA

BEEERBAERA

RE—I5R7% -
BEFRILEBIAFEA

RERELEHIRHEA

FAE B B 75 R A 2 R
%15 SREEINAY
RERFEHZHA

Hih & xR}

BB A

BEEIREK

S B A
MERBAEMEBA

B EGE TR
M EUA

5. WA

AEEBERE RN X R ERELN
PRIGWALA TR ©

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHBT

#Z2 JA
51,957 50,034
5,425 2,578
57,056 21,569
2,260 2,594
116,698 76,775
1,151 3,733
13,145 —
40,702 10,364
7,705 17,200
179,401 108,072

PEERERMEEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MBHRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

5. REVENUE (continuea)

The unsatisfied performance obligations are for periods of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the board, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purpose of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance is focus on the type of
services provided. No operating segments identified by the
chief operating decision maker have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1)  The securities brokerage and margin financing segment
engages in securities brokerage and margin financing in
Hong Kong;

2) The corporate finance segment engages in the provision
of corporate finance services;

3) The money lending and factoring segment engages in the
provision of money lending and factoring services in Hong
Kong;

4)  The consultancy and insurance brokerage segment
engages in the provision of consultancy services and
insurance brokerage in Hong Kong; and

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #{Z - —F

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
under HKFRS 8 are as follows: (Continued)

5) The asset management segment engages in the
provision of asset management and advisory services to
professional investors and the management of financial
investments.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
2. Segment results represent the results from each segment
without allocation of central administration expenses, directors’
remunerations, and other operating income. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance assessment. Inter-
segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices.

For the purposes of current year's segment presentation, the
segment information of proprietary trading has been combined
with securities brokerage and margin financing and unallocated
accounts, accordingly the comparative figures have been
reclassified. In addition, certain comparative figures have
been reclassified in order to conform to the current year'’s
presentation.

Information regarding the above segments is reported below.

6.

mEMBHRERME (&)
F=A=+-AILEE

DEER

@
(=

mE - AEEREFBMBEHRS
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P
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#)

N
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5) BEERESH HERMEXRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHERMETE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

AR .
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEBER )
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results AEEZAHEREEDEBE5 2K
by reportable and operating segments. AREESITAT o
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE-Z-ZF=-A=+—-HLHFE
Securities Consultancy
brokerage Money and
andmargin ~ Corporate  lendingand  insurance Asset Inter-segment

financing finance factoring ~ brokerage management  Unallocated  elimination  Consolidated
BEELR BER
FREE  LERE  HERRE  RREE  HEER B ABEEE Ee)
HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TEL THR ThR THL TET ThR ThT

Revenue WA 64,944 51,957 40,702 2,260 19,538 - - 179,401
Inter-seqment revenue AHERA (7313) - - 133 513 - 6,667 -
Net investment losses REEETE (3.952) (345) - - (9,087) - - (13,384)
Total 3t 53,679 51,612 40,702 2,393 10,964 - 6,667 166,017
Finance costs BENA (26) - - - (2.201) (56,099) - (58,326)
Others ) (655 (50484 (3309 (@705) (187 (8% (666 (1674M)
Seqment resuls PR 17108 1,128 37309 (61 (@%0)  (1050%) - (e
Share of losses of associates EltBERTER (2,363)
Share of losses of oint ventures EltRENTER (30)
Loss before fax BiHER (62,176)
Income tax expense FEHER (9,638)
Loss for the year KEEER (71,814)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
meEMBRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

Va1 B2\ I
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER @
For the year ended 31 March 2019 (restated) BE-ZE—NWE=A=1+—HLEE
(RRE5)

Securities Consultancy

brokerage Maoney and

andmergn ~ Comporate  lendingand  insurance Asset Inter-segment
financing finance factoring ~ brokerage  management  Unallocated  elimination  Consolidated
EHIER EfRk

fEEE  0%8E  HERRR  RBER  HEER AR HIREE 4
HKS000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS000
Tén T Tt Thn Ti#n Tt Tt Thn

Revenue WA 39,13 50,034 10,364 259 5,945 — — 108,072
Inter-segment revenue AHEEA - - - - 4 5,888 (5932) =
Net investment gains(losses) RENR/ (BR) 58 (5572) 4 = = 5,65 (1) = (646)
Total &t 33,563 50079 10,364 2,504 11,647 511 (5,932) 107,426
Fiarce coss T (5959) - - - N T
Ot Ef @8 (83 (M) B (84 (BEY) 4 (160
Segment results iz 3 1,744 6,922 (799) (6,818) (118,029) — (113,208)
Share of profis of associates B BENTER 10,465
Share oflosses of oin ventures ElERENTEE =
Loss before tax RENES (102,743)
Income tax expense FiEHAR (1436)
Loss for the year FERER (104,179)

TEERTREEBRAR

S



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

by reportable and operating segments:

Segment assets
Securities brokerage and
margin financing

THEE
B MATRE

Corporate finance PERE

Money lending and factoring BERIRE

Consultancy and insurance REM RRBE AL
brokerage

Asset management BEEER

Total segment assets DEPEEMAE

Unallocated Fval

Consolidated assets REBE

Segment liabilities PIWEE

Securities brokerage and BRI RIFRHE
margin financing

Corporate finance EFE

Money lending and factoring MERRE

Consultancy and insurance REM RRBR LA
brokerage

Asset management BEEHE

Total segment liabilities HEAGEERE

Unallocated F vl

Consolidated liabilities mEaE

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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6. DEER »)

AREBERARERLEDMEINZE

ERBEDIWWT

250,805
47,783
289,948

720
309,841

899,097
267,633

1,166,730

115,588
12,841
4,996

149
884

134,458
708,758

843,216

2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
FHET
(restated)
(FE5))

737,636
30,522
257,001

6,957
207,985

1,240,101
245,399

1,485,500

532,531
13,119
3,886

910
209

550,655
527,119

1,077,774



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other than

certain property and equipment for general operations,

other non-current assets (excluded financial assets at

FVOCI), interests in associates and joint ventures, certain

other receivables, deposits and prepayments and certain

bank balances and cash — general; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other

than certain other payables and accruals, lease liabilities,

liability component of convertible bonds, corporate bonds,

loan and tax payable.

Amounts included in the measure of
segmentresuls or segment assets:

Additons to non-curent assets
(exclude financial assets at FVOCI)

Bad debt writien of on trade receivables

Depreciation on property and equipment

Depreciation on right-0f-use assets

Reversal of impairment loss recognised
nrespect ofrade receivables

ECL on trade receivables

Loss{gain) on disposal of
property and equipment

Vi
HigRERE
(FEERATESIA
EpaNazeRaE)
GO CEvh
nERRERE
(i

2EE/ (15)

Securities brokerage and
margin financing
FEALRARRE

5,409

2

219
2nE
HK§000
St

(60)

4012

(%)

Corporate finance

tepE
09
2
HK$000
T
600 =
9 10

Money lending
and factoring
HERRE
219
k3
HK$ 000
Tin

The amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision

maker but not included in the measure of segment results or

segment assets are not material for both years ended 31 March

2020 and 2019.

6.

DEER

FLESFE 5 BB R IR e 0 BL 73 BF Rl B R Y

BHME
e BRET - RELVWELRE

Consultancy and
insurance
brokerage

ERRRREL

219
E0E
HKS 000
T4

HERBEE (TEIBRAF
BIAEMEZENEcEBE
E) RBERRIEAGERRZ
o AT EMEEHR B
KIERRIBIA RS THRITHES R
e — —KIN FBEEEED

RELEDE &

BRETHMENRELESE
CABRESZ A
NEMES ERREN

Exhvi (7N
EDBJJ N

BRSNS A REEHEEEE
S -

Asset management Unallocated Consolidated

BEER AR &8
219 219 219
. 3 . .
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T i Tin
4 - 697 7163 4] 1551
- - - - 600 -
4 49 10,300 32 10,406 33%
548 - 183 - 18 -
- - - - - (60)
- - - - 5,409 4012
- - - (130) 2 (33)

BE_ZT-_ZTFL-_FT-NF=A
=T BLEMEFE: EHRERE
BRBEARPELES AD BBEENK
DEHEEAEBZHBER/LTENR -

PEESRSREEERAR
S
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Revenue from customers which individually contributed over
10% of the Group’s revenue during the years ended 31 March
2020 and 2019 is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

DEER
FEEEEH

HE_Z - ZFRK-_ZT—NAF=A
=+—HILFE KEHAEEKA
BERAE10% A E 2 @RIEFE 2 WA
T~

Customer 1 LY
Customer 2 BE2
* The corresponding revenue did not individually contribute over

10% of the Group’s revenue during the year.

Note: The revenue contributed from customer 1 and 2 is derived
from the money lending business and the securities brokerage
business, respectively.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000

FEx FHBT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BmRHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

The Group’s operations are mainly located and carried out in
Hong Kong. Accordingly, no geographical information related
to revenue has been presented. The following table sets out
information about the Group’s property and equipment, other
non-current assets (excluded regulatory deposits and financial
assets at FVOCI), goodwill, interests in associates and joint
ventures (“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on the
physical location of the asset, in the case of property and
equipment, the location of the operation to which they are
allocated, in the case of goodwill, and the location of operations,
in the case of interests in associates and joint ventures.

Hong Kong BB
The PRC I

OTHER INCOME

Interest income from B RIS A S A
financial institutions

Gain on disposal of HE Y3 KR 2 e
property and equipment

Sundry income FEEWA

Bk

Gain on disposal of a joint venture & —RA& & Qa2

6.

7.

DEER

AEBZBTELRNBEEIRER
EE MUWEZIBHERAZHEE
Ko TRINTBEBAEEMERR
% Hth3EREEE (TEEEERS
NI AFEINAE MK E 2 © /M
BE) BE - REEARIREEAR]
ZHEm ([EEFRRBEE]) 2B -
EERSEEZ BN EENEE
ZEBNE  MYWERFZHEMSER
ENmMEB2UE  HEEmMsE
REEME  BIRBZEAREREER
Al ERMEERBEERRAREER
AIEEINE -
2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
FT

105,879 96,919
23,256 35,102

129,135 132,021

HABUWA

2019
—E-NF
HK$000
T

4,143 3,293

— 335
4,174 2,438

8,317 6,101

PEESRSREEERAR
S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBHRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

8. ECL ON TRADE RECEIVABLES, NET

8.

Reversal of impairment loss BB & 5 IR
on trade receivables ZRIEEE
ECL on trade receivables B S IEWERTK
ZEHEEERE

9. FINANCE COSTS

Finance charges on lease liabilities FE&EZREEH
Interests on bank and loan payables $R17 & FE E 72 F &
Interests on corporate bonds NAREF 2 FIE
Interests on convertible bonds AR ERF 2 FE

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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2019

—E-NF

Notes HK$°000 HK$'000

B FET FET

34(b) — 60
34(b) (5,409) (4,012)
(5,409) (3,952)

9. RERA

2020 2019

—EC-SF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FETT

643 —

11,222 9,122

13,830 14,915

32,631 30,554

58,326 54,591




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10.LOSS BEFORE TAX

Loss before tax after charging:

Net investment losses:
Net realised losses on
financial assets at FVTPL

Net unrealised losses on
financial assets at FVTPL

Other operating expenses:
Auditor remuneration
Bad debt written-off
on trade receivables
Bank charges
Depreciation on:
— right-of-use assets
— property and equipment
Entertainment
Exchange losses, net
Information and
communication fee
Lease charges on:
— property held under
operating leases
— short term leases and
leases with lease term shorter
than 12 months as at initial
application of HKFRS 16
Legal and professional fee
Loss on disposal of property and
equipment
Rates and building
management fee
Travelling expenses
Other expenses

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

10. BRBL A ES 1B

Notes
P 5T

REBEFHE -

BAFEIARRE
ZEMEEZAER
BRI

BAFEIIARRE
ZEMEEZ TAESE
BRI

HhEERx -
Gl
B 7 MR R AR

RITEM

E:

— EREEE 15
— MERZRE 15
FEB

b 54 5 155 R

ERBAE

HEER :
— REKEHERBYE

— RERERBENE
HEEFE 16 EPREE
AR+ @A
ZHE

EREINE S =

HEMENREZEIR

EMMETERSR

EIRFIX
HAFI

PRELATET IR D HIRR T7I&IR ¢

2019

—E-NEF

HK$'000

FET

8,526 459
4,858 187
13,384 646
900 1,050
600 —
962 1,217
18,904 —
10,406 3,325
4,041 4,334
5,405 172
2,556 3,825
— 20,333
194 —
3,507 5,245
2 N
2,393 2,169
3,227 4,508
6,486 9,772
59,583 55,950

PEESRSREEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

10.LOSS BEFORE TAX (continuea)

Staff costs: BIRA:

— Directors’ remunerations — EEMe

— Salaries and allowance — e KRR

— Retirement benefit scheme — BRI FIET B3R
contributions (TEIEES)

(excluding Directors)

Less: Staff costs included in cost ¥ : 5 AR A Z
of services 8 TR

Included in the net realised losses on financial assets at FVTPL
of approximately HK$8,526,000, an amount of approximately
HK$828,000 was related to the investment brought forward
from prior year of which HK$5,284,000 has been recognised
as the unrealised gain in the year ended 31 March 2019. The
remaining amount of approximately HK$7,698,000 was related
to the realised losses on current year investments.
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10. BRBLAIE B ()

Notes
B EE
12(a) 20,531
77,354
1,644
99,529
(9,787)
89,742

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHBT

17,104
91,120

1,865

110,089

(9,986)

100,108

FAREBEATFEIABREZEME
2 7] 235 B 18 % §8 49 8,526,000
JLH » & B8 #9828,000 7% JT Jh 2 4L Al
FEFAENIRERRB - HF 5,284,000
BITEREBEE-_ZE—NE=RA=+—
HIEFERRAREHEE - HELH
7,698,000 B TTEBAFEIRE 2 B

BERAH -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax BAFER

— Current year — RFE
— Over provision — BTFE
in respect of prior years B
PRC H
— Current tax — BNEATEIE
Total income tax expense st 428

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended
31 March 2020 is calculated at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) based
on the estimated assessable profits for the year, except for
one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying corporation
under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. Under the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million profits of
the qualifying entities are taxed at 8.25%, and the profits above
HK$2 million are taxed at 16.5%. The provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax for this subsidiary was calculated at the same basis
in 2019.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards. No provision for the PRC EIT has been made
for subsidiaries established in the PRC as (1) the assessable
profits for one of the PRC’s subsidiary for the years ended 31
March 2020 and 2019 have been fully absorbed by the tax
loss brought forward from prior years; and (2) the other PRC
subsidiaries did not have any assessable profits subject to PRC
EIT Law for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

1. FrE B

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHBT

9,690 1,464
(52) (30)

9,638 1,434

9,638 1,436

HE T -_ZFE=-—A=+—HILFE
BBEFERBHERF NG ERT S
Fz165% (ZT—h%F : 16.5%) &t
B WAEE-—HEWBLAR (FEH
ERBHIIBET 2EEBEE) BRIbo
RIBEFGHREMAT  GEREEY
2,000,000 % 7T 2 i A1l 3= Bt 2K 8.25% 7k
i+ MiBiE 2,000,000 78 T 2 i F L B
E16.5% wrtn o ZMB R B 2 BBF
SHREBEHER - — N FREREET

St

E_o

BEPBECERERE ([REMEHR
E]) REEMGBTRAERES - 8=
TTZNF—A—HE PEMEQA
ZBEF25% c NP B 2 B A
AW ARETIRAPBECEMEREE R
BAE()ER—HTPEMNBAREZ=
T_TFERZF-NF=ZA=+—H
IEF 8 2 E ARt M B B 5t Bl 6 R 45
HoBIBEEBE2EEE  REQ)EMF
BB RARINEE TSR _FT
—NWF=ZA=+—HBLEFEREHH
1R EFTSBUEN AT ] ERT R A o

PEESRSREEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MBHRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z - —F

F=ZA=+—HIEFE

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11.

The tax charge for the years can be reconciled to the loss

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

Loss before tax

Tax at domestic income tax rate
of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%)
Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purpose
Tax effect of incomes not taxable
for tax purpose
Tax effect of share of
losses/(profits) of associates
Tax effect of share of losses
of joint ventures
Over provision in respect
of prior years
Effect of different tax rates
of PRC subsidiaries/branches
and two-tiered profits tax rate
Utilisation of tax losses not
recognised in previous years
Tax effect of tax losses not
recognised

Tax for the year

BR LAl &S 18

BAMPTSHE 16.5%
—T—NEF 16.5%) AEZHIA

BT & T MBA 2 HEFE

BT = FFRMRAZ R E

PR E R RIEE, Ciafl)
ZRBEE

RIERERRBRZ BT E

B FERERRE

SIS VNG NI EIE
EREFEHRE ZZE

BRBEFEARER 2 HIEER

RERR BB NG E

FEBA

At 31 March 2020, the Group had estimated unused tax losses
of approximately HK$686,121,000 (2019: HK$579,223,000)
available for offset against future profits, the tax losses are

subject to the agreement by the Hong Kong Inland Revenue

Department. No deferred tax asset has been recognised for the
years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.
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FrEFBEX @

FERBEAXATRGEBEREME
ER s R < BB AT IR SRR T ¢

2019
—N&F

HK$'000

FHT

(62,176) (102,743)

(10,259) (16,952)

5,099 1,758

(3,249) (3,489)

390 (1,727)

5 _

(52) (30)

(487) (183)

(624) (427)

18,815 22,486

9,638 1,436
R_ZE_TF=A=+—H ' x&H

B b REATIIEE1847686,121,000
BT (ZE—NF 1 579,223,000/ 7T)
AEEEAR AR - BHBEEARS
HERBRE HE_Z_ZTER_-FT
—hiiﬂ:+—5¢¢§*ﬁﬁﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

As at 31 March 2020, tax losses of approximately HK$17,647,000
(2019: HK$15,434,000) attributable to certain subsidiaries in the
PRC had an expiry period of five years. During the year, tax loss
of approximately HK$1,194,000 (2019: Nil) have been expired.

Under the New EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures from 1 January 2008 onwards
(the “Post-2008 Earnings”). As at 31 March 2020 and 2019,
deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements as the Company’s subsidiaries and joint
ventures did not have any unremitted earnings and the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference of the associates.

M. TSR @

MRZZE_ZEFE=A=+—H0" X
BFEETHBAR ZHEEIRE
#917,647,0008 T (= & — 1 F:
15,434,00087C) 2 BRHARBAF ©
RAREE - BIIBEE R4 1,194,000 %
T (ZE—NF :T)BEBRHA -

BRBFEEMEHE BZZET/\F
—A—BERTEMMBARF  BEQ
AIREERNRMREAGET (=28
NE#ER]) SIRAKREBKTEN
M- R_EZZTEFR-_ZT-NF=HAH
=+—B TERGEWBEmREFE
MR IEREE RERAEE M
BRARRGEARWEMLSMRELRZ
Ao A RAEE AT E AR 2B
R = RE RO -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHERMETE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR N.EEREREBAELZ
EXECUTIVES’ REMUNERATIONS [
Directors’ remunerations, disclosed pursuant to the Listing BIE R B (RRUEHD
Rules, section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies FIBIMNIER A (HEEEF
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of =EK) BROIFoHMBERENES
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are as T :
follows:
Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-B-ZF-A=+-HULEFE
Contributions
to retirement
Salaries and Discretionary benefits
Name of Directors Fees other benefits bonuses schemes Total
#eR BIKER
E=pg e Hiti3E R miERA ST st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET THER TR THER
Chairman IE
XIE Zhichun iR 120 7880 2,000 18 10,018
Executive Directors HTES
HUA Yang B 120 3,667 2,151 25 5,963
ZHU Yi (note b) K& (i) 120 1,920 80 18 2,138
Non-executive Directors FHTES
CHEN Zhiwei (note c) R (e 360 - — - 360
HAN Hanting (note d) BHE (Mitd) 600 33 — 7 640
WU Ling R% 600 - - - 600
Independent Non-executive ~ BIFHTES
Directors
CHAN Kin Sang [ 216 - - — 216
CHIU Kung Chik HAE 216 - - — 216
LI Gaofeng B 216 — - — 216
LIU Xin (note g) 2 (Fiztg) 13 - - — 13
NG Kay Kwok (note f) REE (M) 151 — — — 151
2,732 13,500 4,231 68 20,531

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

12.DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES’ REMUNERATIONS

(Continued)

Name of Directors

EEME

Chairman IE

XIE Zhichun g

Executive Directors YTES

HUA Yang o

HAN Hanting (note d) FHE (Md)

LIU Yinan (note a) 2—5 (Mzta)

ZHU Yi (note b) K% (MizEb)

Non-executive Directors FHTES

CHEN Zhiwei (note c) PR ()

HAN Hanting (note d) BFHE (Md)

WU Ling RE

TANG Baogi (note ¢) ERE (e

Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors

CHAN Kin Sang g

NG Kay Kwok (note ) R (FHEEf)

CHIU Kung Chik HRE

LI Gaofeng FHlE

Discretionary bonuses were determined with reference to
the Group’s operating results and individual performance
for the year ended 31 March 2020. There were no
discretionary bonuses paid or payable by the Group to the
directors which were discretionary or were based on the
Group’s or any member of the Group’s performance for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

1N.EENRSREEAEZ

Fees

e
HK$'000
TET

120

120

59
60

344
300
600

216
216
216
216

2,543

£ @)

Year ended 31 March 2019
BE_T-NF=-RA=T—HItFE

Contributions
to retirement

Salaries and benefits
other benefits schemes Total

FER =

Ethiah| sHEIHAR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAL
7,880 18 8,018
3420 20 3,560
1,260 9 1329
976 9 1,044

960 9 1,029

— — 344

— — 300

— — 600

— — 16

— — 216

- - 216

— — 216

— — 216
14,496 65 17,104

RBIEAT2EREERE T
“ERF-A=STHUEFEZE
ERELBURAMETE - BE
—E-NAF=A=t+—HItF
B AEEHSECNKENES
ZESTHBEBRIFEE - HERAK
SERAEENEMKE QR
KEMA -

PEERERMEEERAR
“ROREERH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
meMBRRME (8)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

12.DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES’ REMUNERATIONS

(Continued)

Notes:

a.

Resigned all his offices in the Company with effect from
28 September 2018.

Appointed as an executive Director with effect from
28 September 2018.

Appointed as a non-executive Director with effect from
17 April 2018.

Han Hanting was re-designed from an executive Director to
a non-executive Director of the Company with effect from
28 September 2018.

Resigned all his offices in the Company with effect from
17 April 2018.

Resigned all his offices in the Company with effect from
13 December 2019.

Appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 10 March 2020.

There was no arrangement under which any Directors

waived or agreed to waive any remunerations for the years
ended 31 March 2020 and 2019. No remunerations have
been paid to the Directors of the Company as inducement

to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office for the years ended 31 March 2020 and

2019.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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a. RIZE-N\FAAZ+N\BEH
EERARB ZFABT
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c. RIZE-)\FWATLHEZ
ERIFRITES -
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“+HN\BARARBRITESSH
ERIFPITES -
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HRARBZ AR

f. R-E—hF+-_A+=H%
EERARE Z B

g RZZE-TF=-RF+HEZ{E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMB|ERME (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

1N.EENRSREEAEZ

& =)

12.DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES’ REMUNERATIONS

(Continued)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in FAREERRZESHTATHE
the Group for the year included, two (2019: two) Directors %Iﬁ% (ZE2E—NF: WA) &
of the Company whose emoluments are reflected in the NAIESE  REZMEER Lt

analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the

B oIz DT R IR BR o S Y A L

remaining three (2019: three) individuals during the year BEZA(ZE—NF: =ZA) X
are as follows: FzBemT
2019
—E—NF
HK$'000
FHBT
Salaries, allowances and e R R HEAE
other benefits 14,871 19,053
Discretionary bonuses @4] 15IE4L 3,226 —
Retirement benefits scheme  RIRIBFIETEI (K
contributions 54 62
18,151 19,115
The emoluments of the remaining three (2019: three) BRT=82(ZFT—-—NLF: =4)

highest paid employees fall in the following bands:

Emolument bands

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000

[l i

3,000,001 7T 2 3,500,000/8 7T
5,000,001 7 T2 5,500,00078 7T
6,000,001 7L 6,500,000 % 7T
6,500,001 7T 2 7,000,000/8 7T
7,500,001 7702 8,000,000 77T
8,000,001 #7T = 8,500,000 % 7T

xeMEeESEZMEN FUATE
:

Number of individuals

AR
2019

| |
A
\
=
_FH

EP%%@%EE%I%EE
— ? —= q—:i#ﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
meMBRRME (8)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

13.DIVIDEND 13. IR 2

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended BHE-_Z-_ZTF=-A=1T—HIEEE
31 March 2020, nor has any dividend been proposed since the BERREZRNEMNRE - BA
end of the reporting year (2019: nil). WEFERARINEREZ R

B(ZE—NF : H&)-

14.L0OSS PER SHARE 14. 8RR E 18

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share AAREAANEBGEZEBRERNREE
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the B8 - THIRA T EURETE -

following data:

2019
—ZE-NF
HK$'000
FAT
Loss BE
Loss for the purpose of RIERtEBRELR K
basic and diluted loss per share  #5#E518 ~ E5ia (71,814) (104,179)
2019
—E-hF
'000
T
Number of shares R EE
Weighted average number of Rt ESRERN R EEE
ordinary shares for the 2 TR T E
purpose of basic and
diluted loss per share 9,153,079 7,576,482
The calculation of diluted loss per share for the years ended HEHE T TEFEN T —HEFE=
31 March 2020 and 2019 does not assume the exercise of the A=t HUIEFEEGRESEEYE
Company’s outstanding convertible bonds which had anti- BRERITE AR D 7] 4 AR W e Al B pR (&
dilutive effect and would result in a reduction in loss per share. %5 MBBESES B SRELE
Therefore, the diluted loss per share is the same as the basic EHNEREER L c At - KEEFEZ
loss per share for the year. SR EE s AR E AR EMER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
meEMBRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

Cost
At 1 April 2018
Additions
Disposals

At 31 March 2019 and
1 April 2019
Adjustment upon adoption
of HKFRS 16 (note 3)

At 1 April 2019,
(adjusted)

Additions

Disposals

At 31 March 2020

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2018
Provided for the year
Eliminated on disposal

At 31 March 2019 and
1 April 2019

Provided for the year

Eliminated on disposal

At 31 March 2020

Carrying values
At 31 March 2020

At 31 March 2019

B
RZZ-/\FWA—H
NE
&

EE

RZZ-nE=A=1-H
RZE-NEMA-A

RnB AR EER
165k BE (M3)

R-Z-NFMA-R
e

AE
5

EE S

R-BE-ZEF=fA=1+-H

ZitE
R-F-/\FIA—H
FRBE
HER S

R-E-NF=f=1—H
k=E-NENA—H

FNEHE

HER

R-B-E£=f=1-H

REE
R-ZE-ZF=A=1-H

RZZ-nE=zA=1-A

15. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold
improvements

RENREE
HK§'000

TEL

11,391
6,594

17,985

17,985

17,985

154
2,401

2,555
9,440

11,995

5,990

15,430

Furniture
and
fixtures
BRREE
HK$'000
TAT

1,140
467
(60)

1,547

91
316
(60)

812

1,200

15. =K &t

Office
equipment
BAERME

HK$'000

TAL

1,185
496
(528)

1,153

1,178

599
207
(528)

298
275

573

605

855

Motor
vehicles
RE
HK$'000
THEx

2,941

(1,479)

1,462

1,462

1,462

1,923
381
(1,255)

1,049
306

1,354

108

413

Right-of-use

assets Total
ERELE i
HK$'000 HK$'000
THr T
— 16,657
— 7,557
— (2,067)
— 22,147
33,077 33,077
33,077 55,224
685 710
= (17)
33,762 55,917
— 2,767
— 81825
— (1,843)
— 4,249
18,904 29,310
= (19)
18,904 33,544
14,858 22,373
— 17,898

FEEREREEERA

—?—?q—:i#ﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MBHRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

15. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

As at 31 March 2020, the net carrying amount of right-of-use
assets included in property and equipment are as follows:

Office premises and car parking spaces  #¥/AE4% K HEfI

During the year ended 31 March 2020, total additions to right-
of-use assets included in property and equipment amounting to
approximately HK$685,000. The details of lease liabilities as at
31 March 2020 are set out in note 26.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group reassessed
the expected useful lives of leasehold improvements and
changed its expected useful lives from 6 years to remaining
lease term. Such change in accounting estimate has been
applied prospectively from 1 April 2019 onwards.

16.GOODWILL

At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and R =Z— N\FMWAH—AH -
31 March 2020 “E-NAF=A=t+—"8K
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15. MERZHE @

R_ZE_TF=A=+—H8" 5AY
EREEEREEEZREFELD
T

Depreciation

Carrying amount E
HREE For the

As at As at year ended

31 March 1 April 31 March
2020 2019 2020

ﬁﬂ

It St 23

R-B-2% R-T-NF ZA=t+-H
=A=+-H A—H JI:3:5
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T#T TET TET
14,858 33,077 18,904

REBE-T-_FTF=-_A=1T—HLF
B stAMERREZEREEER

BHEFEL/S685,000/8TT - BRAN_-F
—EF-A=t-HZHEEREHB
L6 ©

REBE-T_TF=-_A=1—HLF
g $$lﬂ$%ﬁaﬂﬁﬂi§%%z€ﬂ§
ZIEHRE RER > WA ETRMA (&
RERBRAFARERHED - BAS
AHEFEHIEE_FT-AFIOA—H
RERACERELEEM -

16. B&

2019
—NEF
HK$'000
FAET

3,994 3,994



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

16. GOODWILL (continuea)

Goodwill was attributable to the acquisition of Fortune Financial
Capital Limited in previous years.

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to the corporate
finance segment. No impairment loss has been recognised as
at 31 March 2020 and 2019.

The recoverable amount of corporate finance operation is
determined from value in use calculations using cash flow
projections based on financial budget approved by the
management covering five-year period with average growth
rate of 56.55% (2019: 19.98%), zero growth rate is applied
to extrapolate the cash flows beyond five-year period during
the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019. This growth rate
is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and does
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 183.61% (2019: 15.46%). Other key assumptions for the value
in use calculation related to the estimation of cash inflows and
outflows which include budgeted revenue and budgeted net
profit margin. This estimation is determined based on the unit’s
past performance and management’s expectation for the market
development.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not result any impairment to the
goodwill.

16.F& )

BEDREREEFEREERSR
BARBRRAA -

BHEZEREEHE RELERES
R EBE_EFR_ZFT—-NF=A
=+—H - BIEERREEIE -

PERMEEB 2 KBS EIIREE
REEBEFEEE  sTEMAZRER
EBANEREREEMERBRER
FHRZUREE BFEHEER
£56.55% ( ZF — JLF : 19.98%) °
REBEEZZT_ZTFR=_FT-NF=H
= t+—HLEFE BRAZAFHEZ
RenelHEHATIERE - KR
EENBETE B RBAERE -
TEERMEATEZFHRALER
Ko HRABRESREMANURESE
13.61%( ZZF — JLF : 15.46%) ° &
EFEREEMRACHEMETEM/ERER
SRARRE (BREBEERAREE S
=) BfEEER o &G IIRIRZE
U BERAREREEHMSER
TEHAMIE ©

EEERS ENZFRREREM
BEAEEPIH TS EHETMAEER
(=08

PEESRSREEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBHRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

17.0THER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

17. B ERBEE

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-NF

Note HK$°000 HK$'000

FtaE FExT FHTT

Club membership =y 6,610 6,610

Regulatory deposits ETEES 230 230
Financial assets at FVOCI BEAFEIAEMEAEREZ

TRIEE (a) 138 264

Intangible asset mREE (b) — —

6,978 7,104

The regulatory deposits were made with the Stock Exchange

and Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited
("HKSCC”) in relation to the Group’s regulated businesses in

Hong Kong.

(A] FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FvVOCI

AEEBESRRAKREREBZIRESR
BRARBIMRBETREEAR

AR ([BEBEEMR]) (B -

(A) & 2\ FIEZIA B2 [E

Wz 2t MEE

2020
—E-TF

— %5

HK$°000
FTET

Financial assets at FVOCI

— Unlisted equity securities

BAFEIAHMBEZEYE
ZEBMEE

— JEETBAES

The fair value of the unlisted equity investment is
referenced to the net asset value of the respective
investees as at 31 March 2020 and 2019.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FBT

264
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

17.0THER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(Continued)

At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019  R=Z—/\FMWAF—H -
and 31 March 2020

Cost PR
Accumulated impairment ZERIAE

The intangible asset represents a license right acquired
as part of a business combination of a subsidiary. The
license carries a right to conduct asset management
business in Hong Kong, and has no foreseeable limit to
the period over which the Group can use to generate net
cash flows. As a result, the license right is considered
by the management of the Group as having an indefinite
useful life and is not amortised. It is tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that it may
be impaired.

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, the
Directors of the Company conducted a review on the
recoverable amount of the Group’s license right, which
was determined based on higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use calculation and determined
that the recoverable amount was lower than its carrying
amount, therefore the carrying amount of the license right
was fully impaired.

“E-hE=A=+—8AFK
—E-EF=A=1+—H

17. B 3ERBEE o

License right
TR AR
HK$'000
FHT

2,261
(2,261)

B EER—BNBRAREBEE
DF 5 BT U B 2 W BRAE o 2 heR BRPA
BRENANEELEEETESR
% AREB AR BAEARERAE
AR REFE  WHEA AR S
BR o dht - ANEREE IR E R RER
BESTEBTAERES . B
AT HH - ERESFRBTR
AR IR ERETTRER

HE_T-_ZTFR-_FT-NF=
A=+—HLEFE ARRES
AR E RRE 2 T E 5
18 ZeBBREBEATERL
ERAWIZFEAEENE 2K
SEEE  METUKRESEE
REREE - FAitigREsEm
BEEBERE -

PEESRSREEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBHRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

18. REEE N T 2 ER

Cost of investments in unlisted
associates

Share of post-acquisition profits
and other comprehensive income

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020

RIE LA R R ZREKA

FEEYB RSN M 2

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
64,131 64,131
31,035 38,301
95,166 102,432




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z —ZE —FF - A=+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continueq)

Set out below are the particulars of the principal associates as
at 31 March 2020 and 2019 in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, to give details of other associates would result in

particulars of excessive length:

Place of Particulars of
Form of incorporation issued and
Name of entity entity and operation paid up capital
AR CRTRAR
ERAR ERYS Eeny BARfE
Starlight Financial Limited liability Hong Kong 234,000,000
Holdings Limited company ordinary shares
(“Starlight')
HEEXERARAAT BRAA B 234,000,000
([4]) RERR
City Eagle Holdings Limited liability Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares
Limited company
MARRERAR ERAA &% 100K &Rk
Chongging Liangjiang Limited liability The PRC Registered
New Area Runtong company capital of
Small Loans Business USD30,000,000
Limited* (“Runtong’)
ERMRINE R EER BRAR el g
AR ([H8)) 30,000,000%7
Chongging Run Kun Management Limited liability the PRC Registered cpaital of
Consuhing Company Limited company HK$10,000,000
(“Run Kun”)
Bl N BRAA hE g
-2:) 10,000,000 70
China Runking Financing Limited liability Hong Kong 1 ordinary share
Group Limited company
hEES | HERERAT BRAR B 1REER
* The English transliteration of the Chinese name in this annual

report, where indicated, is included for information purpose only,
and should not be regarded as the official English name of such
Chinese name.

China Runking Financing Group Limited, City Eagle Holdings

Limited, Run Kun and Runtong are wholly-owned subsidiaries of

Starlight.

18. REtE N B 2= )

TRBFIN-Z_BER_F—NF
SAS+-AZEEHEDTFE -

ZUN 7§$w% FR 45 HL A Bt 4 2
ZHEEEHEBNIIE
Percentage of nominal Proportion of voting
value of issued capital right held by the
held by the Group Group at board level
ARERAEES AEEfESE
RAEEARM REELA
2019 2019 Principal activities
“B-hE “I-nE O IRER
25% 25% 33% 33% Investment holding
(note 1) (note 1)
(1) (W) RESR
25% 25% 33% 33% Investment holding
RERR
25% 25% 33% 33%  Provision of secured
financing services and
microfinance services
in Chongging of the
PRC
RREETRIER
HERB R EER
HEMRE
25% 25% 33% 33%  Financial consulting
services
Btk iR
25% %% 33% 33%  Provision of loan
financing services
RESTRERS

© AERRREBNEEE (27
B) FESE  TERAED AR
AhEES €S R

FEBSNEERBRAERAR - RAE
BRERRAR] /Fﬁiﬂﬂ&&]ﬁi’ﬂﬁi)\z
2EMBAR -

EP%%@%EE%I%EE
— ? —= q—:i#ﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continueq)

Note:

1. The Group is able to exercise significant influence over Starlight
and its subsidiaries (“Starlight Group”) because it has the power
to appoint two out of the six directors of that company under the
provisions stated in the shareholders’ agreement.

As at 31 March 2020, included in the cost of investments in
associates was goodwill of approximately HK$4,052,000 (2019:
HK$4,052,000) arising on the acquisition of associates.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
material associates, Starlight Group, which is accounted for
using the equity method is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represented amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with

HKFRSs.

Current assets MENEE
Non-current assets EmENEE
Total assets EERE
Current liabilities mENEE
Non-current liabilities EmEaE
Total liabilities B e
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18. REtE N B 2= )

Wik

1. AEEAHENREMBRR (2
KEB]) TEEAZEN  REAR
AR BERIBBIR RIS RO RSCA 1
REZRARNBREETHIRA

MR_E_TF=—F=+—H BEQ
AIRERARIENESERAREEY
B %) 4,052,0008 T (ZT—NF -
4,052,000/87T) °

AEEEABZNRENEE (g
FRIIER) 2 FATS BRI B T3t -
THMBERBEZRS 2 2B AKE
REBRBEEEV B REEARE M
BRKRIRZZHR °

2019

—E-NF

HK$'000

FHT

528,365 602,038
39,558 29,447
567,923 631,485
201,160 237,097
2,305 867
203,465 237,964



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBERME (8

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

B 0

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

MATERIAL ASSOCIATES (cContinued)

Starlight Group (Continued)

/43 )
(#8)

B K%

i)

Revenue

(Loss)/Profit for the year

Other comprehensive expense
for the year

Total comprehensive
(expense)/income for the year

YA

FR (BE)

FAHMEEFA

FRzE (Fx) Maiest

18. REtE N B 2= )
BABZLNG (#)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019

S H=E
—E-EF —E-NF
=HB=+—H =A=+—H
IEFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
86,547 110,863
(9,450) 41,860
(19,613) (31,788)
(29,063) 10,072

TEEREREBARAR

—BoBEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continueq)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interests in the associates

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Net assets of the associate e N Rl BERE
Proportion of the Group’s ownership K& B2 A £ E
in Starlight Group

Il

Goodwill e

Carrying amount of the Group’s
interest in Starlight Group Z BRHEE

Note: Starlight Group have initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at
1 April 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of HK$286,000 relating to leases which were previously classified
as operating leases under HKAS 17. Under this approach, the

comparative information is not restated.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020

G RS PTA LB

AEERENEE 2

18. REtE N B 2= )

T EEREREEMERENA
FrigR & N e 2 e 2 IR E
BROOR -

As at 31 March

R=A=+—8
2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
T
364,458 393,521
25% 25%
91,114 98,380
4,052 4,052
95,166 102,432

izt : EAEEER-_T—HhLFMA—AH
FERETREEE XERE S
TEREAERIE 1657 - WA
AR AR R B A ST ERIE 17
EHEAKEHE 2 AHMHEERER
fFRA#EEEMEE & (&286,000%
JC e RIEM A EBRERTAE
5l o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
meEMBRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

19.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REE QT ZER

2019
—E-hF
HK$'000
FHT
Cost of investments of unlisted RIELTEERE 2 LEKA
joint ventures 1,415 1,415
Share of post-acquisition losses FEEREEEREREMEERS
and other comprehensive
expenses (423) (328)
992 1,087
Details of the joint ventures as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 are RZE_ZTER=_ZT—NLEFE=H
as follows: =+—H  &ERAZFREAT :
Percentage of nominal Proportion of voting
value of issued capital right held by the
Place of Particulars of held by the Group Group at board level
Form of incorporation issued and FEBREDRN REEfEEEE
Name of entity entity and operation paid up capital e RERLA
ERRIR ERRER 2019 2019 Principal activities
B4R BBy Benk 5 ZNE Z-NE O FERE
Shenzhen Qianhai Fortune Limited liability the PRC Registered capital 30% 30% 40% 40%  Inactive
Financial Service Company company of RMB754,000
Limited" (“Qianhai Fortune
Financial’)
MImEEELRRS BRAT ke iHER Eex
BRAR ([AEERER)) ARE 7540007
Shenzhen Qianhai Fortune Limited liabiity the PRC Registered capital 30% 30% 40% 40% Inactive
Equity Investment company of RMB2,989,000
Management Co., Ltd.*
(‘Qianhai Fortune Equity’)
MIFEERREREER BRAR e e gk
BRAR ((HEERKE]) ARE 29800007
e The English transliteration of the Chinese name in this annual * RERPPNEBHEXES (B3

report, where indicated, is included for information purpose only,
and should not be regarded as the official English name of such

Chinese name.

B) @HSE - TERAKT AR
BER KX AT -

PEERERMEEERAR
“ROREERH
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19.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

The Group holds 30% of equity interests of Qianhai Fortune
Financial and controls 40% of the voting power in the board
meeting. Under a shareholders’ agreement, the major financing
and operational decisions of Qianhai Fortune Financial should
be unanimously approved by the Group and other venturers.
Therefore, Qianhai Fortune Financial is regarded as a joint
venture of the Group.

The Group holds 30% of equity interests of Qianhai Fortune
Equity and controls 40% of the voting power in the board
meeting. Under a shareholders’ agreement, the major financing
and operational decisions of Qianhai Fortune Equity should
be unanimously approved by the Group and other venturers.
Therefore, Qianhai Fortune Equity is regarded as a joint venture
of the Group.

The financial information and carrying amount, in aggregate, of
the Group’s interests in joint ventures that are not individually
material and are accounted for using equity method are set out
below:

AEEEIEER
AEERGEMEmAX

The Group’s share of loss
The Group’s share of other

comprehensive expense
The Group’s share of total AEEEGEEAZ R
comprehensive expense

AKEBRTEREENA
Z Rt 2 BREN(E

Carrying amount of the Group’s
interests in immaterial
joint ventures

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

S

NEZER )

AEBFRE G E R E B 30% 2 BA
BEAZEHEFTSSH0REREE-
RE-—DBRRGZE AIEERSRZ
TERENEERRARAEB LA
e BT —HHAERB - Bt - A8
EREMEGASAEESLERA]

AEBR B AE E 58 B 30% 2 AR AN
BEAZEGHEZTERHI0RREE-
RIBE—DIREGE - ATEERBEZ
TEMENEERRBELARERE
e BT —HHERSB - Fitt - A8
2R GESANEESERA]

EHT S LT EAL R RATIR Y
REENA SRR 2 ER 2 HBER
REEEATBIIET :

2019
—ZE-NF
HK$'000
FHT

(30) —

(65) (106)

(95) (106)

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHT

992 1,087



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
meEMBRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

Equity securities listed:

— in Hong Kong
— outside Hong Kong

Debt securities listed:
— in Hong Kong
— outside Hong Kong

Bonds-linked notes

The fair values of the above listed securities are determined
based on the quoted market bid prices available from the

relevant exchange.

As at 31 March 2020, all the bonds listed in Hong Kong and
outside Hong Kong were pledged to a bank for the secured
loans as set out in note 27.

As at 31 March 2019, the fair value of bonds-linked notes is
estimated using a discounted cash flow technique. Details of
relevant valuation techniques and unobservable input are as set

out in notes 34(c).

ERRRARES -

—REA
— ZBAS

EWEBES

—REB
— EBASI

BB BRE

20. BAFEIANERKRZ

TREE

21,807
15,009

36,816
100,880
84,477

185,357

222,173

2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
FiET

96,147

96,147

25,141

121,288

bt EmESZ A FEDRBEEBRR
DTSR TS EAREEE

RZEBE-_EF=A=+—H AR
EBREBUAINN LT 2 EEE K
2TFRE B E KGR T —HRTT ©

RZZE-—NE=A=+—0 " BEFH
WRBEZAFEIEREHRAER
B fhsr o B ERMN R A BRE
ABURARR 2 S BEIIR M FE 34(c) °

TEERTREEBRAR

“ROREERH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBRRMEE (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

21.LOAN AND TRADE RECEIVABLES 21.E§LI&E IR E S EWER
a‘A

EURERNE S EUERBRED) KRB
EFREFEHREMETZE 5 R
B K il) 2R B B RS RWER -

Loan and trade receivables comprise i) trade receivables arising
from securities brokerage business and other businesses and ii)
loan receivables arising from money lending business.

2020 2019
—E-EH —E-NF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
fI5E F#ET FH&TT
Trade receivables = E TN a) 72,469 122,527
Loan receivables — current JEWE T — mED b) 281,149 233,619
353,618 356,146
Loan receivables — non current JEWE R — FERED b) 3,448 3,791
357,066 359,937
(A) TRADE RECEIVABLES (A) BEZ BN
The followings are the balances of trade receivables, net E o RWAR R &8s (FNBRTEHR
of ECL: EEEE) BT :
2020 2019
—E-FH —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T FH&TT
Trade receivables from REBAELEEZE SRR
securities brokerage
business
— cash clients —BerF 44 686
— HKSCC — BBEEFT — 1,073
— margin clients —HFRER 76,446 118,498
Trade receivables from other R B Eth 27 2 B 5 EUREE X
businesses 5,574 6,456
82,064 126,713
Less: ECL B TEEMEEEE (9,595) (4,186)
72,469 122,527

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
meEMBRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

21.LOAN AND TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. BN B K B 5 MR

=h .
(Continued) TA (&)

The settlement terms of trade receivables from cash client
and HKSCC arising from securities brokerage business
are two trading days after trade date. The Group allows an
average credit period of 30 days to its customer of other
businesses.

No aging analysis is disclosed for the Group’s margin
clients as these margin clients were carried on an open
account basis, and only fall due on conditions or on
demand by the Group. The directors of the Company
consider that an aging analysis does not give additional
value in the view of the nature of these receivables.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables
(excluding margin clients), net of ECL, as at 31 March
2020 and 2019 based on the invoice date was as follows:

Less than 30 days LR 30H
31to 60 days 31E60H
61 to 90 days 61290 H
Over 90 days Q0B E

EFREEGRELEZRBRE
BEPLBBREEM B SRV
REMHRASEEAHREMAE -
AEEREMEBNESELK
T30 BHIEEH -

HRARE 2 FREP TIRER
R AT - BERTFREXK
BAKBENRTARE  HAE
BREESEKREIIT - AARESR
R BERNZFRWFAZIEE
B - BRER DT EERIME(E

ERNHRENEZRBER (7
BREFPRIN RZE_TFR_
Z-NEF=ZA=+—RH (HIKk#E
HEERBRE) 2ZREATNT

2019
—E-NF

HK$'000

FHBT

3,266 6,856
120 87
134 102
2,098 1,170
5,618 8,215

PEERERMEEERAR
“ROREERH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

21.LOAN AND TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. BN B K B 5 MR

=h
(Continued) TFA (&)

Trade receivables from cash and margin clients are
secured by the clients’ pledged securities at quoted
market value of approximately HK$139,656,000 (2019:
HK$455,482,000) which could be realised at the Group’s
discretion to settle any margin call requirements imposed
by their respective securities transactions. The trade
receivables from cash and margin clients are repayable
on demand and bear interest at commercial rates. As at
31 March 2020 included in the total trade receivables,
approximately HK$66,895,000 (2019: HK$114,997,000)
were interest bearing whereas approximately
HK$5,574,000 (2019: HK$7,530,000) were non-interest
bearing. There is no re-pledge of the collateral from
margin clients in both years.

Further details of the Group’s credit policy and credit risk
arising from trade receivables are set out in note 34(b).

Non-current portion FkREBHD
Secured loan receivables JEWAEIRAER
Unsecured loan receivables fEUEIKIFE R

Current portion RETBD
Secured loan receivables JEW A IEAE R
Unsecured loan receivables  fEUEIKIFE R

ReERAFEEFPZESEWER
NEF 2 EIREAFIEMISHRELD
/139,656,000 7T (=T — 1L
4 : 455,482,000/ Jt) K ¥
BAREBEAIRIEEIEH BEME
% LUBEEMIREESBET
LBERGMEBELCHRFEE
feBeRAFREFPZEFHEW
R AREREE WiEmE
MEHE - R-_T_ZTF=FH
=+—H BS9EWEREES
R #766,895,00078 7 (—Z— N,
F : 114,997,000 7T) Bt B
i1 #75,574,0008 T (ZF — 1L
F 1 7,530,00087C) ATFE °
MEFERNTFRE R 2R
BAHEEIR o

ERAKBEEERRLE SRR
AR FTE L EERBRHE —

B AKIEE 34(b) °
2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FAT
2,137 2,169
1,311 1,622
3,448 3,791
185,801 180,427
95,348 53,192
281,149 233,619
284,597 237,410

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

21.LOAN AND TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The secured loan receivables are secured by all monies,
deposits and equity shares of listed companies with fair
value of approximately HK$534,807,000 in the securities
broker account and second mortgage over certain
property units (2019: all monies, deposits and equity
shares of listed companies with fair value of approximately
HK$424,118,000 in the securities broker account and
second mortgage over certain property units) and bear
interest at a fixed interest rate at 12% to 15% (2019: 9% to
18%) per annum.

The unsecured loan receivables carry interest at fixed
interest rate at 12% to 15% (2019: 12% to 15%) per
annum. The unsecured loan receivables are guaranteed
by an independent third party as at 31 March 2020 (2019:
guaranteed by an independent third party).

The following table illustrated the aging analysis, net
of ECL, based on the loan drawdown date, of the loan
receivables outstanding at reporting date:

Less than 30 days LR 30H
31 to 60 days 31260 H
61 to 90 days 61290 H
Over 90 days 90 B E

The loan receivables are due for settlement at the date
specified in the respect loan agreements. Further details
of the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from
loan receivables are set out in note 34(b).

1. BB E R R E 3 B KR

a‘A (%)

EWB BB ERTIABEFLELP
OZFBHIE e hAFES
#7534,807,000/& T Z T A &l

2D EETYREM 2R
R(ZE—NF: EFLLFA

ZEIBERE - e kRAFEAR
#9424,118,000/8 7L Z £ A &
CERBRORETWMEEM
IR (B - WiRE EF F| X
12% E15% (ZE—NF : 9% =
18%) 5T 2 °

JE W R 1R B U ] R X
12% &£ 15% ( = F — ﬁﬁ 12%
E£15%) it B - RZE_TF =
ﬂ:+—a'ﬂﬂmwéwﬁﬂm
—BBUE=FER(ZF—N
FH—BBEIE=ZFER) -

TREFINBEBHPRHARERZ
RUEEFRREBEERENBE D
fREE DT CRERTEMEERIE)

2019

—T-hEF

HK$'000

FHT

2,440 51,873
1,922 156,552
9,462 103
270,773 28,882
284,597 237,410

FE W E SR B B SR h
HAZEAMEHE - ﬁFM%lffEBz
RREWERMELEEERRA
HE— R BRI FE34(b) ©

TEERSREEERA
—?—?iiﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBHRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

22.CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

2020
—g=%F

HK$’000
FERT

LIABILITIES
Contract assets EHEE
— arising from corporate finance ~ — KBEMERERE S (a)

services contracts (a)

Contract liabilities EHEE
— arising from billings — RECERERB AL
in advance of SELNECET())

corporate finance
services contracts (b)

(a) Contract assets related to the Group’s right to
consideration for corporate finance services transferred
but not billed at the reporting date. The contract assets
are transferred to receivable when the right become
unconditioned.

(b) Contract liabilities related to the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the
Group recognises the services income from corporate
finance business.

23.0THER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS

1,132

2.6 EERENERE

2019
—TNE
HK$'000
THET

110

(a) BEAEERCIEHERRSE A
EENGEAISE 25018 Eae
BzRAERZANEE - %%
BHEENE BREMNKSEES

Ry B8 18 = R URROR ©

(b) EARKEGHESEGIFENARA
SEERREERRERT R
BRARBRAKERBEHER

f& e

BfAFIE

Other receivables H fth e GRIE
Interest receivables FEWIF B
Deposits i
Prepayments TEfFRIE

Deposits mainly represent deposits for office premises.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020

2. HtEWRIE - RER

2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
16,501 84,338
4,557 —
5,700 6,923

401 286

27,159 91,547

BReTBENRENERS -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

24.BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with
a licensed bank to hold clients’ monies arising from its
securities brokerage and margin financing business.
The Group has classified the clients’ monies as bank
balances and cash - trust under the current assets of
the consolidated statement of financial position and
recognised the corresponding account payables to
respective clients on the grounds that it is liable for any
loss or misappropriation of clients’ monies. The Group
is restricted to use the clients’ monies to settle its own
obligations.

The bank balances and bank deposits carried interest at
market rates ranging from 0% to 3.8% (2019: 0% to 3.2%)
per annum.

24 RITHEBRRRE

AEERFERITHRRBE LIS
RPUBERHEZ KL LR
MEXBEECZEFPNIE - A%
B 1§ & P RIA D B AR E B IR
MRMENBEEIE N2 IRITHERK
Be — G BRNAEEZER
ZE R P FIE 2 A BB S
Ras  AmRARERZSEKE
RENBBEEFRIE - ANEET
BEBEPRIEAREEERS
EIG o

RITERERTEREREFENF
0% Z38% (ZE—NF : 0% ZE
3.2%) ZTIGHEGE °

PEERERMEEERAR
“ROREERH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

25.TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES

AND ACCRUALS

Trade payables from the business
of dealing in securities:
— margin and cash clients
— HKSCC

Property and equipment payables
Other payables and accruals

KERHFEEXG B R RNER :

— HFREREEP
— BBGEEM

MEMBRBEERNER
HA R 5 5RR e e T B AR

The settlement terms of trade payable to HKSCC is two trading

days after the trade dates.

No aging analysis is disclosed for the Group’s trade payables
to margin and cash clients as these clients were carried on an

open account basis. The directors of the Company consider
that the aging analysis does not give additional value in the view

of the nature of these payables.

As at 31 March 2020, the other payables and accruals mainly
represent the outstanding principal reclassified from liability

component of convertible bonds upon maturity.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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25.

a
i
i

X H AR

13 E
ZH

J54

=R
S
S|
o
nljp

2019

—E-NF

HK$'000

T

103,549 530,820
8,283 —
111,832 530,820
— 385
221,847 19,264
333,679 550,469

BRREMZESRNRFGEENR
BEERHRMERRAE -

HRANEEZFRMAEEP HIRE
KERPEESR MU BREFHE
PENFBZRE DT - ARRESR
RE ERZFERNFTEAZLEERE
R REDITAEERIMEE -

RZEZEF=A=+—8 EffE
NRIEBERETEAEEEE AR
BRESF BB EH B 2KRE
BAS o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

26.LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities
of the Group’s lease liabilities:

RIKAE M RABER
—FREH
—FEERFRIH

Total minimum lease payments:
Due within one year
Due in the second to fifth years

HERBZARKRMEER

Future finance charges on
lease liabilities

Present value of lease liabilities HEaEZRE
=EHENRZIRE :

Present value of minimum
lease payments:
Due within one year

Due in the second to fifth years

—FREH]
FE_FEERFAIH

Less: Portion due within one year & : st ARENEEIE
included under current liabilities 2 —FRE| o

Portion due after one year included ztAIEREIBEE T
under non-current liabilities 2 — R EIEE D

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at
1 April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which
were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.
Comparative information as at 31 March 2019 has not been
restated. Details of transitions to HKFRS 16 are set out in Note 3.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group entered into four leases for
office premises and two leases for parking spaces with a range
of remaining lease term of 2.50 months to 16.04 months. All
the leases for office premises have the extension option and
termination option while the leases for carparking spaces
only have the renewal option, the Group considered that no
extension option or termination option would be exercised at the
end of the reporting date.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the total cash outflows
for the leases are HK$19,324,000.

26. THEEE

TRETAEEREABEZRGREH
FHE -

2019
—h&E

HK$'000

T

14,179 —

1,276 —

15,455 —

(180) —

15,275 —

14,006 —

1,269 —

15,275 —

(1,269) —

14,006 —
AEBEER-_ZE—NFHNHE—BFEMR

KIEETBWAB NERB BN RE
HERIFE165% - WA HIVIATELABL ST
AIRBE A BT EAE 17RO B ALK
LHEEBREERZEEEE - B
—“T-NAFE=ZA=1+—8  &®EH
MAEY - BABEZEE BN BRE
AR 1657 2 FHIBEEMIES o
RZBEZZTF=A=+—H0 &~5H
fk/NE Y E XSS I Kl I VALK )
MO EE  FHBEN T2.501EA
£16.0418R - FTERAEMERED

BEEBEMEEERKIERE A
Eu@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ-$$lw%ﬂ
MEBARB I ETEERERERESK
IR o

REBE-_ZE-_FF=-A=+—HItHF
B HER &R %% 419,324,000
BIT ©

TEERSREEERA
—7—?$¢ﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

27.LOAN PAYABLES 27. BFER

Bank loans, wholly repayable
within one year or on demand:

Secured B

Unsecured A

As at 31 March 2020, the unsecured bank loan amounted
to approximately HK$100,221,000 (2019: HK$100,259,000)
borne variable interest rate and guaranteed by the corporate
guarantee given by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Fortune Finance Limited (2019: Fortune Finance Limited). The
rate as at 31 March 2020 was 3.83% (2019: 4.12%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2020, the secured bank loans amounted to
approximately HK$152,379,000 are secured by the debt
securities of approximately HK$185,357,000 (note 20) and
the entire share of a whole owned subsidiary of the Company,
Marvel Champion Investment Limited, borne variable interest
rate and guaranteed by the corporate guarantee given by a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Fortune Finance
Limited. The rate as at 31 March 2020 was 3.22%-4.24% per
annum.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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—FARREBLBREENRITER :

2019

—E-NF

HK$'000

FHBT

152,379 —
100,221 100,259
252,600 100,259

MN-_TE-_TF=F=+—H 2589
/100,221,000 7T ( ZF — N & :
100,259,000/ T) 2 BMEMRTE
RIEEZBAEGFE YAHEARAR
EMB AR ERVBERAR (ZF
—NF: BRVBBRARMAGTZ
NAER - FRERZZTETF=
BA=+—HA383%(—_ZT—LF:
4.12%) o

R-ZZT-_TF=ZA=+—H0  £%8Y
#%152,379,000 & T2 BEMIRITER
LABETE 5 49 185,357,000 78 T (M
20) RARBIZEWB AR MEIRE
BERAFIZEHRMDIEERIT - =EH
FEFBYAHARRZENBLARE
R ARARRM 2 A RIERIEE
ReFMER =T _EF=A=+—
H/A3.22% % 4.24% °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

B 00000 BN
28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 28. A IR & 35
The Group employs convertible bonds as one of its sources of AEEMNARBMBRESFAEFR —IHE
financing. B o
At reporting date, carrying amounts of the convertible bonds is REEBE - AIRRES ZREER
as follows: ™

2020 2019
. i —TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FH&TT

Convertible bonds R ES
— Current — Rn® 61,937 195,244
— Non-current — IERE 19,300 72,823
81,237 268,067
Convertible bond reserves R EREE 19,159 71,982

TEEREREBARAR

S e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

Particulars of new issued convertible bonds during the years
are set out as below:

28. [ EF =@

BEEHET 2 TRRESSERT
mF :

Issue Maturity Coupon
date date rate
BTHE E) 6= FEX
Year ended
31 March 2019
a:t—7 jl¢
ZB=t—-HLFE
2019 A 5 July 2018 4 July 2021 2%
—T-)N\F e a3
+HAAH +AmA
Year ended
31 March 2018
BE-_T-N\F
ZRA=+—HLFE
2018 A 28 June 2017 27 June 2020 2%
Fﬂ:‘l’/\a /\H;‘I’JCH
Year ended
31 March 2017
HE-T—+F
ZB=t—-HLFE
2017C 30 March 2017 29 March 2020 2%
:%_ti — ? —% g
=h=+H =R=thH

Issuer
Effective Conversion earlier
interest price per redemption
rate Principal share right
Bk EITA
BN = e BB RAEEE
HK$'000 HK$
TET T
11.74% 60,000 0.060 No
"
11.17% 60,000 0.060 No
it
12.47% 390,000 0.060 No
i

All of the convertible bonds were unsecured, did not contained
any issuer’s early redemption rights, unless previously
converted, each of the convertible bond shall be redeemed at
100% of the principal amount outstanding on the maturity date
together with the outstanding interest payable on the maturity
date and any other outstanding amount due but unpaid under
the convertible bonds (if any).

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 28. Al IRE 5 ()
Movements of carrying amounts of the liability components and BENS RERE D 2 REESZ SN
equity components are summarised below. s o

Convertible Bond Series

AR ES 25
Total
2017C 2018 A 2019 A st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR THT FAT
Liability components af&Hs
At 1 April 2018 RN=F—/\FENA—H 173,581 49,900 — 223,481
Issue of convertible bonds BITAHARES — — 45,255 45,255
Interests at effective interest rates REBMETE 2 HE 21,663 5,686 3,205 30,554
Conversion of convertible bonds (note 30) & al# k&% (KizE30) — = (31,223) (31,223)
At 31 March and 1 April 2019 RZE-AF=A=1—H
KmA—H 195,244 55,586 17,237 268,067
Interests at effective interest rates REBRMEHE 2 FI 8 24,217 6,351 2,063 32,631
Redemption upon maturity Z| R ER (12,422) — — (12,422)
Reclassified to other payables NBEENNEE
upon maturity HinfEfz0a (207,039) — — (207,039)
At 31 March 2020 R-E-EF=A=+-H — 61,937 19,300 81,237
Equity components EEH
At 1 April 2018 RZE—-\EW™A—H 52,823 13,998 — 66,821
Issue of convertible bonds BT BRES — — 14,745 14,745
Conversion of convertible bonds (note 30) 2 AT#ARR &S (Fi:E30) — — (9,584) (9,584)
At 31 March and 1 April 2019 RZE-NE=H=1—H
RA—H 52,823 13,998 5,161 71,982
Lapse of conversion option upon maturity /214 # g #i 5 ik (52,823) = — (52,823)
At 31 March 2020 R-B-E=A=+-H - 13,998 5,161 19,159
FEEREREEERA
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28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group issued 2019A
convertible bond with principal of HK$60,000,000, during the
process of valuation on the fair value of liability components, at
issuance, the significant inputs to the valuation model were as

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

28. A AR E S @)

HE-_ZT-hAhE=A=+—H81ItHF
E - RNEBEEETAR £ %60,000,000
BILZ2010A R R E % - BITRA
EHH 2 AT EMGEEBRIES  HEE

follows: XAz EEGAZELT

Risk free rate = R B ) = 1.87%
Expected volatility TE R 8 78.383%
Expected option period Te B A AR BR A 3.003 years £

29.CORPORATE BONDS

The Group employs corporate bonds as one of its sources of
financing. At the reporting date, carrying amount of unsecured
corporate bonds at amortised cost includes:

29. A RIfEH

AEEMBAREFREFT-—HES
KR - R E B H - B A ARSI R
ZEERARERZREAERS

Current mED
Non-current IERED

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
43,064 10,340
108,322 147,912
151,386 158,252
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29 CORPORATE BONDS (Continued)

Particulars of outstanding corporate bonds at reporting date

summarised by original issue years are set out below:

_ EEESS—

29. NEMES 2

RB|EBRRERERREFKRET
Fhmtad 2 FFEN T

Annual
Qriginal coupon Effective Carrying
Issue in the year ended terms rate interest rate Principal amount
HEN BB R A% REES FREX Uik 128 Kk
HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn T
At 31 March 2020 R-B-BFZA=+-H
31 March 2014 “Z-RFzA=1-H 7-75 years & 6%-7% 8.59%-9.66% 43,000 43,179
31 March 2015 “E2-RF=A=1-A 7yearsF 6%-6.5% 8.59%-9.12% 57500 57289
31 March 2016 ZZ—E=A=1-R 5-7 years § 65%T1%  9.12%-9.76% 21,810 21,765
31 March 2017 “F-+#=fA=1-A 7-75 years & 6.5% 9.10%-9.12% 30,100 29,153
151,386
At31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1-H
31 March 2014 “Z-RFZA=1-H 7-15 years 6%-7% 8.59%-9.66% 43000 212
31 March 2015 “E-1f=A=1-A 7years ¥ 6%-6.5% 8.59%-9.12% 57,500 55974
31 March 2016 “E-nEZfA=1-A 57 years & 65%7%  912%-976% 21810 21,256
31 March 2017 “E-t#=fA=1-A 375 years 6%-6.5%  9.10%-10.34% 40,100 38810
158,252
These corporate bonds are repayable in the following schedule: ZENRESFBERUATFHERSE
2019
—E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Within one year —FLAR 43,064 10,340
More than one year but not —F A BTN BIBRE
exceeding two years 67,261 42,074
More than two years but not ME LA BTN BBAF
exceeding five years 41,061 104,002
More than five years HFEUE — 1,836
151,386 158,252

TEEREREBARAR
SBROBREER
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30.SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each at 1 April 2018,
31 March 2019 and
31 March 2020

Issued and fully paid:

At 1 April 2018, ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each

Issue of shares for convertible
bonds exercised

Issue of shares upon
subscription

At 31 March 2019 and

31 March 2020, ordinary shares

of HK$0.01 each

30. IR
Number
of shares Amount
REE Gk
Notes '000 HK$'000
BisE Fhk FET
EE
RZE-N\FMA—AH
“E-NF=ZA=+—HRK
—Z-TF=A=+—H
SREEC.01B T LER 20,000,000 200,000
ERTRHE :
RZE—N\FMA—H
SREEC.OB T2 EER 7,086,079 70,861
SITEARRESFETRG
(a) 650,000 6,500
RER BTG
(b) 1,417,000 14,170
RZE-—NF=A=+—HK
—T-TF=fA=1+—H
FREEC.OB T EER 9,153,079 91,531

On 14 January 2019, the holder of convertible bond
series 2019 A exercised the conversion option attached

to the convertible bond in the principal amount of
HK$39,000,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.06 per
share, accordingly 650,000,000 ordinary shares were

allotted and issued to the bond holder.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continuea)

On 13 December 2018, the Company entered into
subscription agreement with the subscribers pursuant
to which the subscribers have conditionally agreed to
subscribe for, and the Company has conditionally agreed
to allot and issue a total of 1,417,000,000 subscription
shares at the subscription price of HK$0.07 per
subscription share.

All the conditions of the subscription agreements have
been fulfilled and the completion of the subscriptions
took place on 31 December 2018. 700,000,000 and
717,000,000 subscription shares were allotted and
issued to Ms. Sit Lai Hei and Eastasia Power Holding
Ltd., respectively by the Company, at the subscription
price of HK$0.07 per subscription share. The gross
proceeds from the subscriptions by Ms. Sit Lai Hei
and Eastasia Power Holding Ltd. were approximately
HK$49.00 million and approximately HK$50.19 million
respectively. The net proceeds from the subscriptions
were approximately HK$98.89 million after deducting the
relevant expenses for the subscriptions. As disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 13 December
2018 and 31 December 2018, the Company intended
to use approximately 91.93% (approximately HK$91.19
million) of such net proceeds as the funds for capital
injection to Fortune Asset Management (Shenzhen) Equity
Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd.* (B&& & (&YI)
AR EESEIBAEIR A A]), a limited liability company
incorporated in the PRC and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, which principally engages in
provision of establishment of equity investment enterprise,
asset management and equity investment advisory
services, the capital call of RMB80 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$90.91 million) of which was due in April
2019 under the relevant requirement from the Office of
Financial Development Service, the People’s Government
of Shenzhen Municipality (R A RBT & @3 E RS
PHAE). The remaining proceeds of approximately HK$8
million were intended to be used as general working
capital of the Group.

30. fR7 ()

RZZE—-—N\F+ZA+=H" &K
NEERBEAGILRBE R &
I REAEEBEBRGHAER
B mARAEE A KT RER
B N 174 $£1,417,000,000 B
13 0.07 87T °

REBEFABEKRMEEEENKE
REEEN _FT—N\F+=A
=t+—HEK . AAAKR
BEESRRAERMOTE T
9 Bl [ B 22 i & = K Eastasia
Power Holding Ltd. fic 3 & 2% 17
700,000,000/% }%717,000,000
RABERGD - REERE LT
M Eastasia Power Holding Ltd.
CREEEZMBRELED
Bl A& #749,000,000 T & 4
50,190,000 % 7T « &R REE
B AR %E - RERESEE
2 FIT1S 3R I8 588 & 49 98,890,000
B HMARARBHA=-T
—NF+_A+=BR=_ZE—N
F+ZA=+—HZRAEMK
B ARRERKZEMERIEF
X8 2 #991.93% ( #791,190,000
BIT) BIEFTEREREE (R
INREREESEEFR A A
(—ERPBEFIMKLZEBRE
TRR]  AXRARZEEE2EN
BAR - EERERMEARE
REMLE BEBERRERE
BRERS) < &% - REBRIIT
ARBR R ERRGEHAE
B E - H A K% 80,000,000
7 (48 % R #790,910,0007% T)
ZEBBNBRER=ZZ—NF
MAEIE - 88 T Z TS FRIAL
8,000,000 THER A EE 2
—REEES °

PEESRSREEERAR
S
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continuea)

The proceeds of subscriptions were fully utilised during
the financial year ended 31 March 2019 according to
the intentions previously disclosed by the Company in
its announcements dated 13 December 2018 and 31
December 2018.

The English transliteration of the Chinese name, where
indicated, is included for information purpose only, and
should not be regarded as the official English name of such
Chinese name.

31.RESERVES

The special reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares of
the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition under the
corporate reorganisation of the Group.

The capital reserve represents the contributions made
by the then controlling shareholder under the corporate
reorganisation of the Group.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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30. fR7 ()

REFREAGRESREAR
AIERRERHA-—T—N\F
T-A+=BR-_F-N\&F+=
A=+—BZRAEHHREEZE
AEBE-_T-NF=A=1—
B IR NS -

Y BXEEHENES (BEH)
BH2E  TERE/ZTXE
B IE A EHE -

31. # &

AEE 2B RFERHEREASE
ZRREMR - FTRENEARZ
B EEREREBEFEERETAR
AR ZEEMERZZH °

AR e B R IR &
AEFZ ARERELZHE -
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31 . RESERVES (Continued)

The other reserves mainly represents premium arisen from
the acquisition of additional 20% equity interest in Fortune
Financial Capital Limited (“Fortune Financial Capital”)
at cash consideration of HK$1,793,000, additional 25%
equity interest in Fortune Wealth Management Limited
at cash consideration of HK$1,125,000 from non-
controlling interests on 18 May 2012 and 10 January 2013
respectively and additional 20% equity interest in & 5854
B OF3I1) AR A A at cash consideration of RMB100,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$114,000) from non-
controlling interest at 30 November 2016.

32.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, there are no significant related party transactions in
the normal course of the Group’s business for the years ended
31 March 2020 and 2019.

All executive Directors were considered to be the key
management personnel of the Group. The remuneration of
executive Directors for the years was as follows:

Short-term benefits SEE Y]
Post-employment benefits BIREF

31.1#E @

HiEEEEED IR =T —=
FRATNBERZZE—=F—
AtBREERERARER
81,793,000 T W g = & &
MEABRAF ([ERERE
K]) BEIN0%ARHE - LA SR
1,125,000 T EE AN =
EIRER R A REIN25% R AE
UER=ZE—XR"E+—A=1+H
MR EZUREREBARE
100,000 7T (#HE P49 114,000 %
) WEERFZARSE ORY) B

NREEIN0% R EFTE £ 2
S o

2. F@BALRH

BREAMBERRZBREEIN
BE_ZT_TFR-_FT-NF=H
=t HLEFE RAKRBELERXEHR
BRI EBARREBALRS

FRATEFRER/AKEZEETE
BAB - BTESEREFEZHFMHN
.

2019

—heF

HK$'000

TET

18,058 14,915

61 65

18,119 14,980
PEEESREEGRD

—?—?iiﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z - —F

33. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSET AND

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The following financial assets and financial liabilities are subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar agreements.

The Group maintained accounts with the HKSCC through which
they conducted securities trading transactions and settlement

on a net basis.

In presenting the amounts due from and to HKSCC (included
in trade receivables or trade payables with clearing house), the
Group has offset the gross amount of the accounts receivable
from and the gross amount of the accounts payable to HKSCC.
The amounts offset and the net balances are shown as follows:

As at 31 March 2020
Trade receivable from HKSCC
Trade payable to HKSCC

As at 31 March 2019

Trade receivable from HKSCC
Trade payable to HKSCC

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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R-Z-EF=A=1-H
EWEELEER EFER
EREBEERZEFER

R-Z-NF=A=1—H
J?H&E/% EEF B HEN
RAERERM 2 EAEN

F=ZA=+—HIEFE

REHLWEER MR
=

TemEEERAGR THEE
I 5 AT #1197 48 B 1K 35 % BE S SR Ut
ZIRBR

AEBEEBREMRAREP

ZEREPETE %E\E’\%I}R/?ﬁg
%/EZ é’o

A

REFN KL ENEBEEMZOR (5
ANERHEBRR 2 EDRRLEN S
BERRAZESERR) K REESEH
R E BB 2 RRRBLENE
FBREE T < R o KA RS
ERFRRRSIANT

Net amount

Gross Amount receivable
amount offset (payable)
el (ef)

TORRE BRI TEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FHT
5,304 (5,304) —
(13,587) 5,304 (8,283)
8,329 (7,256) 1,073
(7,256) 7,256 —



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
meEMBEmERME (8)
For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 —Z —ZTF = A=1+—HILtFE

U.THEREER QX TE

.\.

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Iﬂlﬂl

2019
—h&E
HK$'000
FAT
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets HEHEA YR S RVEE
at amortised cost:
— Regulatory deposits — EEEE 230 230
— Loan and trade — RRERKLE ZERIRR
receivables 357,066 359,937
— Other receivables and — H b EUGRIE R iZE
deposits 26,759 91,261
— Bank balances and — RITEREBE® — B35
cash — trust 114,565 531,568
— Bank balances and — RTEBREEE — R
cash — general 315,132 243,755
Financial assets at FVTPL: BAFEINABRRCSRIEBE
— Equity securities listed in =~ — REB LR E T2 RAES
Hong Kong and
the PRC 36,816 96,147
— Bonds listed in — REERFE LT 2ES
Hong Kong and
the PRC 185,357 —
— Bonds-linked notes — BHFENEE — 25,141
Financial assets at FVOCI: BAFEINAEMEE RS
ZEREE
— Unlisted equity securities — 3F_E T IRACE 138 264
1,036,063 1,348,303
Financial liabilities -l =R
Financial liabilities at REESHR A TIBR 2
amortised cost: TRAE
— Trade payable, — B ENRR - EMER
other payables HIBENMEETER
and accruals 333,679 550,469
— Loan payables — ERER 252,600 100,259
— Corporate bonds — ARIESH 151,386 158,252
— Convertible bonds — AR ES 81,237 268,067
Lease liabilities HEBE 15,275 —
834,177 1,077,047
FEEREREEERA
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34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continvea)

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
investments, trade receivables, loan receivables, other
receivables and regulatory deposits, bank balances
and cash — trust and general, trade payables, property
and equipment payables, other payables and accruals,
loan payables, convertible bonds and corporate bonds.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to adverse
movements in foreign exchange rate relating to foreign
currency denominated in equity investments, loan
receivables, other receivables, bank balances, trade
payables, other payables and accruals. The Group’s
exposure to currency risk is minimal. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign exposure should
the need arise.
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34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 34 U BEREER X FE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) TR (#)
(B] FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (B] BB EER B AR R B
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) R (&)
(Continued) (%
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency Riks BE - NEEAINESE
denominated in monetary assets and liabilities at the CEREERAGBZEREEEBEN
reporting date are as follows: N
Assets Liabilities
BE afE
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZBCEF —T-hF It 2 —ENF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
THx FEL THx FAR
Chinese Yuan Renminbi (‘RMB”) AR ([ AR%]) 98,954 14,710 790 —
United States Dollar (“USD”) E(E V) 316,941 564,228 61,211 160
As HK$ is pegged to USD, the Group does not expect any RRAB T EE TN - WAKE
significant movements in the USD/HK$ exchange rates. JEERE R, B EEKE
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the foreign EREH o ARFEZRE ER
currency sensitivity does not give additional value in view EL/ B LERZEHT T E
of insignificant movement in the USD/HK$ exchange rates. R INEGRETGEEFEI
BfE -

TEEREREBARAR

e
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34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continvea)

As at reporting date, the sensitivity analysis of RMB
against HK$ is as follows:

2020 - a3
RMB ARE
2019 “T-NEF
RMB ARE

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to certain trade receivables, bank balances and
cash — general and loan payables. It is the Group’s policy
to keep its assets and liabilities at floating rate of interests
so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly relating
to the fluctuation of Hong Kong prime rate (“prime rate”)
and Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) (the
prime rate and HIBOR arising from the Group’s interest
bearing financial instruments). The Group’s exposure to
interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are
detailed below.
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RBEBH - ARBLBETZH
REDIAT

Increase/ Increase/

Sensitivity decrease in loss decrease in

rate for the year equity
FEER

DA YV U 5530

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET THET

5% 4,098 4,098

5% 614 614

AEEATEETHE M KE
% BRAKBRAS — —BE
PN B BIER 2 B 6 B R
o KR E 2 B AT B IR
BERAERARL ARATE
FIR BB R E -

AEEZRERENXER TR
HESHEEMNX ((REER
) MEBEERTAEZHKE (&
BRITEEFR]) < KEHERE
(REEHNRNEFBRITRENR
EEAKEZAHEEMIAE
) REBZERMEERE®
BEZHRERFRLOD
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34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continvea)

As at the reporting date, the Group’s financial instruments
with variable interest rate are as follows:

Assets &E
Trade receivables Z Z W ER K
— cash and margin clients — H&RFFREF

Bank balances and RITEHREIRE — — R

cash — general

Liability =N
Loan payables FETE R

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to variable interest rates at the end
of the reporting year. The analysis is prepared assuming
the amounts outstanding at the end of the reporting
year were outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis
points (2019: 100 basis points) increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

As at 31 March 2020, if the interest rate had been 100
(2019: 100) basis point higher/lower, the Group’s loss
for the year would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$1,081,000 (2019: HK$2,158,000).

HEEAREERAVE

EI‘I_'

5 (&)

RS BB - A B BT BT
HE Y SBTAMNT :

2019
—NEF
HK$'000
TAT

66,895 114,997

315,132 243,755

252,600 100,259
TR BURRE D AT TR B RS F
ERZZEHNNERREE - %9
MIHBRERBREFEREREE
Z FIAR BB E REE R
BlomEBERE ABRNB2RA
[, Be RF R A _E 3 TR A9 100
EEZ (ZF— LF : 100 & £
B RREEEHMEA8E
A EE AR E) 2 5 o

R—ZE-_ZTHF=ZA=+—8"
i A & EF /T BK1001E (=
T—NF - 10018) E2 - A%
BzEEBEEBBRD, EMLY

1,081,000 70 ( —Z & — N F :
2,158,000787T) °
FEESSHEEEED
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34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continvea)

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investment in listed debt and equity securities. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on
debt and equity securities quoted in the related stock
exchange. The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risk
and return profiles.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to price risks at the reporting date.

As at 31 March 2020, if the prices of the respective debt
and equity securities had been 5% (2019: 5%) higher/
lower, loss for the year ended 31 March 2020 would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$9,276,000 (2019:
HK$4,014,000).

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-
derivatives financial liabilities, the table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continvea)

The maturity portfolio of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting year, based on the contracted
undiscounted payments, the table include both interest
and principal cash flow was as follows:

Within
1 year or
on
demand
&R
FEX
HK$000
Fin
2020 -%-%%
Non-derivative FTESRAE
financial liabilities
Trade payables, EAERER
other payables EERFER
and accruals EHER 333,679
Loan payables ERER 253,612
Corporate bonds AREH 52,906
Convertible bonds THRES 63,600
Lease liabiffies HEAR 14,179
717976
2019 “T-hE
Non-derivative FTESRAE
financial liabilities
Trade payables, EUTAEEE
other payables EMERTIER
and accruals [EFTER 550,469
Loan payables ERER 101,060
Corporate bonds AREH 20,250
Convertible bonds THRES 219,461
891,240

The aggregate undiscounted principal and interest of
the loan payables with on demand clause as set out
above are based on the scheduled payment terms as the
directors do not believe that it is probable that the bank
will exercise its discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment as at 31 March 2020 and 2019.

. PEBEBREERAFE

T8 ®

More than
1 year but
less than

2 years
—FE
BORFE
HK$000
ThTL

74,299
22,260
1,276

97835

51,964
63,600

115,564

RIFEERTHARRMIRFIA - AKE
RBEFERZEBBEZIH
HewmD  TREENEREAE

AN == N
RWEME -

More than
2 years Carrying
but Total amounts
less than Over  undiscounted asat
5years 5years cash flows 31 March
WE £ AFRE W=A=t-A

) Sk BFIE RELE LA
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK§1000
TEL TERL TR TEL

- - 333,679 333,679
- - 253,612 252,600

4767 - 174,876 151,386
- - 85,860 81,237
- - 15,455 15,275
47671 - 863,482 834,177

= = 560,469 550,469
= = 101,060 100,259

115,853 2,001 190,068 158,252
22,260 = 305,321 268,067
138,113 2,001 1,146,918 1,077,047

S B R B SR B R 2 R R
B2 RRRA S M S ARFE A
BEXNFHAEERREEY
PRARRITER T _TFR-
E-NF=ZA=+—RHTEHERK
TEHE A ZSRENBT &K -

E RS S M EEARAR
—E-TEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continvea)

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk mainly arises from granting credit to customers in the
ordinary course of its operations and from its investing
activities.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the
components of the consolidated statement of financial
position at 31 March 2020 and 2019 is the carrying
amount as disclosed in note 34(a).

Loan and trade receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the management of
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each debtor
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
ECL are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regards,
the management of the Group considers that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
the ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use
of the lifetime expected credit loss provision for all trade
receivables (excluding margin financing).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MBHRERME (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 34 U BEREER X FE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (coninued) AT B (&)

E,I_'

Loan and trade receivables (Continued)

To measure the ECL, trade receivables (excluded margin
financing) and contract assets have been grouped based
on the days past due. The ECL also incorporates forward
looking information.

The Group measures the loss allowance for loan
receivables and margin financing receivables equal to
12-month ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL.

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of HKFRS 9 on loan and trade
receivables and contract assets based on simplified
approach and 12-month ECL. The credit risk on loan and
trade receivables are limited because significant amount
of balances are secured by the pledged securities and
certain property units and the counterparties have no
historical default record and the directors expect that the
general economic conditions will not significantly changed
for the 12 months’ after the reporting date. Based on the
Group’s internal crediting rating, no material expected
credit loss allowance is recognised for loan and trade
receivables (excluded margin financing) and contract
assets.

BREFR L5 BN (&)

RTEBHEEBR  BHENK
R (FRBERIN REHE
ECRBHREETOME - AH
EEEBRINEEREIEER

AEBRBEN12EAEREE
BT BRI E RN R R
BEREBE - FRIFEERRI
FHERBEARIE N - NEEHER
2HBEMEEER -

RERBEMBHRELERIF IR
% AEBERBEN12(EA
BHEEBRRANEEFER
AETRKER R E 5 RERR
K& HEBEEREE - BRER
;B ZRUEFBBEERRE
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BHESFRETYEREMEN
AR S F AU EIBEEXCE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MBEHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND  34.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continvea)

Loan and trade receivables (Continued)

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amounts consist of
gross trade receivables from margin clients amounted to
approximately HK$76,446,000 (2019: HK$118,498,000)
and net of ECL allowance of HK$9,595,000 (2019:
HK$4,186,000). During the year, provision in the ECL
allowance amounted to approximately HK$5,409,000
(2019: HK$3,952,045 (net of reversal of ECL of
approximately HK$60,000)) has been recognised on the
trade receivables from margin clients.

The movement in ECL allowance in trade receivables
during both years is as follows:

At 1 April REA—A

Reversal of ECL allowances & [EaHA{=EE1E B ME
ECL allowances TR EEEERE

At 31 March R=A=+—~H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continvea)

Other receivables
Regulatory deposits, other receivables and deposits

The Group considers the ECL is low based on historical
settlement records and past experience. The Group
has assessed that the ECL for these receivables are not
material under the 12-month expected loss method. Thus
no loss allowance provision was recognised during the
year.

Bank balances — trust and general

The credit risks of bank balances — trust and general are
considered to be insignificant because the counterparties
are banks/financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Financial instruments and non-financial assets measured
at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial
position are categorised into the three level fair value
hierarchies as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair Value
Measurement”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MBEHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z —ZE & = =+—H1t

FE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continvea)

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within

Level 1 that are observable for the assets, either

directly or indirectly, and not using signific
unobservable inputs.

Level 38: Significant unobservable inputs for the asset.

ant

The following table gives information about how fair values

of these financial assets are determined (in particular,
valuation technique(s) and input(s) used).

Financial assets
SHEE

Financial assets at FVTPL RATEFINERE 2 2REE

— Equity securies listed — REAREANN T RAES
in Hong Kong and
outside Hong Kong

—Bonds listedinHong Kongand ~~ — RERREAINSN L2 55

outside Hong Kong

— BAHARE()

— Bonds-linked notes (i)

BAVESINAM RN SHAR
— FF AR (i)

Financial assets at FVOC
— Unlisted equity
securities (il
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36,816

185,357
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34.

ik

Fair value
asat

31 March
2019
RZZ-NE
=A=t1-H
LAVE
HK$ 000
Th

96,147

25,141

264

&
s
]

I}
FE
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(%)

FIREEREBRMS
ZRIE CREHE) -
BEAMERIHEESR
RZBABUR (% —
BT B YR 2 WAB R
58 RAIFHEREKR
TRIBEBABUER °
BEZERNAEE
AR

FE=R

TREHEBETEREELNT
B277 R (Rl R ERM R
RBABUR) 2B °

Valuation
technique(s)
Fair value and key
hierarchy input(s)
(HERIR
ATHEER BTN (
Level 1 Quoted bid prices
in active market
R NG v
BAR
Level 1 Quoted bid prices
in active market
R REBMRMRL
BAE
Level 3 Discounted cash flow
=0 RRenE
Level 3 Net asset value
=0 BETE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continvea)

There were no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3
of fair value hierarchy during the year ended 31 March
2020 (2019: Nil).

(i)  The notes are linked to the listed bonds. The fair
value of bonds-linked notes is estimated using a
discounted cash flow technique. It is estimated by
the future coupon rate, adjusting for the risk and
discounting from 7.88% to 7.96% for the bonds and
notes.

(i) The fair value of the unlisted equity investment is by
reference to the net asset value of the respective
companies.

(i)  The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of the
Group’s financial instruments classified within Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy is as follows:

At 1 April 2018 R=ZZ—/\FMA—H

Reclassification from available-for-sale

financial assets upon the initial FOREAMELE
application of the HKFRS 9 ERMEEBHOE
Deregistration of the financial assets THERERE
Acquisition of financial assets fBemEE
Fair value gain recognised KRR 2 AT ERE

in profit or loss

At 31 March and 1 April 2019

EkMA—A
Disposal of financial assets HESHEE
Deregistration of the financial assets HHEREE

Fair value loss recognised
in profit or loss

At 31 March 2020

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

NB@HER 2 A FEBR

.U BEREER N VE

TR (@)
BE_T-_TF=A=1T—HLt

FE - QAFEEBRNE—F - F
TREFE =AW EEE (—
T—hF o E)o

(i)

(ii)

BREREEMBREER

R-E—NF=B=+—H

RBE FHESFEE - E5
BRI A HEERSR
RReRERMIA - HiE
BAKBERT AL - I
SAERELHEE - BFRE
BZREREERT88%E
7.96% °

FETEARE 2 R FETS
BEZRRRIZEEHER
tElO

(i) AEELSBAEAFEEBASE
=AM emT A REES
BRaT -

Bonds-linked Unlisted equity

notes securities

BEFHNARE FEHRAES
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT

— 1,510

— (1,258)
24,847 12
294 —
25141 264
(24,847) —
— (126)
(294) —

— 138

R-ZE-EF=A=+—H

ARBIEFRS  REEWBHR
RNZEHEX AR EREE
AeRAEREEEREZ AT
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-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MBEHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z — &

35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Place of
incorporation/
registration
Name of subsidiary and operations
BRAYL R
WEAEERE REE B
Fortune (HK) Hong Kong
Securities Limited
EREFARAH BB
Fortune Asset Hong Kong
Management
Limited
EREEERERAR B
Fortune Finance Hong Kong
Limited
ERIBARAA Bk
Fortune Wealth Hong Kong
Management
Limited
ERMEERARAA B
Fortune Financial Hong Kong
Capital Limited
ERERENERAT BB
Fortune Case Limited Hong Kong
REARAA BB

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Particulars of Percentage of ownership
issued and interest and voting
paid up power held by the
capital Company
BRTRAR SRR EERELER
BARE REREIL
2019
—T-NF

310,000,000 100% 100%
ordinary
shares

310,000,000 f& B 1A%

66,000,000 100% 100%
(2019: 55,700,000)
ordinary
shares
66,000,000
(ZB-NF:
55,700,000) B @ik

10,000 100% 100%
ordinary

shares
10,000/% & i@fk

8,200,000 100% 100%
ordinary
shares

8,200,000 R & #hx

31,700,000 100% 100%
ordinary
shares

31,700,000 f E AR

1 ordinary 100% 100%
share

TREBR

5. X AFZ2ETEME AT

Principal
activities

IRER

Provision of
securities
brokerage and
margin financing
services

RERSELER
FREERS

Provision of asset
management
services

RIEAEERRY

Provision of money
lending services

R RS

Provision of
insurance
brokerage services

REVRB LR

Provision of
corporate finance
services

REELERERS

Provision of
corporate
administrative
services to group
companies

EEJEINGEES
EITHERS



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #{Z - —F

CO M PANY (Continued)
Place of
incorporation/
registration
Name of subsidiary and operations
WEARER HRAL MRS LS

Galaxy Way Development Limited

Marvel Champion Investment Limited

MORERRAT]
EREARS R BRAR

ERAE (R RERE

EEERARAT
FERERERERE
ABLE

BVI
RBRLHS
BVI

RBRLES

the PRC

El

the PRC

HE

the PRC

e

35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

Particulars of
issued and
paid up
capital

BROTRARERFE

1 ordinary
share of US$1 each
1REBRER1ET

1 ordinary
share of US$1 each
1REBRER 1 £

Registered
capital of
RMB500,000

AMERARE
500,0007C

Registered
capital of
RMB100,000,000
(2019: RMB2,001,481)

FHERARE
100,000,000 7T
(ZB-NF:
AR®2,0014817T)

Registered
capital of
RMB10,000,000
HMERARE
10,000,000 7T

All subsidiaries are companies incorporated with limited liability

in the respective jurisdictions.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year or at any time during the years ended 31 March

2020 and 2019.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the

opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets

and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries

would,
excessive length.

in the opinion of the Directors, result in particular

mEMBHRERME (&)
F=A=+-AILEE

— > —
B.AQNRZEEHNB AT
(&)
Percentage of ownership
interest and voting
power held by the Principal
Company activities
ARG REREERREER AL TEXH
2019
—Z-NE
100% 100% Equity investment
RARE
100% 100% Equity investment
BARE
100% 100% Provision of
corporate
finance services
REECERERE
100% 100% Equity investment
RARE
100% 100% Equity investment
BAkE
FENB LRI /AL B FDEER NG
MRz 2 BRAF]

ﬁ%ﬂﬂé\fﬂﬂfﬁ% TEA@zi_ = _gi
45 B S F T (A B R B AT B 75
B o

R EZRR/ETEREARBE
BABERARZARENBEAR -
EXZRA HIEMGMBRARZHE
HEBHELHENITE

TEERSREEERA
—?—?iiﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

36.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

COMPANY

Non-current assets
Property and equipment
Interests in joint ventures
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments
Amounts due from
subsidiaries
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade payables, other
payables and accruals

Amounts due to subsidiaries
Loan payables
Convertible bonds
Corporate bonds
Tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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BEERERABAE

36. AR T Z BB EFR

2019

70
1,415
410

1,895

414

1,088,462
135,469

1,224,345

208,958
212,425
252,600
61,937
43,064
21

779,005

445,340

447,235

e

HK$'000
FTAT

95
1,415
410

1,920

337

995,653
92,266

1,088,256

1,959
127,358
100,259
195,244

10,340
21

435,181

653,075

654,995



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

EEE——— 00 B
36.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 36. KRB ZIEER »)
COMPANY (continuea)
A) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF (A] KR E] 2B (&)
THE COMPANY (Continued)
2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BiE FET FET
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Corporate bonds NEES 108,322 147,912
Convertible bonds AR ES 19,300 72,823
127,622 220,735
Net assets EEFE 319,613 434,260
Capital and reserves AR A R (4
Share capital (&N 30 91,531 91,531
Share premium BRAD B 36(b) 689,003 689,003
Convertible bond reserves  AI AR (&5 28 19,159 71,982
Translation reserve BB 36(b) 740 742
Contributed surplus BEHEH 36(b) 80,657 80,657
Accumulated losses RETEE 36(b) (561,477) (499,655)
Total equity R 319,613 434,260

TEEREREBARAR

e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHERMETE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

36. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 36. X RTRZHBER =@
COM PANY (Continued)
Convertible
Share bond  Translation  Contributed Accumulated
premium reserves reserve surplus losses
TRRES
RiDEE i BERE BEaEs RiTEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAT TAT TAT

At 1 April 2018 RZE—\FMA—H 569,676 66,821 — 80,657 (445,995)
Loss for the year FEBR — — = = (53,660)
Exchange differences arising  #EGINEBEL 2

on translation of foreign BRER

operations — — 742 — —
Issue of convertible bonds ~ E{TAIARER — 14,745 = = =
Issue of shares for convertible  BE1T{E AR EHE1TRH

bonds exercised 34,307 (9,584) — — —
Issue of shares upon RERRTRN

subscription 85,020 — = — =
At31 March 2019 and RZZ-NE=ZA=+-HkK

1 April 2019 “Z-NENA—H 689,003 71,982 742 80,657 (499,655)
Loss for the year FEFR — = = = (114,645)
Exchange differences arising 2B EINEBELZ

on translation of foreign EHER

operations — — 2) — —
Lapse of conversion option  Z|HRS R ARIE KK

at maturity (note 28) (K 28) = (52,823) = = 52,823
At 31 March 2020 RZEZTF=A=1—H 689,003 19,159 740 80,657 (561,477)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

36.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

CO M PANY (Continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the fair values of the underlying
net assets of the subsidiaries at the date on which they
were acquired by the Company and the nominal amount
of the Company’s shares issued under the corporate
reorganisation of the Group.

37.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to Shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of lease liabilities
disclosed in note 26, convertible bonds disclosed in note 28,
corporate bonds disclosed in note 29, loan payables disclosed
in note 27, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the Directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the associated risks with each
class of capital, and take appropriate actions to adjust the
Group’s capital structure.

For certain subsidiaries of the Group, they are regulated by
Securities & Futures Commission (“SFC”) and are required to
comply with certain minimum capital requirements according
to the relevant rules of SFC. Management monitors, on a daily
basis, the subsidiaries’ liquid capital to ensure it meets the
minimum liquid capital requirement in accordance with the
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules, the range
of liquid capital is from HK$100,000 to HK$3,000,000 or 5% of
their total adjusted liabilities, whichever is higher.

36.

37.

RRTBZHEER @
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HATET 2 AR BRI EEZH
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AREBEEEE NERANERAEE 2
EREAFERLE  WERBBLERK
RESERSRRERKEKOE o K
KB BRERBIRATFERFTE -

AEBZEAREBRERERE (KM
AE26HER) - FIHARES (RHTEE28
BKEE)  REES (RME0WE)
RN ER (RME27 HE) - RE LR
SEEY  URARARER ANEIEE
7 ERERDBTRARES -

ARAEREHENAARLHE - £
ZENZ—H5 ARTEELEE
ARAREBRERS R AR - I
GRIAS BN ARALE AL
503K -

RAEEETHBARME @ HEX
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
meMBRRME (8)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

37.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuesy 37. BEXREREE o)

Another subsidiary of the Group is a member of the Professional AEB S —HNBARAZERR
Insurance Brokers Association Limited and is required to Kt kg WEARERER
maintain a minimum net asset value of HK$100,000 at all times. B RIKE EFE 100,000 47T °
There is no non-compliance of the capital requirements imposed REZMBEEE  WERERBBRER
by the respective regulators during both years. BB ERREZIER

38.COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  38.F&E K SiAE I

The Group leases certain of its office premises under lease AEERBHERHEBEET
arrangements. Lease for properties are negotiated for a WMRNEYE - HEMEHRRR—
term ranging from one year to three years and rentals are FE=ZF MESNEHERBR
fixed at the inception of lease. No provision for contingent EE o HEWETASAEE R
rent and terms of renewal were established in the lease. RBRVEFR

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group had RZZBE_EFER_ZE-NF=A
commitments for short-term leases (2019: future minimum =+—H AEBCsRHEE
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases) (ZE—NF: T HEHEEEMNE
which fall due as follows: R T2 ARKRKEHEEMNF) &

ERTS BB :

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHT

Within one year —F AR — 18,844
In the second to fifth year, FEZFERF (PEEREME)
inclusive — 15,622

— 34,466

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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e BBRHTE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

The Group had the following capital commitment at
reporting date:

Contracted but not provided for: B 3T 4B i K B4 -
Investment in joint ventures REENBZIRE

Other than the capital commitment of joint ventures as
mentioned above, there was a subscription agreement
dated 23 January 2017 entered into by the Group in
relation to the establishment of a joint venture which was
terminated on 9 November 2017 due to a change in the
shareholding structure of the joint venture company. On 9
November 2017, the Group therefore entered into a new
subscription agreement with independent third parties in
relation to the establishment of the joint venture at total
investment amount of RMB1,000 million and the Group
shall contribute an aggregate amount of RMB300 million
and hold 30% shareholding in the joint venture. The
establishment of the joint venture is subject to approval
by the China Securities Regulatory Commission. As at the
date of this report, the approvals had yet to be obtained in
this regard.

38. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 38.FERHAEIE &)

(Continued)

RfEBE  REBE FHIEX
HHE

2019
—T-hEF
HK$'000
FHT

5,053 SIS

Br Eil B RAA &R R B A RIE
Sh- MAB—EHBHAZT—tF
— AT =BAREBRKIAEE
ARIMEI M BRERZE - MARM
WBHER=ZE—tF+—ANAB
ik RARZEEQAIKNRE
EmEBEE - Al AEER
—E—+F+—ANBHKIZ
AEAREAETEYE=SFL
REE BREBEAARK
1,000,000,0007C * MAKEEAE
H 1 & A K 300,000,000 7T -
WHHZA &R RRERN30% -
R FZA SRR AT BESRE
BEEBLZEBSHER HAE
T NAREEH mAESE
RAHLE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

39.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

248

ARISING FROM FINANCING

39.%§5§EE$H’9§1§¥¢

ACTIVITIES
Loan Corporate  Convertible Lease
payables bonds bonds Liabilities Total
EITER ARfRE  ABRES HEERE s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\F=A=1—H 359,295 164,561 223,481 — 747 337
Cash-flows: ReRE:
— Repayment of corporate bonds ~~ — BB R AlfER = (9,900) = = (9,900)
— Repayment of a loan —EB-SEX (1,180,000) — — —  (1,180,000)
— Proceeds from loans —ERZFERE 920,000 — — — 920,000
— Proceeds from issue of — BIMERES
convertible bonds Pdiites V] — — 60,000 — 60,000
— Interest paid —BRFE (8,158) (11,324) — = (19,482)
Non-cash: ¥BEE:
— Equity component of — AREHFNERE D
convertible bonds — — (14,745) — (14,745)
— Conversion of convertible — RBABRES
bonds — - (31,223) _ (31,223)
— Redemption upon maturity — HIHRED = — (6,500) — (6,500)
— Proceeds from issue of — BTHRG 2 FTE5UR
new shares — — 6,500 — 6,500
— Finance costs recognised — BRERRERA 9,122 14,915 30,554 = 54,591
At 31 March 2019 R-Z-NF=A=1+—H 100,259 158,252 268,067 — 526,578
Adjustment from the application of ~ JEFE BB HRE £8
HKFRS 16 (note 3) F165%.2 A% (ME3) — — = 33,077 33,077
Adjusted balance at 1 April 2019 RZE-NFRA—R &%
(B%) 100,259 158,252 268,067 33,077 559,655
Cash-flows: AeRE
— Repayment of lease liabilities —ERHERE — = = (18,487) (18,487)
— Repayment of corporate bonds ~~ — BB R AlfER = (10,000) — — (10,000)
— Repayment of loans —BRER (778,545) = = — (778,545)
— Proceeds from loans —ERZFERE 930,180 — — — 930,180
— Redemption upon maturity — ZERER — — (12,422) = (12,422)
— Interest paid —BRFE (8,270) (10,696) = (643) (19,609)
Non-cash: ¥BEE:
— Addition of lease liabilities —HEHERRE — — = 685 685
— Reclassified to other payables ~ — FIHEHHEE
upon maturity L = = (207,039) = (207,039)
— Finance costs recognised = Eﬁ%ﬂmﬂﬁﬁiﬁ 8,976 13,830 32,631 643 56,080
At 31 March 2020 R-E-EF=f=1-H 252,600 151,386 81,237 15,275 500,498
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40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employee’s basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC,
the subsidiaries of the Group in PRC participate in respective
government retirement benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) whereby
the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the Scheme to fund
the retirement benefits of the eligible employees. Contributions
made to the Scheme are calculated based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under
the requirement in the PRC. The relevant authorities of the PRC
are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to the
retired employees. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the Scheme is to pay the ongoing required contribution under
the Schemes.

The total cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$1,712,000 (2019: approximately HK$1,930,000) represents
contributions payable to the schemes by the Group in respect
of the year ended 31 March 2020.

0. R IRERGFTE

AEEREBERFEATES (BEER])
AHEED - RRFEERSMBRESR
AEIZEERYBESR - AEERE
EHREZEAF 2R —ANHIE
HER - YRNEERBREMBES
Bt EGeBa MEMEERE
KPR - BEESF B2 EETER
SEBYEEZESORARKE - A%
BB AL ZEBER—RR IR
ERABRESR -

RETEBBERE EZR - AREE
FE B LR E2EEABNRKE
METE ([ZEt8)) - Bt HEAR
ARZAERRIANEDSERERZ
BRKER - DX EMEL Z TR
BYBRRTEMRECERFHEIE T
BOLEE - FEZEBARBEATRE
NFRABEZ2MERESEE - K
SEBZET 8 2 — B ER/RIEZE
BT EZ M -

A EEREMEEKERZR
AN 491,712,0008 70 (ZZF— L6
#71,930,000/870) EAEBEREZE —
T EF=ZA=+—HBILFEER
E SRR PAS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBHRERME ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE—E - F = A=+—HItFE

41.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
DATE

a)

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (the
“COVID-19 outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across the regions in which
the Group has business operations. The Group will pay
close attention to the development of the COVID-19
outbreak and evaluate its impact on the financial position
and operating results of the Group.

On 29 January 2019, Fortune Finance Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Lender”), Shine
Well Holdings Limited (the “Borrower”) and Mr. Lai
Tse Ming, being a sole director and sole shareholder
of the Borrower (the “Guarantor”) entered into the loan
agreement (the “Loan Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Lender has agreed to grant to the Borrower a loan in the
principal amount of HK$155,000,000 bearing an interest
rate of 12% per annum for a period of 12 months (subject
to extension) (the “Loan”) from and including the date of
utilization of the Loan (the “Drawdown Date”).

On 13 May 2020, the Lender, the Borrower and the
Guarantor entered into a supplemental loan agreement
(the “Supplemental Loan Agreement”), pursuant to
which, among other things, the Lender agreed to extend
the repayment date of the Loan from 12 months after
the Drawdown Date (i.e. 30 January 2020) to 21 months
after the Drawdown Date (i.e. 31 October 2020) on the
terms and subject to the conditions therein. Subject to the
Lender’s prior written consent, the repayment date can be
further extended for a further 6 months to 30 April 2021.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 5 E —E —ZF = A=+ —HILFE

41.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
DATE (Continued)

b)

(Continued)

The entering into of the Supplemental Loan Agreement,
when aggregated with the interest income derived
from the Loan since its drawdown constitutes a major
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) and is therefore subject to the
announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules. An extraordinary general meeting
(“EGM”) will be convened for the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) to consider and approve
the Supplemental Loan Agreement. A circular containing,
among others, further details of Supplemental Loan
Agreement and a notice of the EGM will be despatched to
the Shareholders.

For details of the Loan Agreement and Supplemental
Loan Agreement, please refer to announcements of the
Company dated 29 January 2019, 13 May 2020 and 15
May 2020.

42.COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures in these consolidated financial

statements were reclassified to conform to the current year’s

presentation.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
IFMBERE

For the year ended 31 March

BE=A=t—HLEFE
2019 2018 2017 2016
“E-F  E-N\F E—tF CERF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FAT AT FHET
RESULTS E+
Revenue WA 179,401 108,072 94,042 49,880 49,207
Net investment gains/(losses) K&/ (BE) F8 (13,384) (646) (8,038) 6,454 —
(Loss)/profit before tax BEA (B18) /&F (62,176) (102,743) (62,224) 30,907 (42,682)
Income tax expense FEHAY (9,638) (1,436) (3,226) = —
(Loss)/profit before non-controlling K 3FE R £
interests (B18) /&7 (71,814) (104,179) (65,450) 30,907 (42,682)
Non-controlling interests FEIEmR RS - — — — 381
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable A FHEA AREIEREE
to owners of the Company (B18) /&7 (71,814) (104,179) (65,450) 30,907 (42,301)
(Loss)/earnings per share ik (B1B) /&F (L)
(HK cents)
Basic EX (0.78) (1.38) (0.95) 0.85 (1.24)
Diluted i3k (0.78) (1.38) (0.95) 0.84 (1.24)
As at 31 March
R=A=t-H
2019 2018 2017 2016
—T-NF —E-N\F B S o3 “E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TAT THAL FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERARE
Total assets BELR 1,166,730 1,485,500 1,353,930 988,835 458,135
Total liabilities BELE (843,216)  (1,077,774) (978,164) (711,169) (350,595)
323,514 407,726 375,766 277,666 107,540
Non-controlling interests IR — — = — 1,125
323,514 407,726 375,766 277,666 108,665

China Fortune Financial Group Limited
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